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N O T I C E

NOTICE is hereby given that the 83rd Annual General

Meeting of the members of Amrit Corp. Limited  will

be held on Monday the 29th day of July, 2024 at

11:30 a.m. through Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other

Audio Visual Means (OVAM) to transact the following

businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt:

(a) the Standalone Audited Financial Statements

of the Company for the financial year ended

31st March, 2024, together with the reports of

the Directors and Auditors thereon; and

(b) the Consolidated Audited Financial

Statements of the Company for the financial

year ended 31st March, 2024, and the report

of the Auditors thereon.

2. To declare Dividend on Equity Shares of the

Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March,

2024.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Girish Narain

Mehra (DIN: 00059311), who retires by rotation

and being eligible, offers himself for re-

appointment.

By Order of  the Board

For AMRIT CORP. LTD.

Regd. Office:

CM/28, Ist Floor, (P. K. DAS)
Gagan Enclave, Company Secretary
Amrit Nagar, G.T. Road,

Ghaziabad-201 009 (U.P.)

Ph.: 0120-2866880, 4506900

Email: info@amritcorp.com

Website: www.amritcorp.com

Dated: June 10, 2024

NOTES:

1. Pursuant to General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated

8th April, 2020, 17/2020 dated 13th April, 2020,

20/2022 dated 5th May, 2020, 02/2021 dated

13th June, 2021, 02/2022 date 5th May 2022,

10/2022 dated 28th December, 2022 and the

latest one being General Circular No. 9/2023

dated 25th September, 2023 issued by the

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA Circulars”),

holding of the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’)

through VC/OAVM, without the physical

presence of the Members, is permitted. In

compliance with the provisions of the Companies

Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), MCA Circulars, the AGM of

the Company is being held through VC/ OAVM

which does not require physical presence of

members at a common venue. The proceedings

of the AGM will be deemed to be conducted at

the Registered Office of the Company which shall

be the deemed Venue of the AGM.

2. A statement giving relevant details of the directors

seeking appointment/ reappointment of the

Directors, is annexed herewith as Annexure-I.

3. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member

entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled

to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her

behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of

the Company. In terms of MCA Circulars, since

physical attendance of Members has been

dispensed with, there is no requirement of

appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility

for appointment of proxies by the Members

under Section 105 of the Act, will not be available

for the AGM and, hence, the Proxy Form and

Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

The Board of Directors has appointed Shri

Baldev Singh Kasthtwal, Practicing Company

Secretary (FCSNo. 3616, CP No. 3169) as the

Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting and remote e-

voting process in a fair and transparent manner.



4. Corporate/Institutional members (i.e. other than

individuals, HUF, NRI, etc) are required to send

scanned copy of its Board or governing body

resolution/authorization etc., authorizing its

representative to attend AGM through VC/

OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote

e-voting.  The said Resolution/Authorization be sent

to the Scrutinizer by email through its registered

email address to bskasthwal@gmail.com with

a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

5. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM

shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the

quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

6. Members can login and join the AGM 30 minutes

prior to the scheduled time to start the AGM and

the window for joining shall be kept open till the

expiry of 15 minutes after the scheduled time to

start the AGM. The facility of participation at the

AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available

for 1000 members, on first-come-first-served

basis. However, the participation of large

members (members holding 2% or more

shareholding), promoters, institutional investors,

directors, key managerial personnel, the

Chairpersons of the Audit Committee,

Nomination & Remuneration Committee,

Stakeholders Relationship Committee and

Auditors can attend the AGM without restriction of

first-come-first served basis. Instructions and other

information for members for attending the AGM

through VC/OAVM are given in this Notice.

7. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the

Companies (Management and Administration)

Rules, 2014 (as amended) and the aforesaid

MCA circulars, the Company is providing facility

of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of

the business to be transacted at the AGM. For

this purpose, the Company has entered into an

agreement with National Securities Depository

Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through

electronic means, as the authorized agency. The

facility of casting votes by a member using remote

e-voting system as well as e-voting on the date

of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

8. For ease of conduct, members who would like to

ask questions/express their views on the items

of the business to be transacted at the meeting

can send in their questions/ comments in advance

mentioning their name, demat account number/

folio number, email id, mobile number at

info@amritcorp.com. The same will be replied by

the Company suitably. Those Members who

have registered themselves as a speaker will only

be allowed to express their views/ask questions

during the AGM. The Company reserves the right

to restrict the number of speakers depending on

the availability of time for the AGM.

9. The Registers of Members and Share Transfer

Books of the Company will remain closed from

Tuesday, July 23, 2024 to Monday, July 29,
2024 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of

annual closure of books.

10. Dividend on Company’s Equity Shares for

the year ended 31st March, 2024, as

recommended by the Board of Directors, if

approved at the AGM, payment of such dividend

subject to deduction of tax at source will be made

as under:

(i) To all Beneficial Owners in respect of shares

held in dematerialized form as per the data

as may be made available by the National

Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”)

and the Central Depository Services (India)

Limited (“CDSL”), collectively

“Depositories”, as of the close of business

hours on Monday, July 22, 2024.

(ii) To all Members in respect of shares held in

physical form after giving effect to valid,

transmission or transposition requests

lodged with the Company as of the close

of business hours on Monday, July 29,
2024.



(iii) The Dividend, if approved, will be payable

by Tuesday, August 27, 2024.

11. Members are requested to -

i. intimate to the DP, changes if any, in their

names, registered addresses, email

address, telephone/mobile numbers, and/

or changes in their bank account details, if

the shares are held in dematerialized form.

ii. intimate to the Company’s RTA, changes if

any, in their names, registered addresses,

email address, telephone/mobile numbers,

and/or changes in their bank account details,

if the shares are held in physical form (share

certificates).

iii. dematerialize their Physical Shares to

Electronic Form (Demat) as, in terms

notification dated 10th September, 2018

Government of India, Ministry of Corporate

Affairs has notified Amendment to The

Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of

Securities) Rules, 2014, securities of public

companies can be transferred only in

dematerialized form with effect from 2nd

October, 2018, except in case of request

received for transmission or transposition

of securities. Dematerialization of shares

would help to eliminate risks associated with

Physical Shares. Members can contact

Registrar and Transfer Agents viz., MAS

Services Ltd. New Delhi (Tel. No. 011

26387281/82/83) for assistance, if any, in

this regard.

12. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA circulars,

the Notice of the AGM along with the Annual

Report 2023- 24 is being sent only through

electronic mode to those Members whose email

addresses are registered with the Company/

Depositories. Members may note that the Notice

calling AGM alongwith the explanatory statement

and Annual Report 2023-24 are available on the

website of the Company at www.amritcorp.com

and on the website of National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) i.e.
www.evoting.nsdl.com (the Authorised agency
for providing voting through electronic means and
AGM through VC/OAVM). Company’s web-
link on the above will also be provided in
advertisement being published in Financial
Express (English edition) and Jansatta (Hindi
edition).

13. Members who have not yet registered their e-
mail addresses are requested to register the same
with their Depository Participants (“DP”) in case
the shares are held by them in electronic form
and with the Company/RTA  in case the shares
are held by them in physical form.

14. M/s MAS Services Limited is the Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent of the Company. All investor
related communications may be addressed to
them. The details of the person responsible to
address grievances and other matters connected
with e-voting are as under:

Name : Mr. Shravan Mangla
Unit : Amrit Corp. Limited
Address : M/s MAS Services Limited

T-34, 2nd Floor, Okhla Industrial
Area, Phase-II, New Delhi – 110 020

Tel. : 011-26387281/82/83

Email id : investor@masserv.com

15. For receiving all future correspondence (including

Annual Report) from the Company

electronically–

In case you have not registered your email ID

with the Company/ Depositary, please follow

below instructions to register your email ID for

obtaining Annual Report for FY 2023-2024 and

login details for e-voting.

Physical Holding

Please register your email id , mobile number ,

PAN , Bank detail and nomination to RTA.  (to

register the same you can download form

ISR1-, SH13, ISR2  from website of RTA i.e.

www.masserv.com).



Demat Holding

Please contact your Depositary Participant (DP)

and register your email address as per the

process advised by DP.

16. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars,

Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report

2023-24 is being sent by electronic mode to

those Members whose e-mail addresses are

registered with the Company / Depositories.

Further, those members who have not registered

their e-mail addresses and mobile nos. and in

consequence could not be served the Notice of

the AGM and Annual Report may temporarily

get themselves registered with RTA by emailing

for obtaining the same. Members are requested

to support our commitment to environmental

protection by choosing to receive the Company’s

communications through e-mail going forward.

17. In case a person has become a member

of the Company after dispatch of the

AGM Notice, but on or before the cur-off date for

e-voting i.e. Monday, July 22, 2024, such

person may generate password as per

instructions given below in e-voting instructions

or can contact with RTA by e-mail request on

investor@masserv.com

18.  With a view to helping us serve the members

better, members who hold shares in identical

names and in the same order of names in more

than one folio are requested to write to the

Company to consolidate their holdings in one folio.

19. In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act,

2013 and the applicable provisions, the

shareholders of the Company may nominate a

person in whose name the shares held by him/

them shall vest in the event of his/their death.

Shareholders desirous of availing this facility may

submit the requisite nomination form SH-13.

20. Shareholders of the Company are informed that

pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the

relevant rules the amount of dividend which

remains unpaid/unclaimed for a period of 7 years

is transferred to the ‘Investor Education &

Protection Fund (IEPF)’ constituted by the Central

Govt. Accordingly the amount of dividend which

remained unpaid/unclaimed for a period of 7

years for the year 2015-16 has already been

transferred to IEPF. Shareholders who have not

encashed their dividend warrant(s), for the years

2016-17 to 2022- 23 are requested to make claim

with the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the

Company immediately.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section

124(6) of the Act read with the relevant Rules

made thereunder, shares on which dividend has

not been paid or claimed for seven (7)

consecutive years or more shall be transferred to

the IEPF as notified by the Ministry of Corporate

Affairs.

In accordance with the IEPF Rules, the Company

has sent notices to all the Shareholders whose

shares are due for transfer to the IEPF and has

also published the details thereof in notices

published in newspapers.

The Members whose dividend/shares are

transferred to the IEPF may claim the dividend/

shares by making an application to the IEPF by

following the procedure as detailed in the IEPF

Rules and as enumerated on the website of IEPF

at http://www.iepf.gov.in/IEPF/refund.html.

21. The Company will to use the bank account details

furnished by the Depositories and the bank

account details maintained by the RTA for

payment of dividend to Members electronically.

The Company has extended the facility of

electronic credit of dividend directly to the

respective bank accounts of the Member(s)

through Electronic Clearing Service (ECS)/

National Electronic Clearing Service (NECS)/

Real Time Gross Settlement (RTGS)/ Direct

Credit/NEFT etc. In the absence of ECS facilities,



the Company will print the bank account details if

available, on the payment instrument for

distribution of dividend.

In order to receive the dividend without loss of

time, the Members holding shares in physical form

are requested to submit particulars of their bank

accounts along with the original cancelled cheque

bearing the name of the Member to the RTA,

MAS Services Limited/Company to update their

bank account details and all the eligible

shareholders holding shares in demat mode are

requested to update with their respective DPs,

their correct Bank Account Number, including 9 Digit

MICR Code and 11 digit IFSC Code, e-mail ID

and Mobile No(s).

Members holding shares in physical form may

communicate these details to the RTA viz. MAS

Services Limited having address at RTA i.e.

MAS Services Limited, having address at T-34

2nd Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-II, New

Delhi 110020, by quoting the reference folio

number and attaching photocopy of the cheque

leaf of their active bank account and a self-attested

copy of their Permanent Account Number

(‘PAN’) card.

This will facilitate the remittance of the dividend

amount in the bank account electronically. Updation

of e-mail IDs and Mobile No(s) will enable the

Company in sending communication relating to

credit of dividend, un-encashed dividend, etc.

The Company or RTA cannot act on any request

received directly from the Members holding

shares in demat form for any change of bank

particulars. Such changes are to be intimated only

to the DPs of the Members.

22. Pursuant to Finance Act, 2020, dividend income

will be taxable at the hands of shareholders w.e.f.

1st April, 2020 and the Company is required to

deduct tax at source from dividend paid to

members at prescribed rates. For the prescribed

rates for various categories the members are

requested to refer to the Finance Act, 2020 and

amendments thereto. The members are

requested to update their PAN with Registrar and

Transfer Agents (in case of shares held in physical

mode) and depository participants (in case shares

held in demat mode). However, no tax shall be

deducted on the dividend payable to a resident

individual shareholder if the total dividend to be

received during FY 23-24 does not exceed

Rs.5,000/-.

A resident individual shareholder with PAN who

is not liable to pay income tax submit a yearly

declaration in Form 15G/15H, to avail the benefit

of non-deduction of tax at Company’s RTA at

investor@masserv.com. Shareholders are

requested to note that in case their PAN is not

registered, the tax will be deducted at a higher

rate of 20%.

TDS to be deducted at higher rate in case of
non-filers of Return of Income.

The provisions of Section 206AB require the
deductor to deduct tax at higher of the following
rates from amount paid/ credited to specified
person: 

i. At twice the rate specified in the relevant
provision of the Act; or

ii. At twice the rates or rates in force; or

iii. At the rate of 5%

TDS to be deducted at higher rate in case of
non-linkage of PAN with Aadhaar.

As per Section 139AA of the Income Tax Act,
every person who has been allotted a PAN and
who is eligible to obtain Aadhaar, shall be required
to link the PAN with Aadhaar. In case of failure to
comply to this, the PAN allotted shall be deemed
to be invalid/inoperative and tax shall be deducted
at the rate of 20% as per the provisions of section
206AA of the Act. The Company will be using
functionality of the Income-tax department for the
above purpose. Shareholders may visit https://
www.incometax.gov.in/iec/foportal/ for FAQs
issued by Government on PAN Aadhar linking. 

However, as directed by the Central Board of



Direct Taxes vide Circular No. 11 of 2021 dated
June 21, 2021, the Company will be using
functionality of the Income-tax department for
determination of specified person for the purpose

of Section 206AB of the Act.

23. The documents referred to in the proposed

resolutions are available for inspection at its

Registered Office of the Company during normal

business hours on any working day except

Saturdays, upto the date of meeting.

24. Instructions for e-voting and joining the AGM are

as follows:

In terms of the provisions of section 108 of the

Act, read with rule 20 of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014,

as amended (hereinafter called ‘the Rules’ for the

purpose of this section of the Notice), the

Company is providing facility of remote e-voting

to exercise votes on the items of business given

in the Notice 83rd Annual General Meeting (AGM)

through electronic voting system, to members

holding shares as on Monday, July 22, 2024
(end of day), being the cut-off date fixed for

determining voting rights of members, entitled to

participate in the remote e-voting process,

through the e-voting platform provided by NSDL

or to vote at the e-AGM.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR
REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING
GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on Friday,
July 26, 2024 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on
Sunday, July 28, 2024 at 5:00 P.M. The
remote e-voting module shall be disabled by
NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members,
whose names appear in the Register of
Members / Beneficial Owners as on the
record date (cut-off date) i.e. Monday, July
22, 2024, may cast their vote electronically.
The voting right of shareholders shall be in
proportion to their share in the paid-up
equity share capital of the Company as
on the cut-off date, being Monday, July 22,
2024.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL
e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL
e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which
are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) A) Login method for e-Voting and
joining virtual meeting for Individual
shareholders holding securities in
demat mode

Individual shareholders holding securities in

demat mode are allowed to vote through

their demat account maintained with

Depositories and Depository Participants.

Shareholders are advised to update

their mobile number and email Id in their

demat accounts in order to access e-Voting

facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders

holding securities in demat mode is given

below:

Type of  Login Method
share-
holders

1. If you are already registered
for NSDL IDeAS facility ,
please visit the e-Services
website of NSDL. Open web
browser by typing the
fol lowing URL: https://
eservices.nsdl.com/either on a
Personal Computer or on a
mobile. Once the home page
of e-Services is launched, click
on the “Beneficial Owner”
icon under “Login” which is
available under “IDeAS”
section. A new screen will
open. You will have to enter
your User ID and Password.
After successful
authentication, you will be
able to see e-Voting services.
Click on “Access to e-Voting”
under e-Voting services and
you will be able to see e-
Voting page. Click on options
available against company
name or e-Voting service
provider – NSDL and you will

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities
in demat
mode
with NSDL.



be re-directed to NSDL e-Voting
website for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting
& voting during the meeting.

2. If the user is not registered for
IDeAS e-Services, option to
register is available at https:/
/eservices.nsdl.com. Select
“Register Online for
IDeAS”Portal or click athttps:/
/ e s e r v i c e s . n s d l . c o m /
S e c u r e W e b /
IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3. Visit the e-Voting website of
NSDL. Open web browser by
typing the following URL:
h t t p s : / /
www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either
on a Personal Computer or on
a mobile. Once the home
page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon
“Login” which is available
under ‘Shareholder/Member’
section. A new screen will
open. You will have to enter
your User ID (i.e. your sixteen
digitdemat account number
held with NSDL), Password/
OTP and a Verification Code
as shown on the screen. After
successful authentication, you
will be redirected to NSDL
Depository site wherein you
can see e-Voting page. Click
on options available against
company name or e-Voting
service provider - NSDL and
you will be redirected to e-
Voting website of NSDLfor
casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting.

4. Shareholders/Members can also
download NSDL Mobile App
“NSDL Speede” facil ity by
scanning the QR code
mentioned below for seamless
voting experience.

1. Existing users who have opted
for Easi / Easiest, they can
login through their user id and
password. Option wil l  be
made available to reach e-
Voting page without any
further authentication. The
URL for users to login to Easi
/ Easiest arehttps://
web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/
h o m e / l o g i n o r
www.cdslindia.com and click on
New System Myeasi.

2. After successful login of Easi/
Easiest the user will be also
able to see the E Voting Menu.
The Menu will have links of e-
Voting service provider i.e.
NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast
your vote.

3. If the user is not  registered
for Easi/Easiest, option to
register is available at   https:/
/web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/
Registration/EasiRegistration

4. Alternatively, the user can
directly access e-Voting page
by providing demat Account
Number and PAN No. from a
link in www.cdslindia.com
home page. The system will
authenticate the user  by
sending OTP on registered
Mobile & Email as recorded in
the demat Account. After
successful authentication, user
will be provided links for the
respective ESP i.e. NSDL where
the e-Voting is in progress.

You can also login using the
login credentials of your demat
account through your Deposi-
tory Participant registered with
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facil-
ity.  Once login, you will be
able to see e-Voting option.
Once you click on e-Voting
option, you will be redirected
to NSDL/CDSL Depository site
after successful authentica-
tion, wherein you can see e-
Voting feature. Click on op-
tions available against com-
pany name or e-Voting ser-
vice provider-NSDL and you
will be redirected to e-Voting
website of NSDL for casting
your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the
meeting.

I n d i v i d u a l
Shareholders
h o l d i n g
securities in
demat mode
with CDSL

I n d i v i d u a l
Shareholders
(holding securi-
ties in demat
mode) login
through their
depository par-
ticipants



Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve

User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID
and Forget Password option available at
abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode for any technical issues
related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and
CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Members facing any technical issue in
login can contact NSDL helpdesk by
sending a request at  voting@nsdl.co.in
or call at no.: 022-48867000 and
02224997000

Members facing any technical issue in
login can contact CDSL helpdesk by
sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or
contact at 1800225533

B) Login Method for shareholders other than
Individual shareholders holding securities
in demat mode and shareholders holding
securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL.
Open web browser by typing the
fol lowing URL: https://
www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a
Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system
is launched, click on the icon “Login” which
is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’
section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to
enter your User ID, your Password/OTP
and a Verification Code as shown on the
screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for
NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-
in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your
existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to
NSDL eservices after using your log-in
credentials, click on  e-Voting and you can
proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote
electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

5. Password details for shareholders other
than Individual shareholders are given
below:

a) If you are already registered for
e-Voting, then you can user your
existing password to login and cast
your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting
system for the first time, you will need
to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which
was communicated to you. Once
you retrieve your ‘initial password’,
you need to enter the ‘init ial
password’ and the system will force
you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘ init ial
password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your
demat account or with the company,
your ‘ initial password’ is

c) For Members
holding shares in
Physical Form.

EVEN Number
fol lowed by Folio
Number registered
with the companyFor
example i f folio
number is 001***
and EVEN is 101456
then user  ID is
101456001***

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
demat mode with NSDL

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
demat mode with CDSL

Manner of holding Your User ID is:
shares i.e. Demat
(NSDL or CDSL) or
Physical

a) For Members
who hold shares
in demat account
with NSDL.

b) For Members
who hold shares
in demat account
with CDSL.

8 Character DP ID
followed by 8 Digit
Client IDFor example
if your DP ID is
IN300*** and Client
ID is 12****** then
your user  ID is
IN300***12******.

16 Digit Beneficiary
IDFor example if your
Beneficiary ID is
1 2 * * * * * * * * * * * * * *
then your user ID is
12**************



communicated to you on your email
ID. Trace the email sent to you from
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the
email and open the attachment i.e. a
.pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The
password to open the .pdf file is
your 8 digit client ID for NSDL
account, last 8 digits of client ID for
CDSL account or folio number for
shares held in physical form. The
.pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and
your ‘initial password’.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered,
please follow steps mentioned
below in process for those
shareholders whose email IDs
are not registered

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not
received the “ Initial password” or have
forgotten your password:

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/
Password?”(If you are holding
shares in your demat account with
NSDL or CDSL) option available
on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset
Password?” (If you are holding
shares in physical mode) option
available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the
password by aforesaid two options,
you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your
demat account number/fol io
number, your PAN, your name and
your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP
(One Time Password) based login
for casting the votes on the e-Vot-
ing system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on
Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by se-
lecting on the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” but-
ton.

9. After you click on the “Login” button,
Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join
General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join
General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be
able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which
you are holding shares and whose voting cycle
and General Meeting is in active status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish
to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting
period and casting your vote during the
General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting,
you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed
under “Join General Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting
page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate
options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify
the number of shares for which you wish to
cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also
“Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast
successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes
cast by you by clicking on the print option on
the confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution,
you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than
individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to
send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the
relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc.
with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized
to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to



bskashtwal@gmail.com  with a copy marked
to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your
password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password
confidential. Login to the e-voting website
will be disabled upon five unsuccessful
attempts to key in the correct password. In
such an event, you will need to go through
the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or
“Physical User Reset Password?” option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset
the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the
Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for
Shareholders available at the download
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on
tol l free no.: 02248867000  and
02224997000  or send a request to Amit
Vishal at evoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email IDs
are not registered with the depositories for
procuring user id and password and registration
of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set
out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please
registered your e-mail id with RTA procedure as
given above.

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please
generate password procedure as given in e-voting
instruction.

3. Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode are allowed to vote through their demat
account maintained with Depositories and
Depository Participants. Shareholders are required
to update their mobile number and email ID
correctly in their demat account in order to access
e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-
VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE EGM/AGM ARE AS
UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/
AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above
for remote e-voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be
present in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM
facility and have not casted their vote on the
Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible
to vote through e-Voting system in the EGM/AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-
Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM.
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the
EGM/AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted
for any grievances connected with the facility for e-
Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the
same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING
THE EGM/AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS
UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend
the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the
NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access
by following the steps mentioned above for
Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After
successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM
link” placed under “Join General meeting” menu
against company name. You are requested to click
on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General
Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be
available in Shareholder/Member login where the
EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note
that the members who do not have the User ID
and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the
User ID and Password may retrieve the same by
following the remote e-Voting instructions
mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.



2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting
through Laptops for better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera
and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from
Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience
Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended
to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate
any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their
views/have questions may send their questions
on or before 25/07/2024 in advance mentioning
their name demat account number/folio number,
email id, mobile number at info@amritcorp.com or
pkdas@amritcorp.com . The same will be replied
by the company suitably.

General Instructions

i. A person, whose name is recorded in the register
of members or in the register of beneficial owners
maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off
date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of
remote e-voting as well as voting at the AGM
through ballot paper.

ii. Shri Baldev Singh Kashtwal, Practicing Company
Secretary (Membership No. FCS-3616 & CP
No. 3169), has been appointed as the Scrutinizer
for providing facility to the members of the
Company to scrutinize the voting and remote e-
voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

iii. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of
discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to

be held, allow voting with the assistance of
scrutinizer, for all those members who are present
at the AGM through VC / OAVM but have not cast
their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

iv. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting
at the AGM, will first count the votes cast at the
meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast
through remote e-voting in the presence of  at least
two witnesses not in the employment of the
Company and shall make, not later than three days
of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated
scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour
or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person
authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign
the same and declare the result of the voting
forthwith.

v. The Results declared alongwith the report of the
Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the
Company www.amritcorp.com and on the website
of NSDL immediately after the declaration of result
by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in
writing.

By Order of  the Board

For AMRIT CORP. LTD.

Regd. Office:

CM/28, Ist Floor, (P. K. DAS)
Gagan Enclave, Company Secretary
Amrit Nagar, G.T. Road,

Ghaziabad-201 009 (U.P.)

Ph.: 0120-2866880, 4506900

Email: info@amritcorp.com

Website: www.amritcorp.com

Dated: June 10, 2024



ANNEXURE 1 TO ITEM 3 OF THE NOTICE

Details of Director seeking appointment and re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

As on 31st March, 2024

Name of Director Shri Girish Narain Mehra

Date of Birth 24.11.1932

Nationality Indian

Qualification M.A., LLB, IAS (Retired)

Date of Appointment 21.05.2003

No. of shares held in the Company Nil

Expertise Distinguished bureaucrat (retired IAS officer) having
long experience in administration and industrial
development & management of public/ private
sector companies.

Relationship with other Directors ---

List of Directorships held in other Listed Companies N.A.

Chairman/Member of Committees of Board of N.A.

Directors in other Public Companies



To the Members,

The Board of Directors is pleased to present Company’s 83rd Annual Report on the business and operations
together with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The summarized financial results (standalone) of the Company for the financial year 2023-24 are given hereunder:

(Rs.in lakhs)

2023-24 2022-23

Revenue from operations & other income 16,348.31 1,1550.44

Operating Profit (EBIDTA) 4,206.60 367.01

Finance Cost 14.47 161.97

Gross Profit (PBD) 4,192.13 205.04

Depreciation & amortization 360.13 275.08

Profit/(Loss) before tax 3,832.00 (70.04)

Provision for

- Current Tax (net) 200.12 20.40

- Deferred Tax 637.53 (108.75)

Net Profit/(Loss) 2,994.35 18.31

Other Comprehensive Income (11.28) (125.33)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2,983.07 (107.02)

Opening balance of Retained Earnings 7,723.19 8,727.52

Amount available for appropriation 10,700.92 8,701.06

Dividend on Equity Shares 121.53 227.87

Transferred to General Reserve 750.00 750.00

Closing Balance of Retained Earnings 9,829.39 7,723.19

DIRECTORS’ REPORT



DIVIDEND

The Board of directors are pleased to recommend
payment of dividend of Rs.6.00 per equity share of
Rs.10/- each (i.e. 60%) for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024, subject to approval of the
shareholders at the ensuing annual general meeting.
The dividend of Rs.4.00 per equity share of Rs.10/-
each (i.e. 40%) was paid in the year ended March 31,
2023.

MATERIAL CHANGES FROM THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR

Scheme of Amalgamation

The Board of Directors of the Company approved the
Scheme of Amalgamation (“Scheme”) between the
Company and Amrit Agro Industries Ltd. (“Amrit Agro”)
pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230-232 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Scheme was approved
by the shareholders and creditors of both the
companies and sanctioned by the Hon’ble National
Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench, Prayagraj.
The Scheme became effective from 26th April, 2024
and the Appointed Date was 1st April, 2023.

The salient features of the Scheme interalia are as under:

(a) Amalgamation of Amrit Agro with the Company;

(b) Transfer and vesting of the entire business of Amrit
Agro including inter alia all movable/ tangible/
intangible properties, if any, and all secured and
unsecured debts, liabilities, including contingent
liabilities and taxation obligations;

(c) Cancellation and extinguishment of the investment
held by Amrit Agro in the form of equity shares of
the Company;

(d) Issue and allotment of One (1) – 7% Optionally
Convertible Redeemable Preference Share
(“OCRPS”) of Rs.10 each by the Company for
every one (1) equity share of Rs.10 each of Amrit
Agro;

(e) Clubbing of the Authorized Share Capital of Amrit
Agro with the Company;

(f) Dissolution of Amrit Agro without winding-up.

“10th May, 2024” has been fixed as the ‘Record
Date’ for the purpose of determining the equity

shareholders of Amrit Agro entitled to receive
OCRPS as per the exchange ratio provided in
the Scheme. The OCRPS have been issued to
the shareholders of Amrit Agro inter alia on the
following terms & conditions:

- Tenure of OCRPS shall not exceed 6 months
from the date of allotment;

- The holders of OCRPS shall be entitled to a
dividend of 7% p.a.

- OCRPS will be convertible into two equity
share of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up for every
twenty-three (23) OCRPS held by the
shareholders, in one tranche, at the option of
the allottee(s) within a period not exceeding 6
months from the date of allotment of OCRPS;

- In the event the allottees of OCRPS choose
not to convert the OCRPS, they will be
compulsorily redeemed by the Company
at the price of Rs. 73.60 per OCRPS of
Rs. 10/- each including premium of Rs. 63.60
per OCRPS together with the cumulative
dividend.

Except the above, there are no other material
changes and commitments affecting the financial
position of the Company, which occurred after the
end of the financial year i.e. March 31, 2024.

OVERVIEW OF COMPANY’S OPERATIONAL &
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

 Dairy

 The production of dairy milk & milk products
during the year was higher by 3.74% at
12,560 KL as against 12,107 KL in the
previous year;

 The volume of the commoditized products,
e.g. liquid milk (UHT/pasteurized/loose milk)
and cream, which are low contribution items, is
lower as the focus now is on value added
products.  By effective production planning,
the product mix is optimized to shift the
production from loose milk to Products as far
as possible; thus, reducing substantially the
losses on sale of loose milk. The B2B
products under ‘Cool M’ brand i.e. soft serve



mix, ice cream mix, cold coffee (pouch) and
whipping cream have grown by 4% on YoY
basis. The lower growth in B2B is mainly on
account of declining volumes of whipping
cream. It is expected that current year
onwards, private label products business will
grow on account of on-boarding of two large
customers. The high value-added products
under ‘Just’ brand i.e. flavoured milk in glass
bottles and protein shakes, coffee drinks &
ice-tea in aluminium cans are getting increased
market acceptance and have grown by nearly
77% on YoY basis.

 During the year under review, the revenue from
Dairy operations increased by 17.52% to Rs.
12,651.29 lakh as against Rs. 10,764.96 lakh
in the previous year;

 The average milk price during the year were
lower by about 10%. This led to higher
profitability and increased margins. The prices
of SMP and SWP also remained softened
due to falling of milk rates and build-up of stock
in the pipeline. The other manufacturing costs
were generally stable.

 Treasury

 The Company has deployed surplus funds
by way of investment in financial instruments.
The Company’s treasury operations
continued to focus on the deployment of
excess funds on the back of effective portfolio
management of funds within a well-defined
risk management framework and asset
allocation strategy.  All investment decisions
in deployment of funds continued to be
guided by the tenets of safety of principal
and liquidity;

 The current financial year has been a good
year for Indian equity markets.  The markets in
India remained resilient throughout with some
volatility in the fourth quarter. The strong run-
up in domestic equity prices was largely driven
by sustained mutual fund inflows, higher
economic growth and healthy corporate
earnings.  BSE sensex rose by about 25%
in FY 2023-24 and was among the top
performing indices globally.

 Company as a whole

During the year under review, gross revenue is
higher by 41.54% at Rs.16,348.31 lakhs as
against Rs. 11,550.44 lakhs in the previous year.
Operating profit (EBIDTA) of Rs.4,206.60 lakhs
has been recorded in the financial year 2023-24
as against operating profit of Rs. 367.01 lakhs in
the previous year. Net profit after tax for the year is
Rs.2,994.35 lakhs as against Rs. 18.31 lakhs in
the previous year. The Net Profit after other
comprehensive income is Rs. 2,983.07 lakhs as
against Net Loss of Rs.107.02 lakhs in the
previous year.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Management Discussion and Analysis for the year
ended March 31, 2024 is appended and forms an
integral part of this Report.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

The statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, relating to the
subsidiary company, Amrit Learning Ltd., together with
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
31st March, 2024 are attached herewith and form part
of this Annual Report. In terms of the provisions of
Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Financial
Statements of the subsidiary company are available
for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company
by any shareholders of the Company. The Financial
Statements of the subsidiary company and the related
detailed information shall be made available to the
shareholders of the Company, seeking such information
at any point of time, on demand, free of cost. The
Financial Statements are also available on the website
of the Company and can be accessed at
www.amritcorp.com under ‘Investors Relations’.

FINANCE

(i) Share Capital

Upon giving effect to the Scheme of Amalgamation
of Amrit Agro with the Company, the investment
of Amrig Agro in the equity shares of the Company
i.e. 2,52,127 equity  shares of Rs.10/- each has
been cancelled in terms of the Scheme and,



consequently, the face value of the said investment
amounting to Rs.25.21 lakhs has been reduced
from the issued, subscribed and paid-up share
capital of the Company.

In terms of the Scheme, the Company has issued
and al lotted 63,72,265 - 7% Optionally
Convertible Redeemable Preference shares
(“OCRPS”) of the face value Rs.10/- each to the
equity shareholders of Amrig Agro, as on the
Record Date fixed for the purpose, in the ratio of
exchange provided in the Scheme i.e. One (1) –
7% OCRPS for every one (1) equity share of
Amrig Agro. The terms & conditions of the OCRPS
are given in the Notes to the Accounts.

Consequently, the paid-up share capital of the
Company after giving effect to the Scheme of
Amalgamation, stands as under:

(Rs. Lakhs)

27,86,104 Equity Shares of the face
value of Rs.10/- each 278.61

63,72,265 – 7% Optionally Convertible
Redeemable Preference shares of the
face value of Rs.10/- each 637.23

During the year under review, the Company has not
issued shares with differential voting rights nor granted
stock options nor sweat equity.

(ii) Delisting

In accordance with Regulation 26 of the Delisting
Regulations, the Promoter Acquirers provided exit
opportunity to the remaining public shareholders
of the Company, who did not or were not able to
participate in the Reverse Book Building Process
or who unsuccessfully tendered their equity shares
in the Reverse Book Building Process and were
holding Equity Shares in the Company (“Residual
Shareholders”), to tender their equity shares during
a period of one year from the BSE Date of Delisting
i.e. from June 03, 2022 to June 2, 2023 (“Exit
Window”) at the delisting price of Rs.945/- per
equity share on the terms and conditions as
contained in the Exit Letter of Offer. During the
financial year 2023-24, 4,042 equity shares have
been tendered by the Residual Shareholders
which have been acquired by the Promoter

Shareholders. Consequently, the shareholding of
the Promoter Shareholders has gone up to
93.72% of the paid-up equity share capital of the
Company. The Exit Window closed on June 2,
2023.

(iii) Deposits

Your Company has not accepted any deposits
falling under the ambit of Section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Rules
framed thereunder during the year under review
and there are no unpaid/unclaimed deposits nor
any amount of principal or interest on public
deposits outstanding as on the date of the Balance
Sheet.

(iv) Particulars of loans, guarantees or
investments

Loans, guarantees and investments covered under
the provisions of Section 186 of the Act, form part
of  the financial statements provided in this Annual
Report.

(v) Related Party Transactions

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with
related parties, as per Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder
and as per the Related Party Transactions (“RPT”)
Policy of the Company during the financial year
ended March 31, 2024 in prescribed Form AOC-
2 is annexed to this Report (Annexure-A). All
transactions with related parties during the year were
on arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary
course of business.  There are no materially
significant related party transactions made by the
Company with promoters, directors, key
managerial persons or others, which may have
potential conflict with the interest of the Company
at large or which warrants the approval of the
shareholders.

On the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
the Board of Directors has adopted a policy on
Related Party Transactions, which is also uploaded
on the website of the Company
(www.amritcorp.com) under the head ‘Investor
Relations’.  The Policy envisages the procedure
governing related party transactions required to be
followed to ensure compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations as well as to ensure that the



Related Party Transactions are managed and
disclosed in accordance with the strict legal and
accounting requirements.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Your Company has put in place a Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy in line with Section 135 and
Schedule VIII of the Act.  The CSR Policy as approved
by the Board of Directors is available on the website of
the Company at www.amritcorp.com. As per the Policy,
the CSR activities are carried on in areas of skill
development & language training for employability,
livelihood and income generation, preventive health and
sanitation, waste resource management and water
conservation and also contribute to Prime Minister’s
National Relief Fund, National Mission for Clean Ganga
and Swachh Bharat Kosh.

The Annual Report on CSR activities, as required under
Sections 134 and 135 of the Act read with Rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 has been appended as Annexure-B and
forms integral part of this Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company has a robust governance structure with
well-defined roles and responsibilities for each vertical.
This helps in identifying and managing business risks in
a proactive manner and at the same time empowers
the management to encash business opportunities.

VIGIL MECHANISM

Your Company over the years has established a
reputation for doing business with integrity and displays
zero tolerance for any form of unethical behavior. Pursuant
to Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Company has formulated a Whistle Blower Policy to
establish a vigil mechanism for directors and employees
of the Company.  The purpose and objective of this
Policy is to provide a framework to promote
responsible and secure whistle blowing. It protects the
employees wishing to raise a concern about serious
irregularities within the Company.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of
Conduct which is applicable to the members of the
Board and all employees in the course of day-to-day
business operations of the Company. The Company

believes in zero tolerance against bribery, corruption
and unethical dealings/ behavior of any form. The Code
has been posted on the Company’s website at
www.amritcorp.com. The Code lays down the standard
procedure of business conduct which is expected
to be followed by the Directors and the designated
employees in their business dealings and in
particular on matters relating to integrity in the
work place, in business practices and in dealing with
stakeholders.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

Your Company has evolved a system of internal
controls to ensure that the assets are safeguarded and
transactions are authorised, recorded and correctly
reported. The scope of internal audit covers a wide
variety of operational methods and, as a minimum,
ensures compliance with specified standards with
regard to availability and suitability of policies and
procedures, extent of adherence, reliability of
management information system and authorization
procedures including steps for safeguarding of
assets.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT

The Company believes that all employees have right
to be treated with dignity and to work in an environment
free of sexual harassment. The Company will not permit
or condone sexual harassment at workplace. The
Company will make every effort to ensure that no
employee or visitor or any other person is subjected to
sexual harassment at any of the Company’s workplaces
and the allegations of sexual harassment will be dealt
with seriously, expeditiously and confidentially. The
Company has in place a formal policy for prevention of
sexual harassment, which has been framed in
accordance with the provisions of “The Sexual
Harassment of Woman at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013” and Rules framed
thereunder. No complaints of sexual harassment were
received during the financial year 2023-24.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED
BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There are no significant and material orders passed by
the Regulators/ Courts which would impact the
going concern status of the Company and its future
operations.



DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL (KMP)

(i) Changes in Directors

Shri K. R. Ramamoorthy, Shri Mohit Satyanand
and Shri Sundeep Aggarwal, have ceased to hold
office as Independent Directors of the Company
upon completion of their second term of five years
on March 31, 2024. The Board places on record
its heartfelt gratitude for the mentorship, guidance
and unwavering support of Shri K. R.
Ramamoorthy, Shri Mohit Satyanand and Shri
Sundeep Aggarwal during their tenure as
Independent Directors of the Company.

The Board of Directors and the Shareholders have
appointed Mr. Alok Mathur as Independent
Director of the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2024 for a
period of five years.

Except the above, no other changes have taken
place in the Board of Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP) from the date of last Annual
Report.

(ii) Retirement by rotation

The Independent Directors hold office for a fix term
of five years from the date of their last appointment
and are not liable to retire by rotation. Out of the
remaining four Directors, Shri G.N. Mehra retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment as Director, in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles
of Association of the Company.

(iii) Re-appointment of Chairman & Managing
Director

Shri Naresh Kumar Bajaj was re-appointed as
Chairman & Managing Director of the Company
without remuneration for a period of 5 years w.e.f.
01.04.2024. The Shareholders have approved
the re-appointment of Shri Naresh Kumar Bajaj as
Chairman & Managing Director by way of Postal
Ballot.

(iv) Declarations by Independent Directors

All Independent Directors have given declarations
that they meet the criteria of independence as laid
down under Section 149(6) of the Act.

(v) Board Meetings

During the financial year 2023-24, five (5) Board
Meetings were convened and held, the details of
which are as under:

(i) June 02, 2023;
(ii) July 17, 2023;
(iii) August 17, 2023;
(iv) September 15, 2023
(v) November 20, 2023; and
(vi) February 16, 2024.

The intervening gap between the Meetings was
within the period prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013.

BOARD COMMITTEES

(i) Audit Committee

The constitution and terms of reference of the Audit
Committee conform to the requirements of Section
177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The scope and
the terms of reference for the working of the Audit
Committee are constantly reviewed and changes
made from time to time to ensure effectiveness of
the Committee. The Audit Committee comprises
of four members - three non-executive &
independent directors and one executive & non-
independent director. The Chairman of the Audit
Committee is an Independent Director. The
Committee met thrice during the reporting period.
All the recommendations of the Audit Committee
during the reporting period were accepted by the
Board of Directors.

(ii) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

In compliance with the provisions of Section 178
of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has
constituted “Stakeholders Relationship
Committee”. This committee ensures speedy
disposal of all grievances/complaints relating to
shareholders/investors. The Stakeholders
Relationship Committee comprises of three
members - two non-executive directors and one
executive director. The Chairman of the
Committee is non-executive director. During the
reporting period, the Stakeholders Relationship
Committee met once. The meeting was attended
by all the members of the Committee. During the
year 2023-24, the Company has received no



complaints from the investors and hence no
complaints and/or requests for dematerialization
were pending as on 31st March, 2024.

(iii) Nomination & Remuneration Committee

In compliance with Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013, read along with the applicable Rules
thereto, the Company has constituted “Nomination
and Remuneration Committee” consisting of three
non-executive directors with two independent
directors as members and Chairman. The objective
of the committee is to lay down a framework and
set standards in relation to nomination, remuneration
and evaluation of Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP) and such other senior
management personnel as may be prescribed so
as to achieve a balance of merit, experience and
skill in the organization.

(iv) CSR Committee

The Company has constituted a Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee as required
under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The terms of reference of the CSR Committee
broadly are (i) to frame the CSR Policy and its
review from time to time, (ii) to ensure effective
implementation and monitoring of the CSR
activities as per approved policy, plans and budget
and (iii) to ensure compliance with the laws, rules
and regulations governing CSR and to periodically
report to the Board of Directors. The CSR
Committee comprises of three members of which
one is Independent Director. The Committee met
twice during the reporting period. The CSR Policy
of the Company has been uploaded and can be
viewed on Company’s website
www.amritcorp.com.

POSTAL BALLOT

Pursuant to Section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with Rule 22 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, consent of the
Members of the Company was sought by way of
Special Resolutions for the following items, as set out
in the Postal Ballot Notice dated 16.02.2024 by means
of voting through electronic means (e-voting):

1. Appointment of Shri Alok Mathur, as Non-
Executive Independent Director; and

2. Approval for the re-appointment of Shri Naresh
Kumar Bajaj as Chairman & Managing Director
without remuneration

Both the resolutions were approved by the
Shareholders with requisite majority. The result of the
Postal Ballot was declared by the Chairman on
22.03.2024.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according
to the information and explanations obtained by them,
your Directors make the following statements in terms
of the section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013:

(i) that in the preparation of the annual financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024,
the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures, if any;

(ii) that such accounting policies, as mentioned in the
Financial Statements, have been selected and
applied consistently and judgments and estimates
have been made that are reasonable and prudent
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company as at March 31, 2024 and of
the profit of the Company for the year ended on
that date;

(iii) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

(iv) that the annual financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis;

(v) that proper internal financial controls were in place
and that the financial controls were adequate and
were operating effectively;

(vi) that proper systems to ensure compliance with
the provisions of all applicable laws were in place
and were adequate and operating effectively.

AUDITORS

(i) Statutory Auditors

M/s Mukesh Aggarwal & Co., Chartered
Accountants, New Delhi (ICAI Registration No.



011393N) were appointed as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company for the period of
5 years from the conclusion of 81st annual general
meeting till the conclusion of 86th annual general
meeting.

The Report given by M/s Mukesh Aggarwal &
Co., Chartered Accountants, on the financial
statements of the Company for the year 2023-24
is part of the Annual Report. There has been no
qualification, reservation or adverse remark or
disclaimer in their Report. During the year under
review, the Auditors had not reported any matter
under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act,
2013 and, therefore, no detail is required to be
disclosed.

(ii) Cost Auditors

The goods produced by the Company
are not covered under cost audit and, therefore,
pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records
and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014, the
Company is not required to maintain the cost audit
records.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS & OUTGO

The information relating to conservation of energy,
technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings
& outgo as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is Annexed
herewith as Annexure-C.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual
Return in Form MGT 9 is annexed herewith as
Annexure-D.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Board of Directors affirms that the Company
has complied with the applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Companies
Secretaries of India relating to Meetings of the
Board and its Committees which have mandatory
application.

TRANSFER OF EQUITY SHARES AND UNPAID/
UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO THE INVESTOR
EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

In line with statutory requirements, the Company has
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
set up by the Government of India, equity shares in
respect of which dividend has remained unpaid/
unclaimed for a period of seven consecutive years
within the time line laid down by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs. Unpaid/unclaimed dividend for seven years or
more has also been transferred to the Investors
Education and Protection Fund pursuant to the
requirements under the Act.

PERSONNEL

Employee relations continued to be cordial throughout
the year in the Company. The Directors express their
appreciation for the contribution made by the
employees to the operations of the Company during
the year.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The provisions of Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 requiring particulars of the
employees in receipt of remuneration in excess
of Rs.102 lakh per year to be disclosed in the Report
of Board of Directors are not applicable to the
Company as none of the employees was in receipt of
remuneration in excess of Rs.102 lakh during the financial
year 2023-24.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors convey their sincere thanks to the various
agencies of the Central Government, State
Governments, Banks and other concerned agencies
for all the help and cooperation extended to the
Company. The Directors also deeply acknowledge the
trust and confidence the shareholders and investors have
placed in the Company. Your Directors also record their
appreciation for the dedicated services rendered by
the workers, staff and officers of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Noida N.K. BAJAJ
June 10, 2024 Chairman & Managing Director



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

1. ECONOMIC & BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

The world faced multiple headwinds such as escalating geo-political tensions, constrained supply chains and
high inflation. India proved to be an outlier, demonstrating resilience and growing by over 7% GDP during
FY 2023-24, aided by strong private consumption, growth-supportive policies and continued spending on
capital/infrastructure, among others. While some moderation in growth cannot be ruled out due to several
economic and geo-political risks, India is still likely to be one of the fastest growing large economies.

While global economic growth is expected to moderate further in 2024, India is likely to grow by 6.50-
7.00% in the current financial year, the fastest among major economies of the world. Higher public sector
capex, coupled with fresh capital investments by the private sector will help drive medium term growth,
while digitalization and efficiency enhancing reforms will improve productivity. Production-Linked Incentives
(PLI) scheme is not only bolstering the country’s manufacturing sector but also creating enormous employment
opportunities. Further, India’s transition to clean energy and mobility through green hydrogen and electric
vehicles provides significant investment opportunities. Semiconductor and IT product manufacturing are
expected to position India attractively in global trade.

The long-term growth drivers of the economy remain intact coupled with a large and fast-growing middle-
class driving consumer spending. The rapidly growing domestic consumer market as well as the large
industrial sector have made India an important investment destination for a wide range of multinationals
across manufacturing, infrastructure and services. Further, India is fast becoming the start-up capital of the
world, attracting sizeable foreign investments, driven by its young population and technology edge.

2. DAIRY BUSINESS

(a) Industry structure and development

The Indian dairy industry is vital to the growth of the rural economy. A revival in economic activities,
increasing per capita consumption of milk & milk products, changing dietary preferences and rising
urbanization in India, has driven the dairy industry to grow by about 13% in 2023-24. The sector
provides income generation opportunities for millions of households and also serves as an essential
food source for them.

The government has been actively involved in providing the required impetus to the industry by
introducing various schemes and programmes and staying committed to the fact that healthy and
sizable livestock will always be the backbone for absolute growth of the industry. The industry recognizes
the need for private sector players to contribute in order to grow manifolds and achieve the goals for the
industry. A proactive public-private collaboration is quintessential to making the dairy sector as prosperous
as agriculture and other manufacturing sectors.

As milk is one of the most crucial commodities, it demands better provisions for end-to-end handling.
Right from the process of extraction to when the milk reaches a consumer, there is an ever-growing
need for minimum wastage, maximum safety and increased shelf life. To address this critical need, it is
essential that the milk storage or chilling infrastructure, milk testing facilities especially at the village level
and improved packaging processes be provisioned to strengthen the backbone of the supply chain.
In order to cater timely to the growing demand for healthier food options along with that of the processed
variants, it is imperative that technologies, such Ultra-High Temperature (UHT) processing, aseptic
packaging, intelligent packaging with biosensors or controlled atmosphere, and so forth be implemented
widely to improve the shelf life of products.



India is the world’s largest producer of dairy products, accounting for more than 24% of world’s total milk
production. The industry contributes 5% to the national economy and directly supports more than 8
crore farmers. India’s dairy industry has grown significantly over the past 10 years, supported by
various initiatives taken by the Government.

As the country consumes almost all of its milk production, India was not active exporter of dairy products
prior to 2000. However, since the implementation of ‘Operation Floods’ programme, the situation
changed significantly and imports of dairy products reduced to very small quantity. India has now
become a net exporter of dairy products though the country’s share in global dairy trade still remains at
negligible level.

(b) Opportunities and threats

Although the dairy industry has experienced challenges in recent years, the appetite and demand for
dairy products is on the rise. With a growing middle class, who have more disposable income, consumers
seeking out healthy alternatives to fit in with a more active life-style, milk and dairy products are growing
in popularity.  While milk has been staple for a majority of population from toddlers to senior citizens, the
health benefits of milk are now being widely recognized including its contribution to digestive wellness
and the advantage of dairy proteins. With consumers reconsidering their dietary choices, there has
been reduction in consumption of carbohydrates and sugar leading to an increase in protein based
diets. Dairy has become an attractive source of natural proteins and, as such, many dairy products are
being positioned as functional foods and beverages.

As the largest producer of milk in the world, India is a key player in the dairy industry and the opportunities
for growth are significant. However,  the dairy industry in India faces challenges of disorganization with
only 20 to 25% of the total milk produced going through the appropriate organized channels. Another
major challenge faced by the Indian dairy industry is inadequate  cold storage/supply chain and logistics
facilities.  Even though India is the largest producer of milk in the world, the industry itself is largely
unorganized, with only about one-fourth of the milk produced being channelized through the organized
sector.

(c) Dairy Business Review

The production of dairy milk & milk products during the year was higher by 3.74% at 12,560 KL as
against 12,107 KL in the previous year. For the year under review, the revenue from Dairy operations
increased by 17.52% to Rs. 12,651.29 lakh as against Rs. 10,764.96 lakh in the previous year.

The volume of the commoditized products, e.g. liquid milk (UHT/pasteurized/loose milk) and cream,
which are low contribution items, is lower as the focus now is on value added products.  By effective
production planning, the product mix is optimized to shift the production from loose milk to Products as
far as possible; thus, reducing substantially the losses on sale of loose milk. The B2B products under
‘Cool M’ brand i.e. soft serve mix, ice cream mix, cold coffee (pouch) and whipping cream have grown
by 4% on YoY basis. The lower growth in B2B is mainly on account of lower volumes of whipping
cream. It is expected that current year onwards, private label products business will grow on account of
on-boarding of two large customers. The high value-added products under ‘Just’ brand i.e. flavoured
milk in glass bottles and protein shakes, coffee drinks & ice-tea in aluminium cans are getting increased
market acceptance and have grown by nearly 77% on YoY basis.

(d) Risks and concerns

The Indian dairy industry is expanding rapidly due to the increasing consumption of liquid milk & milk
products across the country and the rising demand for milk products owing to increased number of
health-conscious consumers. Furthermore, the prominent players are expanding their business by



establishing numerous manufacturing facilities, opening their outlets in different markets and launching
new products. The growth in bovine population has contributed towards significant increase in milk
production in the country. The livestock sector, however, is exposed to several constraints.  The pre-
dominant are low productivity, chronic shortages of feed and fodder, large population of unproductive
cattle, low cattle health care, immunization & hygienic programs.

(e) Outlook

The long-term outlook of Indian dairy sector is favorable on account of increasing population, increase in
per capita consumption, increase in expenditure on packaged food, brand awareness, urbanization
and increase in nuclear families.  Given the attractive sector dynamics, our constant endeavor is to
expand our product portfolio that resonate with the expectations of our customers i.e. QSRs, hotels
and restaurants. The Company is continuously strengthening its retail portfolio by introducing innovative
milk beverages in the retail market. The Company has also introduced protein shakes, coffee drinks,
ice-tea and cold brew milk coffee both in glass bottles and aluminium cans under the brand ‘Just’ from
time to time last year which have received good consumer support.

3. COMPANY’S FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE & ANALYSIS

During the year under review, gross revenue is higher by 41.54% at Rs.16,348.31 lakhs as against
Rs.11,550.44 lakhs in the previous year. Operating profit (EBIDTA) of Rs. 4,206.60 lakhs has been
recorded in the financial year 2023-24 as against operating profit of Rs. 367.01 lakhs in the previous year.

The gross revenue is higher because of increased volumes of dairy products and higher mark-to-market
gains due to recording of the investments in financial instruments at the values as on 31.03.2024.  The equity
markets in India remained resilient during FY 2023-24 and closed the year with a gain of about 25%. BSE
Sensex was among the top performing indices globally.

4. HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company lays great emphasis on proper management of human resources and believes that this is
the most important ingredient for achieving excellence in performance and sustainable growth. The
management constantly reviews the skill mix and takes appropriate steps to achieve desired skill mix. For
upgrading the skill, special emphasis is laid on training. Selective and intensive training is being imparted to
employees at various levels.

5. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Board’s Report and the Management Discussion & Analysis describing the Company’s
objectives, expectations or forecasts may be forward-looking within the meaning of applicable securities
laws and regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in the statement.
Important factors that could influence the Company’s operations include global and domestic demand
and supply conditions affecting selling prices, changes in government regulations, tax laws, economic
development regulations within the country, lockdown conditions arising out of pandemic or otherwise
and other factors such as litigation and industrial relations.

For and on behalf of the Board

Noida N.K. BAJAJ
June 10, 2024 Chairman & Managing Director



ANNEXURE “A” TO BOARD’S REPORT

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction
under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis.

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions enter into during the year ended 31st March, 2024,
which are not at arm’s length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis.

a. Name (s) of the Related Party and Nature of Relationship

Not applicable

b. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

Not applicable

c. Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction

Not applicable

d. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, if any

Not applicable

e. Date of approval by the Board

Not applicable

f. Amount paid as advance, if any

Not applicable

Notes:

1. The Company has not entered into any materially significant related party transaction with the promoters,
directors, key managerial personnel or others which may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company
at large or which warrant the approval of the shareholders.

2. All transactions with related parties entered in the past which are in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s
length, have been approved by the Audit Committee as well as the Board of Directors. The details of such
on-going transactions with related parties have been disclosed in the Notes to Accounts.

For and on behalf of the Board

Noida N.K. BAJAJ
June 10, 2024 Chairman & Managing Director



ANNEXURE “B” TO BOARD’S REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. Brief outline of CSR Policy of the Company

(i) CSR philosophy

We strongly believe in sustainable development which is beneficial for the society at large. Recognizing
that business enterprises are economic organs of society and draw on societal resources, it is our
co-extensive responsibility to pay back in return to society in terms of helping needy people, keeping
the environment clean and safe for the society by adhering to the best industrial practices and adopting
best technology. It is our core responsibility to practice the corporate values through commitment to grow
in socially and environmentally responsible way while meeting the interest of our stake-holders.

(ii) Objectives

The key objectives of our CSR policy are:

- Define what CSR means to us and the approach to be adopted to achieve our goals;

- Define the kind of projects that will come under the ambit of CSR;

- Identify broad areas of intervention in which the Company will undertake projects;

- Serve as a guiding document to help execute and monitor CSR projects;

- Elucidate criteria for partner implementation agencies;

- Explain the manner in which the surpluses from CSR projects will be treated.

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee as on 31.03.2024

3. The web-link where composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board
are disclosed on the website of the Company:

The Company has framed a CSR Policy and constituted CSR Committee in compliance with the provisions
of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the same is placed on the website of the Company. The
CSR projects approved by the CSR Committee and the Board of Directors are also disclosed on the
website. The web link for the same is at https://www.amritcorp.com/policies

Sl. No. Name of Director Designation /Nature of Number of meetings Number of meetings
Directorship of CSR Committee of CSR Committee

held during the year attended during
the year

1. Mr. N. K. Bajaj Chairman 2 2
(Executive Promoter Director)

2. Mr. Sujal Anil Shah Member (Independent Director) 2 2

3. Mr. V. K. Bajaj Member 2 2
(Non-Executive Promoter
Director)



4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of
the Companies(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable :

Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any:

6. Average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5) : Rs. 1,228.80 lakhs

7.  (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) : Rs. 24.57 Lakhs

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the : NIL

previous financial years

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any : NIL

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- 7c) : Rs. 24.57 Lakhs
Say Rs. 24.60 Lakhs

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

Sl. No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off from Amount required to be set-off for
preceding financial years (in Rs.)  the financial year, ifany (in Rs.)

NOT APPLICABLE (No amount is available for set-off)

Total Amount Amount Unspent (Rs. in Lakh)
Spent for the
Financial Year
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Total Amount transferred to
Unspent CSR Account as per
section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund specified
underSchedule VII as per second proviso
to section 135(5).

Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of
Transfer Fund Transfer

NA NA NA NA NA

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)

Sl Nameof Item from Local area Location of Project Amount Amount Amount Mode of Mode of
No. the the list of (Yes/No). the project duration Allocated spent in transferred Impleme- Implementation

Project activities in for the the to Unspent ntation Through
schedule project current CSR Direct Implementing
VII to the (in Rs.). Financial Account for (Yes/No). Agency
Act. Year the project

(in Rs.). as per
Section 135
(6) (inRs.).

State   District Name    CSR
               Registration
               No.

NOT APPLICABLE

24.60



(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Sl Nameof Item from Local area Location of Amount Mode of Mode of Implementation Through
No. the the list of (Yes/No). the project Allocated Implem- Implementing Agency

Project activities in for the entation
schedule project Direct
VII to the (in Rs.). (Yes/No).
Act.

Name Amount CSR
(in Lakhs) registration

Number

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against, other than ongoing projects, for the financial year:

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : NIL

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable : NOT APPLICABLE

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) : Rs. 24.60 Lakh

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any:

1. Scholarships for Literacy NO PAN 21.60 No 6.00
education, skill Women INDIA
development/ Empower- 6.00
enhancement, ment
language training
and presentation
skills with a view
to make poor and
neglected children
employable

2. Swachh Bharat Contribution NO NCR 1.00 No 1.00 NA
Kosh to Swachh Region-

Bharat Kosh Delhi

3. Contribution to Clean Ganga Yes NCR 1.00 No 1.00 NA
Clean Ganga Fund Region
Fund Delhi

4. Contribution to Prime NA NCR 1.00 No 1.00 NA
the Prime Minister’s Region
Minister’s National Delhi
National Relief Relief
Fund (PMNRF) Fund

Total 24.60 24.60

Sl. No Particular Amount (in Lakh)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as 24.60
persection 135(5)

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 24.60

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 0.00

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or NA
activities of the previous financial years, if any

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] Nil

CSR00
000619

CSR00
006641

Udayan Care

Feminist Approach to
Technology Society
(FAT)

IDIA Charitable Trust 6.00 CSR00 011058

Salam Baalak Trust 2.60 CSR00000415

Swami Vivekanand 1.00 CSR00015606
Student welfare
Charitable

Swachh Bharat Kosh
set  up by Central Govt.

Clean Ganga Fund set
up by the Central Govt.

Prime Minister’s
National Relief Fund
set up by the
Central Govt.



9. (a) details of Unspent CSR Amount for the preceding three financial years:

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial
year(s):

Sl. Preceding Amount Amount Amount transferred to any Amount
No. Financial transferred spentin the fund specified under remaining

Year. to Unspent reporting Schedule VII as per to be spent
CSR Account Financial section 135(6), if any in succeeding
undersection Year(inRs.) financial
135 (6) (in Rs.) years. (in Rs.)

Name of Amount Date of
the Fund (in Rs.) Transfer

1. 2020-21

2. 2021-22 NOT APPLICABLE

3. 2022-23

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

Sl Project Name Financial Project Total amount Amount spent Cumulative Status of the
No. ID. of the Year in duration. allocated for on the project amount spent project -

Project. which the the project in the reporting at the end of Completed/
project was (in Rs.). Financial Year reporting Ongoing.
commenced. (in Rs.). financial year

(in Rs.).

NOT APPLICABLE

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to theasset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year :  (asset-wise details).

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). : NA

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset : NA

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under : NA
whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired(including : NA
complete address and location of the capital asset)

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
section 135(5).

NOT APPLICABLE

Place : Noida

Date : June 10, 2024 (A. K. Bajaj) (N. K. Bajaj)
Vice Chairman & Managing Director Chairman – CSR Committee



ANNEXURE ‘C’ TO THE BOARD’S REPORT

STATEMENT CONTAINING PARTICULARS PURSUANT TO THE COMPANIES (DISLOSURE OF
PARTICULARS IN THE REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS) RULES, 1988 AND FORMING PART OF
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

I. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

(a) Energy conservation has been an important thrust area for the Company and is continuously monitored.
The adoption of energy conservation measures has helped the Company in reduction of cost and
reduced machine down-time.

(b) Various on-going measures for conservation of energy include (i) use of energy efficient lighting and better
use of natural lighting, (ii) reduction of energy loss, and (iii) replacement of outdated energy intensive
equipment – old air-conditioners were replaced with new energy efficient five star rating air-conditioners.

(c) Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production is given in the table below:



POWER & FUEL CONSUMPTION

Dairy Products

2023-24 2022-23

A 1. ELECTRICITY

(a) Purchased

- Unit (lakh Kwh) 34.53 30.64

- Total amount (Rs. lakh) 291.99 258.43

- Rate/Unit (Rs./Kwh) 8.46 8.44

(b) Own generation

(i) Through Diesel Generator

- Unit (lakh Kwh) 0.99 0.89

- Unit/Ltr. of Diesel Oil 3.42 3.63

- Cost/Unit (Rs./Kwh) 25.75 24.89

(ii) Solar

- Unit (lakh Kwh) 0.72 0.61

(iii) PNG (for gas generator)

- Unit (lakh Kwh) 0.84 0.65

- Unit per SCM of PNG 3.05 2.71

- Cost/Unit (Rs.) 19.17 24.81

2. OTHERS

(a) Briquettes (for Boiler)

Quantity (in tonne) 2,864.32 2,729.57

Total cost (Rs.Lakh) 208.03 196.19

Average Rate/Kg. (Rs.) 7.26 7.19

(b) P.N.G.  (for Boiler)

Quantity (SCM) 166.76 139.77

Total cost (Rs/ lakh) 97.56 94.03

Average rate/(Rs./SCM) 58.50 67.28

B. CONSUMPTION/TONNE OFPRODUCTION

Production (K.L.) 12,560 12,107

Electricity/Tonne (Kwh) 289.48 265.76

Others - -



II. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Research and Development

(a) The Company carries out research and development in several areas including material & process
developments towards efficiency improvements, quality improvements, waste reduction etc. Apart
from process improvements, the research and development also aims at finding equivalent substitutes
of various inputs and packaging materials to have cost savings without compromising quality.

(b) The Company has derived benefits of product diversification, cost reduction and better quality as a
result of the above efforts.

(c) The research and development is an on-going exercise and suitable efforts will continue to be
made in future.

(d) The expenditure on R & D has been as follows:

(Rs. in lakhs)

2023-24 2022-23

(i) Capital 4.40 3.39

(ii) Recurring 4.60 12.69

(iii) Total 9.00 16.08

(iv) Total R&D expenditure as a percentage of turnover 0.07% 0.15%

Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation

The Company has not imported any technology for its products.

III. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

Particulars with regard to foreign exchange earnings & outgo appear on page 107 of the Annual Report and
Accounts.

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Noida N.K. BAJAJ
Date: June 10, 2024 Chairman & Managing Director



ANNEXURE “D” TO BOARD’S REPORT

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2024

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i) CIN : U15141UP1940PLC000946

ii) Registration Date : 29.03.1940

iii) Name of the Company : Amrit Corp. Limited

iv) Category / Sub-Category of : Public Company
the Company

v) Address of the Registered : CM-28 (First Floor), Gagan Enclave, Amrit Nagar, G T Road,
office and contact details Ghaziabad - 201009 (UP) Tel. No.: 0120-2866880

vi) Whether listed company : No

vii) Name, Address and Contact : Mas Services Limited
details of Registrar and T-34, 2nd Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-II, New Delhi-20
Transfer Agent, if any Tel. No.: 011-26387281/82/83  Fax No.: 011-26387384

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:

S. Name and Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover of
No. main products / services Product/ service the Company

1. Flavoured Milk, Cream, Milk and Mixes 10509 100%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S. Name and Address of the CIN Holding/ % of Applicable
No. Company Subsidiary/ shares Section

Associate held

1. Amrit Banaspati Company U51909UP1985PTC056366 Holding *62.47 2(87)(ii)
Private Limited
A-95, Sector-65, Noida–201309 (UP)

2. Amrit Learning Limited U72900UP2001PLC026110 Subsidiary 100 2(87)
A-95, Sector-65, Noida–201309 (UP)

* The combined shareholding of Amrit Banaspati Company Pvt. Ltd. (“ABCPL”) and its subsidiaries, consequent to
restructuring of its subsidiaries under a Scheme of Amalgamation, has reached 69.92% of the paid-up share capital of
Amrit Corp. Ltd. (“the Company”).  The Company has become subsidiary of ABCPL w.e.f. 22.12.2021.



IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY)

i) Category-wise Shareholding

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning No. of Shares held at the end % Change
Shareholders of the year of the year during the

year

Demat Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total % of
total total

Shares Shares

A. Promoters
1. Indian

a. Individual/ HUF 6,47,209 – 6,47,209 21.30 6,47,209 – 6,47,209 23.23 1.93
b. Central Govt – – – – – – – – –
c. State Govt(s) – – – – – – – – –
d. Bodies Corp. 21,94,057 607* 21,94,664 72.23 19,48,220 – 19,48,220 69.93 (2.30)
e. Banks / FI – – – – – – – – –
f. Any Other – – – – – – – – –

Sub-total (A) 1 28,41,266 607* 28,41,873 93.53 25,95,429 – 25,95,429 93.16 (0.37)

2. Foreign
a. NRIs-Individuals – – – – – – – – –
b. Other-Individuals – – – – – – – – –
c. Bodies Corp. – – – – – – – – –
d. Banks / FI – – – – – – – – –
e. Any Other – – – – – – – – –

Sub-total (A) 2 – – – – – – – – –

Total Shareholding of 28,41,266 607* 28,41,873 93.53 25,95,429 – 25,95,429 93.16 (0.37)
Promoters (A)
(A) 1+ (A) 2

B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions

a. Mutual Funds 125 – 125 0.00 125 – 125 0.00 –
b. Banks/FI 1 150 151 0.00 1 150 151 0.00 –
c. Central Govt. – – – – – – – – –
d. State Govt (s) – – – – – – – – –
e. Venture Capital

Funds – – – – – – – – –
f. Insurance

Companies – – – – – – – – –
g. FIIs – – – – – – – – –
h. Foreign Venture

Capital Funds – – – – – – – – –
i. Others (specify) – – – – – – – – –

Sub-total (B) 1 126 150 276 0.01 126 150 276 0.01 –

2. Non-Institutions

a. Bodies Corp.
i. Indian 692 89 781 0.03 667 80 747 0.03  (0.01)
ii. Overseas – – – – – – – – –

b. Individuals
i. Individual

share holders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs.1 lakh 53,460 45,965 99,425 3.28 49,370 41,582 99,952 3.26 (0.02)

ii. Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
sharecapital in
excess of Rs
1lakh 13,500 – 13,500 0.44 13,500 – 13,500 0.48 0.04

(b1) NBFCs registered with
RBI 0.00 – 0.00 0.00 0.00 – 0.00 0.00 0.00



Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning No. of Shares held at the end % Change
Shareholders of the year of the year during the

year

Demat Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total % of
total total

Shares Shares

c. Others

i. NRI 848 241 1089 0.03 648 234 882 0.03 0.00

ii. Clearing Members 40 – 40 0.00 40 – 40 0.00  0.00

iii. IEPF 81,222 – 81,222 2.67 84,253 – 84,253 3.02 0.35

vi.Trusts 25 – 25 0.00 25 – 25 0.00 0.00

Sub-total (B) 2 1,49,787 46,295 1,96,082 6.45 1,48,503 41,896 1,90,399 6.82 0.37

Total Public Shareholding 1,49,913 46,445 1,96,358 6.46 1,48,629 42,046 1,90,675 6.84 0.37
(B) = (B) 1+(B) 2

C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs
& ADRs – – – – – – – – –

Grand Total (A+B+C) 29,91,179 47,052 30,38,231 100.00 27,44,058 42,046 *27,86,104 100.00 –

S. Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning Shareholding at the end of the year     %
No. Name of the year

No. of % of total % of shares No. of % of total % of shares % change
Shares Shares of Pledged/ Shares Shares of Pledged/ in share

the encumbered the encumbered holding
Company to total Company to total during

Shares Shares the year

1. Naresh Kumar Bajaj 61,447 2.02 — 61,447 2.21 — 0.18

2. Ashwini Kumar Bajaj 1,54,086 5.07 — 1,54,086 5.53 — 0.46

3. Vikram Kumar Bajaj 1,54,238 5.08 — 1,54,238 5.54 — 0.46

4. Vandana Bajaj 1,21,271 3.99 — 1,21,271 4.35 — 0.36

5. Jaya Bajaj 1,21,119 3.99 — 1,21,119 4.35 — 0.36

6. Sneha Jatia 12,546 0.41 — 12,546 0.45 — 0.04

7. Radhika  Jatia 13,659 0.45 — 13,659 0.49 — 0.04

8. Varun Bajaj 2,295 0.08 — 2,295 0.08 — 0.00

9. Arnav Bajaj 3,814 0.13 — 3,814 0.14 — 0.01

10. Amrit Banaspati Company Pvt. Ltd.* 15,76,027 51.87 — 17,40,527 62.47 — 10.60

11. Amrit Agro Industries Limited** 2,52,127 8.30 — — — — (8.30)

12. Navjyoti Residency Private Limited* 1,58,817 5.23 — — — — (5.23)

13. A K Bajaj Investment Pvt Ltd 2,07,693 6.84 — 2,07,693 7.45 — 0.62

14. Sunita  Mor 1,189 0.04 — 1,189 0.04 — 0.00

15. Anuradha Gupta 1,545 0.05 — 1,545 0.06 — 0.01

TOTAL 28,41,873 93.54 — 25,95,429 93.16 — 0.38

ii) Shareholding of Promoters

* The paid up equity share capital of the company decreased due to shareholding of Amrit Agro Industries Ltd cancelled in terms
of the Scheme of Amalgamation (“Scheme”) for amalgamation of Amrit Agro Industries Ltd. with the Company sanctioned by the
Hon’ble NCLT, Allahabad Bench, Prayagraj vide Order dated April 19, 2024 retrospectively from April 01, 2023 i.e Appointed date.

*The increase of shareholding of ABCPL in the Company is on account of transfer of shares of Navjyoti Residency Pvt. Ltd. under
the Scheme of Amalgamation and acquisition by ABCPL 5,683 equity shares of the Company under the delisting process.

** The shareholding of Amrit Agro Industries Ltd. cancelled under the Scheme of Amalgamation.



iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

S. Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding
No. of the year during the year

1. Mr. Naresh Kumar Bajaj No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of shares Shares of

the the
company company

At the beginning of the year 61,447 2.02 61,447 2.02

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in Nil Nil Nil Nil
Share holding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / (decrease) (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity, etc.)

At the end of the year 61,447 2.21 61,447 2.21

2. Mr. Ashwini Kumar Bajaj No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of shares Shares of

the the
company company

At the beginning of the year 1,54,086 5.07 1,54,086 5.07

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in Nil Nil Nil Nil
Share holding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / (decrease) (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity, etc.)

At the end of the year 1,54,086 5.53 1,54,086 5.53

3. Mr. Vikram Kumar Bajaj No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of shares Shares of

the the
company company

At the beginning of the year 1,54,238 5.08 1,54,238 5.08

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in Nil Nil Nil Nil
Share holding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / (decrease) (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity, etc.)

At the end of the year 1,54,238 5.54 1,54,238 5.54

4. Mrs. Vandana Bajaj No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of shares Shares of

the the
company company

At the beginning of the year 1,21,271 3.99 1,21,271 3.99

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in Nil Nil Nil Nil
Share holding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / (decrease) (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity, etc.)

At the end of the year 1,21,271 4.35 1,21,271 4.35



S. Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding
No. of the year during the year

5. Mrs. Jaya Bajaj No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of shares Shares of

the the
company company

At the beginning of the year 1,21,119 3.99 1,21,119 3.99

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in Nil Nil Nil Nil
Share holding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / (decrease) (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity, etc.)

At the end of the year 1,21,119 4.35 1,21,119 4.35

6. Mrs. Sneha Jatia No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of shares Shares of

the the
company company

At the beginning of the year 12,546 0.41 12,546 0.41

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in Nil Nil Nil Nil
Share holding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / (decrease) (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity, etc.)

At the end of the year 12,546 0.45 12,546 0.45

7. Mrs. Radhika Jatia No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of shares Shares of

the the
company company

At the beginning of the year 13,659 0.45 13,659 0.45

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in Nil Nil Nil Nil
Share holding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / (decrease) (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity, etc.)

At the end of the year 13,659 0.49 13,659 0.49

8. Mr. Varun Bajaj No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of shares Shares of

the the
company company

At the beginning of the year 2,295 0.08 2,295 0.08

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in Nil Nil Nil Nil
Share holding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / (decrease) (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity, etc.)

At the end of the year 2,295 0.08 2,295 0.08



S. Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding
No. of the year during the year

9. Mr. Arnav Bajaj No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of shares Shares of

the the
company company

At the beginning of the year 3,814 0.13 3,814 0.13

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in Nil Nil Nil Nil
Share holding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / (decrease) (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity, etc.)

At the end of the year 3,814 0.14 3,814 0.14

10. Amrit Banaspati Company Pvt. Ltd. No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of shares Shares of

the the
company company

At the beginning of the year 15,76,027 51.87 15,76,027 51.87

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in
Share holding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / (decrease) (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity, etc.) 1,64,500 10.60 1,64,500 10.60

At the end of the year 17,40,527 62.47 17,40,527 62.47

11. Amrit Agro Industries Limited No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of shares Shares of

the company the company

At the beginning of the year 2,52,127 8.30 2,52,127 8.30

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in
Share holding during the year specifying the (2,52,127) (8.30) (2,52,127) (8.30)
reasons for increase / (decrease) (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity, etc.)

{Shareholding decrease in terms of the Scheme of
Amalgamation of Amrit Agro with the Company}

At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

12. Navjyoti Residency Private Limited No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of shares Shares of

the company the company

At the beginning of the year 1,58,817 5.23 1,58,817 5.23

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in
Share holding during the year specifying the (1,58,817) (5.23) (1,58,817) (5.23)
reasons for increase / (decrease) (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity, etc.)
[Transfer due to Amalgamations of Navjyoti Residency
Private Limited with the Amrit Banaspati Co. Pvt. Ltd.]

[Shareholding decrease in terms of the Scheme of
Amalgamation of Navjyoti Residency Private Limited
with The Amrit Banaspati Co. Pvt Ltd]

At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

[The increase of shareholding of ABCPL in the
Company is on account of transfer of shares of Navjyoti
Residency Pvt. Ltd. under the Scheme of Amalgamation
and acquisition by ABCPL 5,683 equity shares of the
Company under the delisting process]



S. Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding
No. of the year during the year

13. A.K. Bajaj Investment Pvt. Ltd. No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of shares Shares of

the the
company company

At the beginning of the year 2,07,693 6.84 2,07,693 6.84

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in Nil Nil Nil Nil
Share holding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / (decrease) (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity, etc.)

At the end of the year 2,07,693 7.45 2,07,693 7.45

14. Mrs. Sunita Mor No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of shares Shares of

the the
company company

At the beginning of the year 1,189 0.04 1,189 0.04

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in Nil Nil Nil Nil
Share holding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / (decrease) (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity, etc.)

At the end of the year 1,189 0.04 1,189 0.04

15. Mrs. Anuradha Gupta No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of shares Shares of

the the
company company

At the beginning of the year 1,545 0.06 1,545 0.06

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in Nil Nil Nil Nil
Share holding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / (decrease) (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity, etc.)

At the end of the year 1,545 0.06 1,545 0.06



S. For each of Top 10 Shareholding at the Shareholding at the
No. Shareholders beginning of the year end of the year

Name of Shareholders No. of % of total No. of % of total of
Shares Shares of the shares Shares of

Company the Company

1. Atul Pratap Shah 1400 0.05 1400 0.05

2. Madhu Arora 13,500 0.44 13500 0.44

3. Mahesh Kumar Ratra 4,178 0.14 4178 0.14

4. Chandrakala Devi 1000 0.03 0 0.00

5. Anu Garg 2,925 0.10 2925 0.10

6. Ashok Kumar Garg 1,185 0.04 1185 0.04

7. Bhagwanchand Kohli 1,024 0.03 1024 0.03

8. Chunilal Jaipuria 962 0.03 962 0.03

9. Davinder Kumar Bhushan 1,300 0.04 1300 0.04

10. IEPF 81,122 2.67 84253 2.77

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs
and ADRs)

S. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

1. Mr. Naresh Kumar Bajaj No. of % of total No. of % of total of
Chairman & Managing Director Shares Shares of the shares Shares of the

Company Company

At the beginning of the year 61,447 2.02 61,447 2.02

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in Nil Nil Nil Nil
Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / (decrease)
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity, etc.)

At the end of the year 61,447 2.21 61,447 2.21

v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel



S. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

2. Mr. Ashwini Kumar Bajaj No. of % of total No. of % of total of
Managing Director Shares Shares of the shares Shares of the

Company Company

At the beginning of the year 1,54,086 5.07 1,54,086 5.07

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in Nil Nil Nil Nil
Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / (decrease)
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity, etc.)

At the end of the year 1,54,086 5.53 1,54,086 5.53

S. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

3. Mr. Vikram Kumar Bajaj No. of % of total No. of % of total of
Director Shares Shares of the shares Shares of the

Company Company

At the beginning of the year 1,54,238 5.08 1,54,238 5.08

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in Nil Nil Nil Nil
Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / (decrease)
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity, etc.)

At the end of the year 1,54,238 5.54 1,54,238 5.54

S. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

4. Mr. Girish Narain Mehra No. of % of total No. of % of total of
Director Shares Shares of the shares Shares of the

Company Company

At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in
Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons for
increase / (decrease)
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity, etc.) Nil Nil Nil Nil

At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil



S. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

7. Mr. Sundeep Aggarwal* No. of % of total No. of % of total of
Director Shares Shares of the shares Shares of the

Company Company

At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in
Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / (decrease)
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity, etc.) Nil Nil Nil Nil

At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

S. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

5. Mr. K. R. Ramamoorthy* No. of % of total No. of % of total of
Director Shares Shares of the shares Shares of the

Company Company

At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in
Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / (decrease)
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity, etc.) Nil Nil Nil Nil

At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

S. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

6. Mr. Mohit Satyanand* No. of % of total No. of % of total of
Director Shares Shares of the shares Shares of the

Company Company

At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in
Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / (decrease)
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity, etc.) Nil Nil Nil Nil

At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

*Ceased to hold as independent Directors on 31.03.2024 consequently to expiry of their 2nd term as
Independent Directors of the Company.



S. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

8. Mr. Sujal Anil Shah No. of % of total No. of % of total of
Director Shares Shares of the shares Shares of the

Company Company

At the beginning of the year — — — —

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in
Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / (decrease)
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity, etc.) — — — —

At the end of the year — — — —

S. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

9. Mrs. Ketaki Sood No. of % of total No. of % of total of
Director (Expired on 14.05.2023) Shares Shares of the shares Shares of the

Company Company

At the beginning of the year — — — —

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in
Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / (decrease)
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity, etc.) — — — —

At the end of the year — — — —

S. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

10. Mr. B.P. Maheshwari No. of % of total No. of % of total of
CFO Shares Shares of the shares Shares of the

Company Company

At the beginning of the year — — — —

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in
Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / (decrease)
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity, etc.) — — — —

At the end of the year — — — —



V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment:

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 183.07 56.48 – 239.55

ii) Interest due but not paid – – – –

iii) Interest accrued but not due – – – –

Total (i+ii+iii) 183.07 56.48 – 239.55

Change in Indebtedness
during the financial year

Addition 6,850.43 2.30 – 6,852.73
Reduction 6,775.03 0.60 – 6,775.63

Net Change 75.40 1.70 – 77.10

Indebtedness at the end
of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 258.47 58.18 – 316.65

ii) Interest due but not paid – – – –

iii) Interest accrued but not due – – – –

Total (i+ii+iii) 258.47 58.18 – 316.65

S. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

11. Mr. P. K. Das No. of % of total No. of % of total of
Company Secretary Shares Shares of the shares Shares of the

Company Company

At the beginning of the year – – – –

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in
Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / (decrease)
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity, etc.) – – – –

At the end of the year – – – –



 VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

S. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total
No. Amount

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Mr. N. K. Bajaj Mr. A. K. Bajaj
Chairman & Vice Chairman &
Managing Director Managing Director

1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions — 90.29 90.29

contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) — 11.68 11.68
Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under — — —
section 17(3) Income-tax
Act, 1961

2. Stock Option — — —

3. Sweat Equity — — —

4. Commission·

As a % of profit· — — —

 Others, specify — — —

5. Others-Contribution to Provident Fund — – –

TOTAL (A) — 101.97 101.97

B. Remuneration to other Directors

Independent Directors

S. Particulars of Name of Directors Total
No. Remuneration Amount

(Rs. in

Mr. K. R. Mr. Mohit Mr. Sundeep Mr. Sujal Mrs. Ketaki
Ramamoorthy** Satyanand** Aggarwal** Anil Shah Sood*

1.  Fee for attending
Board/Committee
Meetings 1.35 1.65 1.35 1.65 – 6.00

 Commission – – – – – –

 Others, please – – – – – –
specify

TOTAL 1 1.35 1.65 1.35 1.65 – 6.00

(*Expired on 14.05.2023)
**Ceased to hold as independent Directors on 31.03.2024 consequently to expiry of their 2nd term as Independent
Directors of the Company.

Lakhs)



Other Non-Executive Directors

S. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount
No. (Rs. in Lakhs)

Mr. V. K. Bajaj Mr. G. N. Mehra

2.  Fee for attending Board/
Committee Meetings 1.20 1.35 2.55

 Commission — — —

 Others, please specify — — —

TOTAL 2 1.20 1.35 2.55

TOTAL (B) = 1+2 8.55

Total Managerial Remuneration 110.52

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

S. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No.

Mr. P. K. Das Mr. B. P. Maheshwari Total Amount
Company Secretary CFO (Rs. in Lakhs)

1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions

contained in section 17(1)
of the Income-tax Act, 1961 21.07 23.67 44.74

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961 — — —

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income-tax
Act, 1961 — — —

2. Stock Option — — —

3. Sweat Equity — — —

4. Commission

 As a % of profit — — —
 Others, specify — — —

5. Others-Contribution to Provident Fund 2.11 2.37 4.48

TOTAL 23.18 26.04 49.22



VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type Section of the Brief Description Details of Penalty/ Authority Appeal
Companies Act Punishment/ (RD/ NCLT/ made, if any

Compounding fees Court)
imposed

A. COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment None

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment None

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment None

Compounding



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
AMRIT CORP. LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial
statements of AMRIT CORP. LIMITED (the
“Company”), which comprise the standalone balance
sheet as at March 31, 2024, the standalone statement
of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
Income), the standalone statement of changes in equity
and the standalone statement of cash flows for the year
then ended and a summary of material accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as the “standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, “Ind AS” and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2024 and its profit and total
comprehensive, changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial
statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the
companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial
statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies

Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the standalone financial
statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial
Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis and Director’s
Report, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of these
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance,
including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in



accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the  standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the
Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls
relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of
management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.



We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the
Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based
on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows
dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed   under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rule 2015, as
amended.

e) On the basis of the written   representations
received   from   the   directors   as   on March
31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed

as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be
included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the  requirements of section 197(16) of
the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us,
the remuneration paid by the Company to its
directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be
included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact
of pending litigation on the financial
position in its financial statement – Refer
Note 35 to the financial statement;

ii. The Company did not have any long-
term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented
that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by



the Company to or in any other person
or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether  recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b)The Management has represented,
that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been
received  by the Company from any
person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the  Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that
have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain
any material misstatement.

v. (a) The final dividend proposed in the
previous year, declared and paid by the
Company during the current year is in
accordance with Section 123 of the Act,
as applicable.

(b) The Board of Directors of the
Company have proposed final dividend
for the year which is subject to the
approval of the members at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. The amount of
dividend proposed is in accordance with

section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

vi. The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 is applicable from 1 April 2023.

Based on our examination which included
test checks, the Company has used
accounting softwares for maintaining its
books of account, which have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility. The
audit trail facility has been in operation from
4th August 2023 and the same has
operated throughout the remaining year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the
respective software.

Further, we did not come across any
instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with.

For Mukesh Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 011393N
UDIN: 24521860BKFQRG2305

(Rishi Mittal)
Place : Noida Partner
Date  : June 10, 2024 Membership No.

521860

ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading of
“Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date)

i. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and
Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and
situation of property, plant and
equipment and relevant details of right-
of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.



(b) The company has a phased program of
physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the company and
the nature of its assets. In accordance with such
program, the management has physically
verified its property, plant and equipment
during the year and according to the information
and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) The title deeds of all immovable properties
(other than properties where the company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed
in the standalone financial statements included
under Property, Plant and Equipment are held
in the name of the Company as at the balance
sheet date.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its
Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-
of-use assets) and intangible assets during
the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during
the year or are pending against the Company
as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended, and rules
made thereunder.

ii. (a) According to the information and explanations
given to us, physical verification of inventories
is conducted by the management at periodic
intervals. The procedures followed by the
company for physical verification of inventories
are reasonable and adequate in relation
to the size of the company and the nature
of i ts business and according to the
information and explanations given to us no
discrepancies of 10% or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventory were
noticed on such verification.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores,
in aggregate, at any point of time during the

year, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets and hence
reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is
not applicable.

iii. The Company has made investments and
granted loans, but has not provided any guarantee
or security or granted any advances in the nature
of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties, during the year.

(a) In respect of loan provided during the year,
the details are given below:

Particulars Amount
in lakhs

Aggregate amount of loans
granted (including loans
renewed), during the year.

- Wholly Owned Subsidiary 585.00

- Others 50.00

Balance outstanding as at
Balance Sheet date in
respect of above loans:-

- Subsidiary 585.00

- Others 50.00

(b) In our opinion, the investments made and the
terms and conditions of the grant of loans
during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial
to the Company’s interest.

(c) In respect of loans granted by the Company,
the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated and
the repayments of principal amounts and
receipts of interest are generally been regular
as per stipulation.

(d) In respect of loans granted by the Company
during earlier years, there is no overdue
amount remaining outstanding as at the
balance sheet date.

(e) No loan granted by the Company which has
fallen due during the current year, has been



renewed or extended or fresh loans granted
to settle the overdues of existing loans given
to the same parties, except the following:

Name Aggregate Percentage of
of the amount of the aggregate
party loan settled to the total

by renewal loans granted
of loan to the during the
same party year

Sav v y 50.00 7.87%
Constructions

Pvt. Ltd.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying
any terms or period of repayment during the
year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is
not applicable.

iv. The transactions in respect of loans covered under
section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 have
been duly complied with by the Company. In
respect of loans and investments covered under
section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
provisions of the section 186 have been duly
complied with.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposit or
amounts which are deemed to be deposits.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is
not applicable.

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been
specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013 for the business activities carried out by the
Company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(vi) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vii. In respect of statutory dues:

(a) In our opinion, the Company has generally
been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including Goods and Services tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income Tax, duty of Custom, Cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to it with
the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income Tax, duty  of Custom, Cess and other
material statutory dues in arrears as at March
31, 2024 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-
clause (a) above, which have not been
deposited as on March 31, 2024 on account
of disputes are given below:

Name Nature of Amount Period to Forum
of the dues  (Rs. which where
statutes Lakhs) amount dispute is

relates to pending
(Assessment
Year)

Income Income Tax 299.52 2012-13 CIT(A)
Tax
Act, 1961

Income Income Tax 2.14 2015-16 CIT(A)
Tax
Act, 1961

viii. There were no transactions relating to previously
unrecorded income that have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ix. In respect of loans and borrowings:

a) The Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b) The Company has not been declared wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

c) The term loans were applied for the purposes
for which the loans were obtained.

d) On an overall examination of the standalone
financial statements of the Company, funds
raised on short- term basis have, prima facie,
not been used during the year for long-term
purposes by the Company.

e) On an overall examination of the standalone
financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any



entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiary.

f) According to the information and explanations
given to us and procedures performed by
us, we report that the company has not raised
loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiary.

x. In respect of IPO / FPO and Private Placement /
Preferential Allotment:

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by
way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year
and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made
any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully or
partly or optionally) and hence reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi. In respect of fraud and whistle blower complaints:

(a) No fraud by the Company and no fraud on
the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section
143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year
and upto the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the management,
there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

xiii. In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with
Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 to the extent applicable, with respect to
applicable transactions with the related parties and
the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the standalone financial statements
as required by the applicable Indian Accounting
Standards.

xiv. In respect of Internal Audit System:

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate
internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports
for the year under audit, issued to the
Company till date, in determining the nature,
timing and extent of our audit procedures.

xv. In our opinion during the year the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
Directors or persons connected with its directors
and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

xvi. In respect of registration with RBI and reporting
for Core Investment Company:

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required
to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment
company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order
is not applicable.

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during
the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory
auditors of the Company during the year.

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the standalone financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet



as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

xx. In respect of unspent amount towards CSR :

(a) There are no unspent amounts towards
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on
“other than  ongoing projects” requiring a
transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to
the Companies Act, 2013 in compliance with
second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section
135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not
applicable for the year.

(b) The company has no “ongoing projects” in
relation to CSR. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable
for the year.

For Mukesh Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 011393N
UDIN: 24521860BKFQRG2305

(Rishi Mittal)
Place : Noida Partner
Date  : June 10, 2024 Membership No.

521860

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading
of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of Amrit Corp. Ltd. (the “Company”)

as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of Ind
AS standalone financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal
Financial Controls

The Management of the Company is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness



exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained,
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of standalone financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the standalone financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the  possibility
of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the Company has in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the criteria
for internal financial control over financial reporting
established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For Mukesh Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 011393N
UDIN: 24521860BKFQRG2305

(Rishi Mittal)
Place : Noida Partner
Date  : June 10, 2024 Membership No.

521860



BALANCE SHEET as at 31st March, 2024
(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No. As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

I . ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 3,866.71 2,540.00
(b) Capital work in progress 2 29.30 840.21
(c) Intangible assets 3
(d) Intangible assets under Development 3(i) - 27.64
(e) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 4 11,451.23 10,245.68
(ii) Loans 5 585.00 -
(iii) Others 6 72.03 69.32

(f) Other non-current assets 7 270.45 329.86

2 Current assets
(a) Inventories 8 1,273.78 1,225.24
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 9 7,182.01 5,257.02
(ii) Trade receivables 10 637.47 532.00
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 179.88 267.08
(iv) Other Bank Balances 12 1,108.95 464.10
(v) Loans 13 50.00 50.00
(vi) Others 14 287.80 233.61

(c) Other Current Assets 15 71.80 140.27

TOTAL ASSETS 27,066.41 22,222.03

I I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity

(a) Equity Share Capital 16 278.61 303.82
(b) Instruments in the nature of equity-7% Optionally 16 637.23 -

Convertile Redeemable Preference Share Issued under
the scheme (Pending Allotment)

(c) Other Equity 17 23,684.60 19,865.40

2 Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 18 107.83 87.59
(b) Deferred tax Liabilities (Net) 19 912.38 275.21
(c) Other non-current liabilities 20 - 2.29
(d) Provisions 21 84.68 82.66

Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 22 208.83 154.27
(ii) Lease Liability 23 - 39.62
(iii) Trade payables 24

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise 47.11 63.24
and small enterprises

(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises 96.83                 209.57

(iv) Other financial liabilities 25 340.71 266.94
(b) Other Current Liabilities 26 466.82 712.39
(c) Provisions 27 200.78 159.03

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 27,066.41 22,222.03

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

In terms of our report of even date                                              On behalf of the Board

For Mukesh Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 011393N
UDIN: 24521860BKFQRG2305
Rishi Mittal, Partner
Membership No. 521860
Place : Noida
Date  : June 10, 2024

N.K. Bajaj A.K. Bajaj
Chairman & Managing Director Vice Chairman & Managing  Director

B.P. Maheshwari P.K. Das
President (F&A) & Sr. Vice President (Corp.)
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary



STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS for the year ended 31st March, 2024
(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No. For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

I. Revenue From Operations 28 12,651.29 10,764.96

II. Other income 29 3,697.02 785.48

III. Total Income (I + II) 16,348.31 11,550.44

IV. Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 7,328.81 7,043.52
Changes in inventories of finished goods 30 21.59 (70.19)
Employee benefits expense 31 1,543.91 1,276.01
Finance costs 32 14.47 161.97
Depreciation and amortization expense 1 & 3 360.13 275.08
Other expenses 33 3,247.40 2,934.09

Total expenses (IV) 12,516.31 11,620.48

V. Profit before exceptional items and tax (III-IV) 3,832.00 (70.04)

VI. Exceptional Items - -

VII. Profit before tax (V - VI) 3,832.00 (70.04)

VIII. Tax expense: 34
(1) Current tax 200.12 20.40
(2) Deferred tax 637.53 (108.75)

IX Profit (Loss) for the year 2,994.35 18.31

X Other Comprehensive income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (16.62) (44.77)

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss - -

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 7.14 (107.66)
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be

reclassified to profit or loss (1.80) 27.10

Other Comprehensive income (A+B) (11.28) (125.33)

XI Total Comprehensive Income for the year (IX+X) 2,983.07 (107.02)

XII Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 each):
- Basic 107.47 0.60
- Diluted 89.65 0.60

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements

In terms of our report of even date On behalf of the Board
For Mukesh Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 011393N
UDIN: 24521860BKFQRG2305
Rishi Mittal, Partner
Membership No. 521860

Place : Noida
Date  : June 10, 2024

N.K. Bajaj A.K. Bajaj
Chairman & Managing Director Vice Chairman & Managing  Director

B.P. Maheshwari P.K. Das
President (F&A) & Sr. Vice President (Corp.)
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary



(B) Other Equity

Particulars Preference Capital Capital Revaluation General Retained Debt instruments
Share Capital Redemption Reserve Reserve Reserve Earnings through other

Redemption Reserve comprehensive
Reserve  income

a. Balance at the beginning of the reporting
period 01st April 2022 40.50 17.50 - 64.29 11,323.99 8,727.52 26.50

b. Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - (26.46) (80.56)

c. Dividend on equity shares for FY 2021-22 - - - - - (227.87) -

d. Transfer to retained earnings - - - - 750.00 (750.00) -

Balance at the year end of the 31.03.2023 40.50 17.50 - 64.29 12,073.99 7,723.19 (54.06)

a. Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 40.50 17.50 - 64.29 12,073.99 7,723.19 (54.06)

b. Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 2,977.73 5.34

c. Dividend on equity shares for FY 2022-23 - - - - - (121.53) -

d. On account of Amalgamation - - 957.65 - - - -

e. Transfer to retained earnings - - - - 750.00 (750.00) -

Balance at the year end of the 31.03.2024 40.50 17.50 957.65 64.29 12,823.99 9,829.39 (48.72)

Notes:

1 Dividend : The Board of directors have recommend payment of dividend of Rs.6.00 per equity share of Rs.10/- each (i.e. 60%) for the financial year ended March 31, 2024  as
against dividend of Rs.4.00 per equity share of Rs.10/- each (i.e. 40%) paid for the year ended March 31, 2023. This dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders at the
next annual general meeting and is not recognized as liability in these Financial Statements.

2 Reserves & Surplus consist as under:-

i) Capital Redemption Reserve:-

(a) Preference Share Capital Redemption Reserve :- This Reserve has been created against redemption of 15% Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.10/-each
aggregating to Rs.40.50 lakhs on 28th September,2005.

(b) Capital Redemption Reserve:- Upon buy back of 1,75,000 Equity Shares of the face value of Rs.10/- by the Company and extinguishment therof in terms of the
provisions of Sections  68-70 of the Companies Act,2013 and SEBI (Buy Back of Securities) Regulations,2018, on August 7,2020, Capital Redemption Reserve
of Rs.17.50 lakhs has been created.

(c) Capital Reserve:- In terms of the Scheme of Amalgamation (“Scheme”) for amalgamation of Amrit Agro Industries Ltd. (“Amrit Agro”) with the Company sanctioned
by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench at Prayagraj vide order dated 19.04.2024, all the assets and liabilities of Amrit Agro have been
transferred to the Company retrospectively w.e.f. the Appointed Date, “01.04.2023”. The excess of assets and liabilities of Rs.957.65 lakhs has been treated as
Capital Reserve and transferred to the Capital Reserve Account.

The Reserve can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,2013;

ii) Revaluation Reserve – This Reserve represents the difference of the revalued land and the consideration paid for the same;

iii) General Reserve – This Reserve has been created by appropriation from retained earnings, not being an item of other comprehensive income in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act,2013;

iv) Retained Earnings – This Reserve represents the cumulative profits of the Company and the effects of measurements of defined benefit obligations. This Reserve can
be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,2013;

v) Debt Instrument through other Comprehensive Income – This Reserve represents cumulative gains (net of losses) on the debt instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income and the net amounts will be reclassified to retain earnings when these debt instruments are disposed off/ redeemed.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements

In terms of our report of even date On behalf of the Board

For Mukesh Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 011393N
UDIN: 24521860BKFQRG2305
Rishi Mittal, Partner
Membership No. 521860

Place : Noida
Date  : June 10, 2024

(Amount in Lakhs)(A) Equity Share Capital

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 303.82 303.82

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors - -

Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period 303.82 303.82

Less: Shares cancelled on account of amalgation during the year (25.21) -

Shares bought back during the year - -

Closing Balance 278.61 303.82

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  for the period ended 31st March, 2024

(Amount in Lakhs)

N.K. Bajaj A.K. Bajaj
Chairman & Managing Director Vice Chairman & Managing Director

B.P. Maheshwari P.K. Das
President (F&A) & Sr. Vice President (Corp.)
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary



CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended 31st March, 2024

(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
(A) Cash flow from Operating Activities

Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax 3,832.00 (70.04)
Add: (Profit)/Loss on sale of Assets - Net 15.82 (32.67)

(Profit) / Loss on sale of investment - Net (462.20) (71.70)
Unrealised (gains)/ Loss  on investments carried at fair (2,310.41) 222.37
value through statement of profit and loss
Depreciation and amortization expense 360.13 275.10
Reversal of Provision against investment - (61.02)
Interest Paid 14.47 161.97
Interest Received (614.35) (671.99)
Dividend Received (97.06) (118.22)

Operating Profits before working Capital changes 738.40 (366.20)
Adjustment for:
Change in Trade Payable & other Current Liabilities (348.50) 744.04
Change in Inventories (48.54) (340.13)
Change in Trade receivable (105.47) (182.70)
Change in Short Term Borrowings 50.70 35.39
Change in Loans & Advances (610.80) 100.85

Cash generation from Operating Activities (324.21) (8.75)
Less: Income Tax paid (18.32)     (305.90)         (170.02)         161.27

Net Cash generation from Operating Activities

(B) Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Interest Income 614.35 649.24
Dividend Income 97.06 118.22
Purchase of Fixed Assets / Capital WIP (871.91) (1,604.38)
Movement in Loans & Advance (771.06) 24.51
(Purchase) / Sale of Investment (Net) 1,158.45 3,543.16
Sale of Fixed Assets 25.94 50.27
Net Cash from Investing Activities 252.83 2,781.02

(C) Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Interest Paid (14.47) (161.97)
Proceeds from long term Borrowing 20.23 (2,554.10)
Movement in Other Non Current Liability & Lease Liability (2.29) 0.06
Movement in Leave Encashment 19.30 27.44
Payment of Dividend (121.53) (227.87)
Movement in Gratuity 24.48 7.36
Net Cash flow in Financing Activities (74.28) (2,909.09)
Net increase decrease in cash & cash equaivalants (127.35) 33.20
Opening Balances
Cash and Cash equivalents 267.08 203.64
Overdraft facility from bank (130.61) (100.36)

Closing Balances
Cash and Cash equivalents 179.88 267.08
Overdraft facility from bank (170.76) (130.61)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

In terms of our report of even date                                                On behalf of the Board

For Mukesh Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 011393N
UDIN: 24521860BKFQRG2305

Rishi Mittal, Partner
Membership No. 521860

Place : Noida
Date  : June 10, 2024

N.K. Bajaj A.K. Bajaj
Chairman & Managing Director Vice Chairman & Managing  Director

B.P. Maheshwari P.K. Das
President (F&A) & Sr. Vice President (Corp.)
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary



NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate information

Amrit Corp. Limited (the Company) is a public limited Company incorporated and domiciled in India and has
its Registered office in Ghaziabad, State of Uttar Pradesh, India. The Company is engaged in producing &
distribution of “Dairy Milk/ Milk Products”.

2. Material accounting policies

i) Basis of preparation of standalone financial statements

(a) Compliance with Ind AS:-These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) as prescribed under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended.

(b) Historical Cost Convention: -These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost
basis, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below:

 Certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value; and

 Defined Benefit Plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Division II of Schedule III to the Act. Based
on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as
twelve months for the purpose of current / non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

ii) Summary of material accounting policies

(a) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements inconformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

(b) Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

A. Tangible Assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment
loss, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. The cost of assets under installation or under construction also includes direct expenses
incurred till the Balance Sheet date and is shown as capital work-in-progress.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.



Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:

I. Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method, as per the useful life of the assets
specified in Schedule II of the Act or based on technical estimate made by the Company.

II. Where cost of a part of the asset is significant to total cost of the asset and useful life of that
part is different from the useful life of the remaining asset, useful life of that significant part is
determined separately based on technical estimate made by the Company. The significant
assets identified are depreciated separately.

III. In respect of assets added/ sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed during the year
depreciation on such assets is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of such additions
or as the case may be, up to the date on which such asset has been sold, discarded,
demolished or destroyed.

IV. The Company has estimated the residual value @ 5% of original cost for all assets. Estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed annually, taking into
account commercial and technological obsolescence as well as normal wear and tear and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. The Management estimates the useful lives for the
assets as follows:

Particulars No. of Years

Administrative Building 60 years

Plant and Machinery* 10-20 years

Office equipment 5 years

Computer 3 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Vehicles 8 years

Electric Installation 10 years

Tubewells 5 years

Server 6 years

Solar Power Plant 15 years

*Based on internal technical evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives as
given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these
assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets are different from the useful lives as prescribed
under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013.*Based on internal technical evaluation,
the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the period
over which management expects to use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for these
assets are different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the
Companies Act 2013.

B. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
brands acquired comprises its purchase price, including any duties and other taxes (other than
those subsequently recoverable by the enterprise from the taxing authorities) and any directly
attributable expenditure on their acquisition.



In the case of computer software, the cost of software purchased, comprises its purchase price,
including any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by the
enterprise from the taxing authorities) and any directly attributable expenditure on making the
software ready for its use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.
Intangible assets i.e. computer software is amortized over a period of 36 months subsequent
to its purchase on straight line basis.

The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

Expenditure on research is recognized as an expense when it is incurred. Development costs
of products are also charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss unless all the criteria for
capitalization as set out on Paragraph 21 and 22 of Ind AS 38 have been met by the Company.

(c) Impairment of assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying value of assets for any possible
impairment. An impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined as higher of the asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Assessment is done at each Balance
Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in
prior accounting period may no longer exist or may have decreased. An impairment loss is reversed
to the extent that the assets carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined if no impairment loss had previously been recognised.

(d) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset/s and the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset/s, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

 At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”)
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases
with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term
and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease
plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment
if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.



Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the
contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

(e) Inventories

(i) Finished Good

Stock of manufactured finished goods is valued at cost or at market value, whichever is lower. In
the case of finished goods, cost is determined by taking material, labour and related factory
overheads including depreciation and fixed production overheads, which are apportioned on
the basis of normal capacity.

(ii) Work-in-progress

Work in progress is valued at raw material cost plus cost directly incurred till the date of balance
sheet.

(iii) Raw material, stores, spares and loose tools are valued at cost. Cost is determined by using the
FIFO method.

(iv) Stock in trades are valued at cost or at market value, whichever is lower. The cost in such cases
is valued at the purchase cost using FIFO method.

(f) Foreign exchange transactions and translation

Transactions in foreign currencies i.e., other than the Company’s functional currency of Indian Rupees
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise except for exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign
currency risks.

(g) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use while pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.



All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments that are quoted in active markets are determined on the
basis of quoted price for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined
on the basis of net asset value as per last available audited financial statements.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the fair value
is determined using discounted cash flow method with the most significant inputs being the discount
rate that reflects the credit risk of the counter-party.

The fair value of trade receivables, trade payables and other current financial assets and liabilities is
considered to be equal to the carrying amounts of these items due to their short-term nature.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuer’s are involved for valuation of significant assets, liabilities, such as, Gratuity etc.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the
fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in
the relevant notes.

 Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions- Note 45

(h) Financial Assets:

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

The financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss are recognised initially at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed through the
Statement of Profit and Loss. However, Trade receivable that don’t contain a significant financing
component are measured at transaction price.

(ii) Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, the Company classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

 those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and

 those measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in Statement of Profit and Loss or other comprehensive
income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in



which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on
whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through profit & loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

- Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on
a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method.

- Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses and interest revenue which are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. When
the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
OCI is reclassified from equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

- Fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value
through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at
fair value through Profit or Loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other
income.

(iii) Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when:

 the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or

 the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows to one or more recipient.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the
financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the company
has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the
financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement
in the financial asset.



(i) Financial Liabilities

i. Classification as liability or equity: Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the
Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

ii. Initial recognition and measurement: Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially
measured at the amortised cost unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value
through profit or loss.

iii. Subsequent measurement: Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value  recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

iv. Derecognition: A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to
the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are usually unsecured. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within twelve months
after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect
of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to their present value
and are determined based on best management estimate required to settle the obligation at
each Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and are adjusted to
reflect the current best management estimates.

Contingent Liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond
the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability
but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

(j) Revenue recognition

i. Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when an entity transfers the control of goods to customers at an amount
that the entity expects to receive in exchange for those goods. Volume discounts and incentives
to customers are accounted for as reduction of revenue based on the allocation of the discounts/
incentives amount to each of the underlying performance obligation. when the level of discount
varies with increases in levels of revenue transactions, the company recognizes the liability
based on its estimate of the customer’s future purchases If it is probable that the criteria for the



discount will not be met, or if the amount thereof cannot be estimated reliably, then discount is not
recognized until the payment is probable and the amount can be estimated reliably. The company
recognizes changes in the estimated amount of obligations for discounts in the period in which
the change occurs.

ii. Interest income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate method.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. While
calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected
credit losses.

iii. Rental income

Rental income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on
a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

iv. Dividend Income

Dividends from investments are recognized in profit or loss when the right to receive payment
is established.

(k) Retirement and Other Employee Benefits

(a) Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering service are classified
as short-term employee benefits. Benefits like salaries, wages, short term compensated
absences etc. and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognized in the period in which
the employee renders the related service.

(b) Post-Employment Benefits

(i) Defined Contribution Plans: The State governed provident fund scheme, employee
state insurance scheme and employee pension scheme under the PF Act are defined
contribution plans. The contribution paid/payable under the schemes is recognized during
the period in which the employee renders the related service.

(ii) Defined Benefit Plans: Defined benefit plans of the company comprise employee’s
gratuity fund schemes managed by a Trust/SBI Life and Employees Provident Fund for
senior employees managed by the Trust. The Provident Fund Trust set up by the company
is treated as defined benefit plan since the minimum interest payable by the Provident
Fund Trust to the beneficiaries is notified every year by the Government and the company
has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the return on respective
investments of the Trust and the notified interest rate. Accordingly, the contribution paid or
payable and the interest shortfall, if any, is recognized as an expense in the period in which
the services are rendered by the employee.

Wherever applicable, the present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plans
is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which
recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.



The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The
discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit
plans, is based on the market yields on Government securities as at the Balance Sheet
date, having maturity periods approximating to the terms of related obligations.

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans, comprising of actuarial gains or losses are
recognised immediately in balance sheet with corresponding debit or credit to other
comprehensive income. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
period.

In case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation
under the defined benefit plans to recognize the obligation on net basis.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognized
when the curtailment or settlement occurs.

(c) Long Term Employee Benefits

Entitlements to annual leave, casual leave and sick leave are recognized when they accrue to
employees. Sick leave and casual leave can be availed during the period while earned leave
can be availed or encashed once it exceeds maximum number of accumulation of leave. The
company determines the liability for such accumulated leave using the projected unit credit
method with actuarial valuation being carried out at each Balance Sheet date in the similar manner
as in the case of defined benefit plans as mentioned in (b) (ii) above.

(d) The company does not en-cash leave which has been accumulated up to specified period.
Such leaves have been classified as long-term employee benefits. Such leave accumulated at
each accounting period are carried forward to the next accounting period.  Leave other than
specified leave is encashable. There are no other en-cashable short-term benefits. The other
staff benefit schemes will be provided according to respective laws in respect of employees as
and when these schemes will become applicable to the company.

(l) Income taxes

(i) Current tax

Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the
year. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary
differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences could be utilized. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that



affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax
assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax for the year

Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the deferred tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

(m) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

(n) Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts
or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated. The cash flow statement is part of   financial statements of the company.

(o) Earnings Per share

i. Basic Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

 the profit attributable to owners of the Company.

 by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year.

ii. Diluted Earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

 the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and

 the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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6 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Other Financial Assets As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

a. Security Deposits
Unsecured, considered good
- Others 46.28 46.38
- Related parties (Refer 6A) 25.75 22.94

72.03 69.32

6A Details of Security Deposits to Related Party

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

Kamal Apparels Pvt. Ltd. (Security Deposit) 25,75 22.94

Total 25.75 22.94

7 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Other Non-Current Assets As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

a. Capital Advances
- Unsecured , Considered Good 210.55 24.53
- Unsecured , Considered Doubtful - 210.55
Less: Provision - (210.55)

b. Advances other than Capital advances
- With Statutory Authority 59.90 303.35

c. Other non current assets
- Deferred Rent - 1.98

Total 270.45 329.86

5 LOANS

LOANS As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

a. Inter Corporate Deposit
Unsecured, considered good
- Related parties 585.00 -

585.00 -



8 INVENTORIES

Inventories As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

a. Raw Materials and components 609.18 587.44

b . Finished goods 179.41 201.00

d. Stores and spares 485.19 436.80

Total 1,273.78 1,225.24

Valuation of Inventories

(i) Finished Goods:

Stock of manufactured finished goods is valued at cost or at net realisible value, whichever is lower. In the
case of finished goods, cost is determined by taking material, labour and related factory overheads
including depreciation and fixed production overheads, which are apportioned on the basis of normal
capacity.

(ii) Work in Progress

Work in progress is valued at raw material cost plus cost directly incurred till the date of balance sheet.

(iii) Raw material, stores, spares and loose tools are valued at cost , cost is determined by using the yearly
weighted average method.

(iv) Stock in trades are valued at cost or at market value, whichever is lower. The cost in such cases is valued
at the purchase cost using FIFO method.
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11 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents  As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

a. Balance with Banks
- In Current Accounts 175.94 261.90

b . Cash in hand 3.94 5.18

Total                         179.88 267.08

12 OTHER BANK BALANCES

Other bank balances   As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

a. Earmarked balances

- Unclaimed Dividends & others 22.49 27.64

-In Deposit Accounts (Refer Note 12A) 203.46 203.46

b . Balance with bank

In Deposit Accounts 883.00 233.00

(Original maturity period is more than 3 months
but upto 12 months)

Total 1,108.95 464.10

12A Out of the Earmarked Deposit Accounts, deposits of sum of Rs 190 lakh (Previous year Rs. 190 lakh have been
pledged as lien against margin for overdraft facility and sum of Rs 13.46 lakh (Previous year Rs. 13.46 lakh) have
been pledged as lien against margin for issuing Bank guarantee from Punjab National Bank.

13 CURRENT LOANS

Current loans As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

Other Loans
Unsecured, considered good
- Inter Corporate Deposits 50.00 50.00

 Total 50.00 50.00



14 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Other Current Financial Assets As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

Interest / Dividend Receivable 227.54 159.56

Balances with PMS/ Fund for investment 60.26 74.05

Total 287.80 233.61

15 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Other Current Assets As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

Employee advances 1.61 0.96

Prepaid expenses 29.95 23.66

Other advances 40.24 19.48

GST recoverable - 96.17

Total 71.80 140.27

Equity Share Capital As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Number Amount Number Amount
in Lakhs in Lakhs

Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 3,00,00,000 3,000.00 2,00,00,000 2,000.00
Redeemable Cumulative Preference 50,00,000 500.00 50,00,000 500.00
shares of Rs. 10/- each
7% Redeemable Preference 15,00,000 150.00 - -

3,65,00,000 3,650.00 2,50,00,000 2,500.00

Issued, Subscribed & Paid - up

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 30,38,231 303.82 30,38,231 303.82
Less: Shares cancelled on account of merger (2,52,127) (25.21) - -

7% Optionally Convertible Redeemable 63,72,265 637.23 - -
Preference Shares under the sceme pending
allotment

- Refer Notes No. E below & Note 38

Total 91,58,369 915.84 30,38,231 303.82

16  EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL



Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Number Amount Number Amount
in Lakhs in Lakhs

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 30,38,231 303.82 30,38,231 303.82

Shares cancelled on accounts of amalagamation (2,52,127) (25.21) - -

Any other movement - - - -

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 27,86,104 278.61 30,38,231 303.82

A Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding

C Shareholding of Promoters
Shares held by promoters as on 31.03.2024

Promoter Name No. of shares % of % Change
Total Shares during the year

Naresh Kumar Bajaj 61,447 2.21% 0.00%

Ashwini Kumar Bajaj 1,54,086 5.53% 0.00%

Vikram Kumar Bajaj 1,54,238 5.54% 0.00%

Vandana Bajaj 1,21,271 4.35% 0.00%

Jaya Bajaj 1,21,119 4.35% 0.00%

Radhika Jatia 13,659 0.49% 0.00%

Sneha Jatia 12,546 0.45% 0.00%

Arnav Bajaj 3,814 0.14% 0.00%

Varun Bajaj 2,295 0.08% 0.00%

Sunita Mor 1,189 0.04% 0.00%

Anuradha Gupta 1,545 0.06% 0.00%

Amrit Banaspati Company Private Limited* 17,40,527 62.47% 10.44%

AK Bajaj Investment Pvt. Ltd. 2,07,693 7.45% 0.00%

Amrit Agro Industries Ltd.** - - -

Total 25,95,429 93.16%

*The increase of shareholding of ABCPL in the Company is on account of transfer of shares of Navjyoti
Residency Pvt. Ltd. to it under the Scheme of Amalgamation and acquisition by ABCPL 5,683 equity shares of
the Company under the delisting process.

** The shareholding of Amrit Agro Imdustries Ltd cancelled under the scheme of Amalgamation {(Refer Note E (ii)}

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Number Amount Number Amount
in Lakhs in Lakhs

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year - - - -

Shares to be issue on account of merger 63,72,265 637.23 - -

Any other movement - - - -

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 63,72,265 637.23 - -

B Reconciliation of number of preference shares outstanding



 Name of Shareholder As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

No. of % of No. of % of
Shares held Holding Shares held Holding

M/s Amrit Banaspati Company Pvt. Ltd. 17,40,527 62.47% 15,76,027 51.87%

M/s Amrit Agro Industries Ltd. - 0.00% 2,52,127 8.30%

M/s Navjyoti Residency Pvt. Ltd. - 0.00% 1,58,817 5.23%

M/s A K Bajaj Investment Pvt. Ltd. 2,07,693 7.45% 2,07,693 6.84%

Shri Ashwini Kumar Bajaj 1,54,086 5.53% 1,54,086 5.07%

Shri Vikram Kumar Bajaj 1,54,238 5.54% 1,54,238 5.08%

Others (Less Than 5% of holding) 5,29,560 19.01% 5,35,243 17.62%

Total 27,86,104 100.00% 30,38,231 100.00%

D Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of aggregate shares in the company

E In terms of the Scheme of Amalgamation (“Scheme”) for amalgamation of Amrit Agro Industries Ltd. (“Amrit Agro”) with the
Company sanctioned by the Hon’ble NCLT, Allahabad Bench, Prayagraj vide Order dated April 19, 2024 and given effect to
restrospectively from April 01, 2023. (Appointed Date):

(i) The Authorized Share Capital of Amrit Agro has been clubbed with the Company and the increased Authorized Share
Capital of the Company now stands at Rs.3,650 lakhs divided into 3,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each and
65,00,000 Redeemable Preference Shares  of Rs.10/-;

(ii) the investment of Amrit Agro in the equity shares of the Company i.e. 2,52,127 equity shares of Rs.10/- each has been
cancelled in terms of the Scheme and, consequently, the face value of the said investment amounting to Rs.25.21 lakhs has
been reduced from the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company;

(iii) in consideration of the transfer and vesting of the business and undertaling of Amrit Agro with the Company under the
Scheme, the company has issued and allotted 63,72,265 - 7% Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference shares
(“OCRPS”) of the face value Rs.10/- each to the equity shareholders of Amrit Agro, whose names appeared in the register
of members on the Record Date i.e 10th May, 2024 in the ratio of exchange provided in the Scheme i.e. One (1) – 7% OCRPS
for every one (1) equity share of Amrit Agro.

F  The Company has not allotted any equity shares as fully paid-up during the period of 5 years immediately preceding 31st March,
2023 (i) pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash; or (ii) as bonus shares;

G  The Company has one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10/- each ranking pari passu in all respects including voting
rights and entitlements to dividend. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

H In accordance with Regulation 26 of the Delisting Regulations, the Promoter Acquirers provided exit opportunity to the remaining
public shareholders of the Company, who did not or were not able to participate in the Reverse Book Building Process or who
unsuccessfully tendered their equity shares in the Reverse Book Building Process and were holding Equity Shares in the Company
(“Residual Shareholders”), to tender their equity shares during a period of one year from the BSE Date of Delisting i.e. from June
03, 2022 to June 2, 2023 (“Exit Window”) at the delisting price of Rs.945/- per equity share on the terms and conditions as
contained in the Exit Letter of Offer. During the financial year 2023-24, 4,042 equity shares have been tendered by the Residual
Shareholders which have been acquired by the Promoter Shareholders. Consequently, the shareholding of the Promoter Shareholders
after giving effect to  cancellation of the holding of Amrit Agro, now stand at 93.16% of the paid-up equity share capital of the
Company. The Exit Window closed on June 2, 2023.

I During the year under review, the Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights nor granted stock options nor sweat
equity.
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18 NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS

Non-current borrowings As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

a. Secured
- Long Term maturities of vehicle loans (Refer Note 18A) 49.65 28.83

b. Unsecured
Security Deposits 58.18 58.76

Total 107.83 87.59

Note:

18A Vehicle loan(s) are secured by hypothecation of the vehicles purchased out of the said loans. The vehicle loan has
been taken for the period of 36 to 40 months at the rate varying from 8.50% to 9.50% on reducing balance.

19 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

(a) Deferred Tax Liabilities As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

Depreciation and amortisation 169.62 153.12
Unrealised gain on securities carried at fair value through
statement of profit and loss / OCI 886.98 301.80
Security Deposit received - (0.72)

Total (a) 1,056.60 454.20

(b) Deferred Tax Assets As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

Unpaid Bonus 6.30 7.45
Unpaid Earned Leave 47.93 41.64
Provision for Doubtful debts 85.14 129.60
Lease Rent Security Deposit Given 4.85 -

Total (b) 144.22 178.99

Net Deferred Tax (Assets) / Liabilities(a-b) 912.38 275.21



22 CURRENT BORROWINGS

Current  Borrowings As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

Secured

(a) Over Draft facility Punjab National Bank (Refer Note 22A) 130.54 130.61

(b) Working Capital  Kotak Mahindra Bank (Refer Note 22B) 40.22 -

(c) Current maturities of  vehicle loans (Refer Note 18A) 38.07 23.66

Total 208.83 154.27

NOTE:
22A - The Overdraft against fixed deposits (not  more than one year term) from Punjab National Bank  at the

interest rate of 1% more on FD rate placed with bank either payable on demand or  on the maturity of fixed
deposit, whichever is earlier.

22B - The working capital from Kotak Mahindra  Bank  at the interest rate of 8.50% p.a against pledged of Bonds
of NABARD with bank, payable on demand.

20 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other Non-Current Liabilities As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

Deferred Revenue on Security deposit - 2.29

Total - 2.29

21 NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS

Non-Current Provisions As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

Provision for employee retirement benefits

Leave Encashment 84.68 82.66

Total 84.68 82.66

23 CURRENT LEASE LIABILITY

Current Lease Liability As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

Lease Liability - 39.62

Total - 39.62



25 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Other Current Financial Liabilities As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

(a) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.09 0.02

(b) Unpaid Equity dividends/ redemption amount/ 22.49 27.64

fractional payment *

(c) Expense Payable 318.13 239.28

Total 340.71 266.94

* Not due for deposit to Investor Education & Protection Fund

24 TRADE PAYABLES

Trade  Payable As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

Trade Payables

- Due to MSMED Parties (Refer Note 41) 47.11 63.24

- Due to others 96.83 209.57

Total              143.94 272.81

Sr. Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments

Not due Less than 1-2 2-3 Morethan Total
1 year years years 3 years

(i) MSME as at 31st March 2024 - 47.11 - - - 47.11

as at 31st March 2023 - 63.24 - - - 63.24

(ii) Others as at 31st March 2024 - 96.83 - - - 96.83

as at 31st March 2023 - 209.57 - - - 209.57

(iii) Disputed dues -  MSME as at 31st March 2024 - - - - - -

as at 31st March 2023 - - - - - -

(iv) Disputed dues -  Others as at 31st March 2024 - - - - - -

as at 31st March 2023 - - - - - -

Total as at 31st March 2024 - 143.94 - - - 143.94

as at 31st March 2023 - 272.81 - - - 272.81

24 (a) Trade Payables
Trade Payable ageing schedule for year ended as on 31.03.2024 and 31.03.2023:



28A Revenue from sale of products

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

Amount in Lakhs

Manufacturing Goods
- Cream 1,791.45 1,851.63
- Flav.Milk 355.42 195.97
- Dairy based drinks 3,187.58 2,703.60
- Fruit preparations 49.19 37.71
- Tea beverage 40.32 10.76
- Milk 1,326.23 1,401.27
- Dairy Mixes 5,878.61 4,550.46
- Dairy based desserts 8.94 -
- Vegan Beverage 4.38 -

Total 12,642.12 10,751.40

28 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Revenue from operations consist of revenues from

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

Amount in Lakhs

Sale of products (Refer Note 28A) 12,642.12 10,751.40

Other operating revenues (Refer Note 28B) 9.17 13.56

Total 12,651.29 10,764.96

26 OTHER CURRENT PAYABLES

Other Current Payables As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

Statutory dues 61.31 35.34

Employees Balances & other exp. 19.38 16.85

Advances from customers & other Parties 386.13 660.20

Total 466.82 712.39

27 CURRENT PROVISIONS

Current Provisions As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

Provision for employee retirement benefits
- Leave Encashment 100.09 82.81

- Gratuity 100.69 76.22

Total 200.78 159.03



28B Other operating revenue

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

Amount in Lakhs

Sale of Scrap 9.17 13.56

Total 9.17 13.56

29 OTHER INCOME

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

Amount in Lakhs

Interest Income (refer 29 A) 614.35 671.99

Dividend Income 97.06 118.22

Gain on sale of investments -net

- Realised Gain / (Loss) 462.20 71.70

Unrealised Gain / (Loss) on investments carried at fair
value through statement of profit and loss 2,310.41 (222.37)

Gain on sale of fixed assets - 32.67

Rent - 1.46

Gain on exchange fluctuation - 47.93

Sundry Credit Balance written Back - 0.75

Other receipts 2.29 2.11

Provision made previous years no longer required 210.71 61.02

Total 3,697.02 785.48

29A Interest Income comprises interest from

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

Amount in Lakhs

On Fixed Deposit with Banks 59.65 31.86

On Non-Convertible Debentures 150.14 230.51

On Tax Free Bonds & other 261.86 261.72

On Inter Corporate Deposits 38.75 9.96

Other Investments 103.95 137.94

Total 614.35 671.99



30 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,  WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE

Particulars For the year For the year (Increase)/
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023 Decrease

Amount in Lakhs

Finished Goods

- Cream 35.53 49.31 13.78
- Flav.Milk 17.87 10.80 (7.06)
- Dairy based drinks 50.37 39.97 (10.40)
- Fruit preparations 0.31 2.62 2.31
- Tea beverage 2.61 0.91 (1.70)
- Milk 13.68 18.76 5.08
- Dairy Mixes 58.89 78.63 19.74
- Dairy based desserts 0.15 - (0.15)

Total 179.41 201.00 21.59

31 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

Amount in Lakhs

(a) Salaries, Wages & Bonus 1,276.80 1,084.87

(b) Contributions to Provident Fund and other funds 188.15 122.36

(c) Staff Welfare expenses 78.96 68.78

Total 1,543.91 1,276.01

32 FINANCE COSTS

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

Amount in Lakhs

Interest Expense on

- Financial liabilities 11.72 157.35

- Others 2.75 4.62

Total                        14.47 161.97



33 OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

Amount in Lakhs

Consumption of Stores, Chemicals & Others (refer 33A) 1,299.46 1,152.83

Power & Fuel consumed 639.14 586.87

Rent 1.53 2.75

Rates & taxes 9.37 14.06

Repairs to Buildings 30.33 28.98

Repairs to Machineries 227.44 198.64

Freight Outward 208.26 153.43

Payment to Auditors

- Audit fee 6.00 5.00

- Tax Audit fee 1.50 1.50

- Other Services 0.17 -

- Reim. of expenses 0.95 0.63

Payment to directors

- as sitting fees 10.00 8.41

- as travelling expenses 1.35 -

Advisory & Consultancy 91.16 67.32

PMS Expenses 52.50 143.94

Travelling Expenses 104.61 108.49

Sundry Balances written off - 0.37

Selling Expenses 76.87 68.25

Provision for Doubtful-Debts - 0.55

Loss on sale of Fixed Assets(net) 15.82 -

Loss on Sale of Store 9.20 17.99

CSR Expenses 24.60 22.00

Amalgamation Expense 24.10 -

Donation 10.78 2.85

Advertisement & Publicity 20.20 21.44

Other Expenses 382.06 327.78

Total 3,247.40 2,934.09

33A Stores & Chemicals & others consist of the following:

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

Amount in Lakhs

Chemical 45.22 57.94

Packing Material 1,028.02 918.52

Packing Expenses 225.72 175.85

Material Consumed (RITC) 0.50 0.53

Total 1,299.46 1,152.83



34 TAX EXPENSES

A. Amount recognised in profit & loss

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

Amount in Lakhs

Current Tax
- Income Tax for the year 245.99 -
- Prior period tax adj. (45.87) 20.40

Total current tax 200.12 20.40

Deferred Tax

- Deferred Tax for the year 637.53 (108.75)

Total Deferred tax 637.53 (108.75)

Total 837.65 (88.35)

B. Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

Amount in Lakhs

On items that will not be reclassified to profit & loss
- Remeasurement gains /(losses) on defined benefit plans - -

On items that will be reclassified to profit & loss
- Related to financial instruments (1.80) 27.10

Total (1.80) 27.10

C. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profits as follows:

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

Amount in Lakhs

Profit before tax 3,832.00 (70.06)

Income tax expenses 964.44 -

Effect of tax free / Non taxable income (73.49) (65.87)

Effect of different tax rate (125.65) -

Other difference 72.35 (22.48)

Total 837.65 (88.35)



35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(i) Contingent Liabilities
(a) Income Tax Act, 1961
(b) Income Tax Act, 1961

Total

*Refer Note 38(f)

** The contingent liability of Rs.192.63 lakhs has not been crystallized during the last 25 years.
Hence, the said contingent liability no longer subsist. The liability of Rs.1.41 Lakhs has been
adjusted by Income Tax Department while releasing refund during the year.

(c) The contingent liability regarding sale tax demand of Rs. 1.90 Lakh for the Assessment Year
1998-99 has not crystalized as no demand notice has been received by Amrit Agro during the
last 25 years and neither the order of the Assessing Authority nor of the Appellate Tribunal is
available in the records of the Company. Hence the Contingent liability no longer subsist.

(ii) Commitments Total Project WIP/Advances Balance Capital
Cost as on Commitment

31.03.2024 as on 31.03.2024

(a) Capital Commitment

- Food Unit Capex projects, namely, 48.50 26.94 21.56
SS Tank-SKL & Lunch Room

- Ashiana Landcraft Realty Pvt. Ltd. 222.68 210.55 12.13

(b) Non-Cancellable Commitments

36. In accordance with Regulation 26 of the Delisting Regulations, the Promoter Acquirers provided exit opportunity
to the remaining public shareholders of the Company, who did not or were not able to participate in the
Reverse Book Building Process or who unsuccessfully tendered their equity shares in the Reverse Book
Building Process and are currently holding Equity Shares in the Company (“Residual Shareholders”), to
tender their equity shares during a period of one year from the BSE Date of Delisting i.e. from June 03, 2022
to June 2, 2023 (“Exit Window”) at the current price of Rs.945/- per equity share on the terms and conditions
as contained in the Exit Letter of Offer. During the financial year 2023-24, 4,042 equity shares have been

2023-24 2022-23

299.52* -
2.14 196.18**

301.66 196.18

(Amt.  in Lakhs)

(Amt.  in Lakhs)

S. No. Particulars  2023-24 2022-23

(a) Emerging India Credit opportunities Fund-I 20.00 27.00

(b) EPIQ Capital II 310.00 277.50

(c) Kotak Pre IPO opportunities Fund-I 60.00 140.00

TOTAL 390.00 444.50

(Amt.  in Lakhs)



tendered by the Residual Shareholders which have been acquired by the Promoter Shareholders.
Consequently, the shareholding of the Promoter Shareholders after giving effect to cancellation of the holding
of Amrit Agro, now stands at 93.16% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company. The Exit Window
closed on June 2, 2023.

During the year under review, the Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights nor granted
stock options nor sweat equity.

37. The Company has a combined exposure of Rs. 198.83 Lakhs (including Rs. 141.66 Lakhs of Amrit Agro) on
account of commodity trade done on National Spot Exchange Ltd. (NSEL). NSEL has not been able to
adhere to its payment obligations. The Company has filed criminal complaint in Economic Offences Wing
(EOW), Delhi Police through M/s Mount Shikhar Commodities LLP (formerly known as Mount Shikhar
Commodities Pvt. Ltd.), Member – NSEL, which has been transferred to CBI, Mumbai..  NSEL and its
holding company, Financial Technologies (India) Ltd., name now changed to “63 Moons Technologies Ltd.”
(“63 Moons”) have been involved in litigations at various legal and other forums, including Supreme Court of
India, Bombay High Court, NCLT, CBI (EOW), SFIO etc. Orders were passed for amalgamation of NSEL
with its holding company and restraining the holding company from selling/alienating or creating third party
rights against its assets and investments, which have been challenged at higher forums. In the last order dated
30th April, 2019, the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India has set aside the judgment of Bombay High Court of
December 4, 2017 which approved the merger of scam tainted NSEL with its parent, 63 Moons. After this
judgment, there are serious question marks on the recovery of investors’ money. In view of uncertainty of
recovery, the Company made full provision of Rs. 201.03 Lakhs towards the above due in the financial year
2013-2014. In the course of time, some recoveries have been made which have been adjusted from the
provision of Rs. 201.03 lakhs (including Rs. 143.23 lakhs of Amrit Agro) and the amount outstanding as on
31.03.2024 stands at Rs. 198.83 Lakhs.

38. Scheme of Amalgamation:

(a) Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation (‘Scheme’) for amalgamation of Amrit Agro Industries Limited
(“Amrit Agro”) with the Company  sanctioned by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad
Bench at Prayagraj (“Hon’ble  NCLT”) vide order dated 19th April, 2024 in Company petition No. 25/
ALD/2023, the entire business, including all movable/ immovable & tangible/intangible properties,
investments, bank balances/cash-in-hand and provisions/liabilities together with all rights, interests, benefits
and obligations concerning the said business of the Amrit Agro have been transferred to and vested in the
Company as a going concern w.e.f. the Appointed Date i.e. 01.04.2023; The effective date of the
scheme is 26th April, 2024 being the date on which the said order of the Hon’ble NCLT was filed with
ROC by the Company.

(b) The Company has, in consideration of the transfer and vesting of the businesses of Amrit Agro with the
Company under the Scheme, issued and allotted 63,72,265 - 7% Optionally Convertible Redeemable
Preference shares (“OCRPS”) of the face value Rs.10/- each to the equity shareholders of Amrit Agro,
whose names appeared in the register of members on the Record Date i.e. 10th May, 2024 in the ratio
of exchange provided in the Scheme i.e. One (1) – 7% OCRPS for every one (1) equity share of Amrit
Agro. The OCRPS have been issued and allotted inter alia on the following terms & conditions mentioned
in the Scheme:

- Tenure of OCRPS shall not exceed 6 months from the date of allotment;

- The holders of OCRPS shall be entitled to a dividend of 7% p.a;

- The OCRPS will be convertible into two (2) equity share of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up for every
twenty-three (23) OCRPS held by shareholders, in one tranche at the option of the allotee(s) within
a period not exceeding Six (6) months from the date of allotment of OCRPS;



- In the event the allottee(s) of OCRPS choose not to convert the OCRPS, they will be compulsorily
redeemed by the Company at the fair value/price of Rs. 73.60 per OCRPS of Rs. 10/- each
including premium of Rs. 63.60/- per OCRPS determined by the Approved Valuer together with
the cumulative dividend;

- OCRPS will not be listed on any stock exchange;

- OCRPS shall be issued in dematerialized form and the equity shares arising on conversion shall also
be issued in dematerialized form;

- OCRPS shall be unsecured.

(c) The investment of the Amrit Agro in the equity shares of the company i.e., 2,52,127 equity shares of
Rs.10/- each has been cancelled in terms of the Scheme and consequently a sum of Rs. 46.64 lakhs
appearing in the books of the Amrit Agro as investment in the Company stands cancelled and extinguished;

(d) The amalgamation of Amrit Agro with the Company has resulted in transfer of assets and liabilities in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme retrospectively w.e.f. April 1, 2023 at the following summarized
values. The excess of assets and liabilities of Rs.957.65 lakhs has been treated as Capital Reserve and
transferred to the Capital Reserve Account.

(e) Authorized Share Capital
                                                                 Particulars  Amount in Lakhs

Non-Current Assets    

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment 18.23
(b) Non-Current Investments 1,470.79
(c) Other non-Current assets 20.03
(e) Deferred tax Assets (Net) 2.14

     1,511.19

Current Assets
(a) Current Investments 92.23
(b) Cash and cash equivalents 5.59
(c) Other Currents Assets 19.70

117.52

Total Assets 1,628.71

Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Provisions 0.30

    0.30
Current Liabilities
(a) Borrowing 3.86
(b) Other Financial Liabilities   7.22
(c) Provisions 0.02

(d) Other Current liabilities 1.00
12.10

Total Liabilities 12.40

Excess of assets over liabilities 1,616.31
Less:
Investment held in the Company by Amrit Agro 46.64
Cancel equity share of the Company (25.21) 21.43
OCRPS to be issued to Equity Share Holders of Amrit Agro 637.23

Capital Reserve 957.65



The Authorized Share Capital of Amrit Agro has been clubbed with the Authorized Share Capital of the

Company and, consequently, the Authorized Share Capital has increased from Rs.2,500 lakhs to Rs.3,650

lakhs divided into 3,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each and 65,00,000 Redeemable Preference

Shares of Rs.10/-;

(f) Contingent Liability

The Hon’ble NCLT in its order dated 19th April, 2024 as taken cognizance of the outstanding demand of

Rs. 299.52 lakhs for the Assessment Year 2012-13 reported to the Hon’ble NCLT by the Income Tax

Department through Assistant Commissioner of Income Tax, Circle 1 (1), C R Building, New Delhi,

having jurisdiction on Amrit Agro. The Company has filed an affidavit before the Hon’ble NCLT undertaking

that arising out said of the outstanding tax demand of Rs. 299.52 lakhs, the crystalized demand, if any,

would be duly paid by the Company. The outstanding demand has been duly contested in appeal which

is pending adjudication. The Company is confident that the said outstanding tax demand will not be

survive; however, it is being recognized as Contingent liability in the Notes to Account till appropriate

appeal order has been passed by the Income Tax appellate authority.

39. SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

The statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014, relating to the subsidiary company, Amrit Learning Ltd., together with Consolidated

Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024 are attached herewith and form part of this Annual

Report. In terms of the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Financial Statements of the

subsidiary company are available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company by any shareholders

of the Company. The Financial Statements of the subsidiary company and the related detailed information

shall be made available to the shareholders of the Company, seeking such information at any point of time, on

demand, free of cost. The Financial Statements are also available on the website of the Company and can be

accessed at www.amritcorp.com under ‘Investors Relations’.

40. The management has issued letters of confirmation by e-mail to the major parties for trade receivables, trade

payables & others for confirming their balances. Balance confirmations have been received from maximum

parties, except some parties whose outstanding are not material and some of whom are in dispute and/or

under litigation with the company.  The balances of such parties have been incorporated in the financial

statements at the value as per the books of account. The company, to the extent stated, has considered them

as good and necessary provisions have been made in respect of debtors/advances under litigation and

where recovery is considered doubtful.



42. Related Party Disclosures

A. Related Parties

(i) Holding Company : M/s Amrit Banaspati Co. Pvt. Ltd. (ABCPL)

(ii) Subsidiary Company : Amrit Learning Ltd. (ALL)

(iii) Fellow Subsidiary : M/s Kamal Apparels Private Limited (KAPL)
: M/s Amrit Agro Industries Ltd.*

(iv) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) : Mr. N.K. Bajaj, Chairman & Managing Director
their relatives and Enterprises : Mr. A.K. Bajaj, Vice Chairman & Managing Director
over which KMP and their relatives : Mr. V.K. Bajaj, Director
are able to exercise significant : Mr. B.P. Maheshwari, Chief Financial Officer
influence/control : Mr. Pranab K. Das, Company Secretary

: Mrs. Vandna Bajaj
: Mrs. Jaya Bajaj
: M/s A.K. Bajaj Investment Pvt. Ltd.

(v ) Other Related Parties with whom : Amrit Corp. Ltd. Employees Provident Fund Trust
the Company has transactions (ACL-EPF Trust)

: Amrit Corp. Ltd. Gratuity Fund Trust (ACL-Gratuity Trust)

*Amrit Agro Industries Limited has been amalgamated with Amrit Corp. Limited w.e.f. 01.04.2023

41. The company has amounts due to suppliers under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development

Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) as at 31.03.2024. The disclosure pursuant to the said Act is as under:

S No. Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

(a) The Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the
end of each accounting year 47.11 63.24

(b) The Interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end
of each accounting year - -

(c) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 18 - -

(d) Amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year - -

(e) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under this Act - -

(f) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
each accounting year - -

(g) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such dated when the interest dues as above
are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance
as a deductible expenditure under section 23. - -

Note : The information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as
“Micro and Small” enterprises on the basis of information available with the Company.



B. Transactions with Related Parties
(Amt. in Lakhs)

Type of Transaction Enterprises over which Key Managerial Other Related Total
KMP and their relatives Personnel Parties with whom

 are able to exercise & their relatives the Company has
significant influence/control transactions

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23

(a) Dividend Income 68.74 100.88 - -                -                - 68.74 100.88

(b) Dividend Payment 69.62 135.28 32.79 27.74                -                - 102.41 163.02

(c) Sitting fee paid - - 2.10 1.20 - - 2.10 1.20

(d) Rent paid 46.80 42.00 - -                -                - 46.80 42.00

(e) Expenses reimbursed 8.99 6.87 - -                -                - 8.99 6.87

(f) Remuneration of key
managerial personnel - - 175.07 142.79                -                - 175.07 142.79

(g) Contribution made to
PF/ Gratuity Trusts - - - - 100.55 98.04 100.55 98.04

(h) Shares purchased
Amrit Learning Ltd. 0.69 85.10 - 65.84                -                - 0.69 150.94

(i) Inter Corporate Deposit 585.00 - - - - - 585.00 -

(j) Interest Received on ICD 32.36 - - - - - 32.36 -

Balances as on 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023

(i) Security Deposits Given 25.00 25.00 - - - - 25.00 25.00

(ii) Investments in shares 1074.15 992.13 - -                -                - 1074.15 992.13

(iii) Inter Corporate Deposit 585.00 - - - - - 585.00 -

(iv) Payable to EPF Trust - - - - 4.27 3.95 4.27 3.95

C . The transactions with the Related Parties have been entered in the ordinary course of business and are at arm’s
length.

43. Segment reporting

The Company is now primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing and distribution of “Dairy Milk/ Milk
Products” as a single unit only. Therefore, there are no separate reportable business segments, as per Ind-AS
108.

44. Employee Benefit Plan

(i) The Company makes contributions to the provident fund and employees state insurance for eligible
employees. Under these plans, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll
costs.  The Company has recognized Rs. 104.50 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 90.91 Lakhs) as expenses
in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year towards contribution to these funds.

Out of the total contributions made in provident fund, a sum of Rs.24.32 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 21.82
Lakhs) is made to “Amrit Corp. Ltd. Employees Provident Fund Trust”. The members of the Provident
Fund Trust are entitled to the rate of interest declared by the Central Govt. under the Employees Provident
Fund and Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952. The shortfall, if any, is made good by the Company in the
year in which it arises. The Trustees of the PF Trust are responsible for overall governance of the plan and
to act in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant provisions under the laws on
the subject. The funds of the Provident Fund Trust have been invested in various securities in accordance
with the pattern of investment prescribed by the Govt. of India.



(ii) The Company provides for the gratuity and leave encashment to eligible employees under the Defined
Benefit Plans. The Gratuity Plan provides for a lump sum payment to employees upon vesting at
retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment. The gratuity vesting occurs upon
completion of five years of service. The gratuity benefits are funded and leave encashment benefits are
unfunded in nature.

The liability arising in the Defined Benefit Plans are determined in accordance with the advice of independent
professionally qualified Actuary, using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. The Company
makes contribution to the Amrit Corp, Ltd. Gratuity Fund Trust, the Trustees of which are responsible for
the overall governance of the plan and go act in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed and the
related laws on the subject.

The Trustees have appointed SBI Life Insurance Company Ltd. for managing the funds of the Trust and
making the investment in securities in accordance with the investment pattern prescribed by the Govt. of
India.

(iii) The Defined Benefit Plans expose the Company to risk of actuarial deficit, interest rate risk and salary cost
inflation risks. The investment risk may arise from volatility in asset values due to market fluctuations and
impairment of assets due to credit losses. The interest rate risk may arise as the decrease in yield will
increase the fund liability and vice-versa. Increase in salary due to adverse inflationary pressure might also
lead to higher liabilities. The Trustees regularly monitor the funding and investments of these plans and risk
mitigation system are in place to ensure that the health of the portfolio is regularly reviewed and investments
do not pose any significant risk of the impairment.

(Fig. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Current Service Cost 36.65 30.19

Interest Cost on Benefit Obligation (net) 5.63 1.26

Net Benefit Expense 42.28 31.45

Actual Return on Plan Assets 32.81 25.39

Expected Return on Plan Assets 31.70 28.77

Balance Sheet
Benefit Assets / Liabilities (Amt. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Defined Benefit Obligation 630.99 505.59

Fair Value of Plan Assets 530.30 429.37

Plan Asset / (Liability) (100.69) (76.22)

Statement of Profit & Loss

Net employee benefit expense recognized in employee cost

The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expenses recognized in the statement of Profit &
loss and the funded status and the amount recognized in Balance Sheet for Gratuity Fund
during 2023-24.



Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows (Amt. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 505.59 415.90

Interest Cost 37.32 30.03

Current Service Cost 36.65 30.19

Benefits Paid (8.11) (11.93)

Actual Losses / (Gain) on Obligation 59.54 41.40

Acquisitions (Credit) / Cost – –

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 630.99 505.59

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows :
(Amt. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Opening Value of Plan Assets 429.37 398.43

Expected Return on Plan Assets 31.70 28.77

Benefits Paid (8.11) (11.93)

Contribution by Employer 76.22 17.47

Actuarial (Losses) / Gain 1.12 (3.37)

Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 530.30 429.37



SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:

(Amt. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS INCREASE EFFECT DECREASE EFFECT

Effect of increase / decrease in discount rate by 0.50%
on defined benefit obligations (18.25) 19.63

Effect of increase / decrease in salary escalation by
0.50% on defined benefit obligations 19.59 (18.37)

The Sensitivity Analysis above has been determined based on reasonably possible change of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. These
sensitivities show the hypothetical impact of a change in each of the listed assumptions in isolation. While each of
these sensitivities holds all other assumptions constant, in practice such assumptions rarely change in isolation and

the asset value changes may offset the impact to some extent.

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

PARTICULARS 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Investment with Insurer 100.00% 100.00%

Bank Balance with The Trust – –

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown
below:

PARTICULARS 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Discount Rate 7.23 7.38

Increase in Compensation Cost (%) 7.00% 7.00%



Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at March 31, 2024
(Amt  in Lakhs)

S. No. Particulars Defined Fair value of Benefit/
benefit plan assets (liability)

obligation

(a) Gratuity cost charged to statement of profit & loss account

  As at April 1, 2023 (505.59) 429.37 (76.22)

  Service cost       (36.65) — —

  Interest  expense       (37.31) — —

  Sub total included in statement profit & loss (73.96) — (73.96)

(b) Benefits paid 8.11 (8.11) —

(c) Remeasurment gains / (losses) in OCI — — —

  Return on plan assets — 32.82 —

  Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumption (1.01) — —

  Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumption (5.99) — —

  Experience adjustment       (52.55) — —

  Sub total included in OCI (59.55) 32.82 (26.73)

(d) Contributions by employer — 76.22 76.22

(e) As at March 31, 2024 (630.99) 530.30 (100.69)

The following table summarize the components of net benefit expenses recognized in the statement of
Profit & loss and the unfunded status and the amount recognized in Balance Sheet for leave encashment  during
2023-24:

Statement of profit & loss
Net employee benefit expense recognized in employee cost

(Amt  in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Current Service Cost 16.10 14.73

Interest Cost on Benefit Obligation 12.21 9.97

Net Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss recognized in the year (4.10) 28.83

Net Benefit Expense 24.21 53.53

Actual Return on Plan Assets – –

Balance Sheet
Benefit Assets / Liabilities (Amt  in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Present value of the obligation at year end 184.77 165.46

Unfunded liability/ Provision in Balance Sheet 184.77 (165.46)



Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows (Amt  in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 165.46 138.03

Net Interest Cost/ (Income) 12.21 9.97

Total  Service Cost 16.11 14.73

Benefits Paid (4.91) (26.09)

Re- Measurements (4.10) 28.83

Acquisitions (Credit) / Cost — —

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 184.77 165.46

The principal assumptions used in determining leave encashment  obligations for the Company’s plans
are shown below:

PARTICULARS 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Discount Rate 7.23 7.38%

Increase in Compensation Cost 7.00 7.00%

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:

(Amt  in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS INCREASE EFFECT DECREASE EFFECT

Effect of increase / decrease in discount rate by 0.50%
on defined benefit obligations (3.07) 6.11

Effect of increase / decrease in salary escalation
by 0.50% on defined benefit obligations 6.10 (3.10)

The Sensitivity Analysis above has been determined based on reasonably possible change of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. These
sensitivities show the hypothetical impact of a change in each of the listed assumptions in isolation. While each of
these sensitivities holds all other assumptions constant, in practice such assumptions rarely change in isolation and
the asset value changes may offset the impact to some extent.



45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

A. Capital Management

The Company’s capital management objective is to ensure that a sound capital base is maintained to
support long term business growth and optimize shareholders value. Capital includes equity share
capital and other equity reserves. The Company’s operations are funded primarily through internal
accruals. Return to shareholders through dividend is monitored as per the laid down dividend
distribution policy.

B. Categories of Financial Instruments
(Amt  in Lakhs)

Particulars Note As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Financial Assets

I. Measured at amortised cost

  (i) Investments 4 & 9 6,751.37 5,629.82

(ii) Trade receivables 10 637.47 532.00

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 179.88 267.08

(iv) Other Bank Balances 12 1,108.95 464.10

(v ) Loans 5 & 13 635.00 50.00

(vi) Others 6 & 14 359.83 279.99

Total (A)   9,672.50 7,245.93

II Measured at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income

(i) Investments 4 91.80 199.10

Total (B)   91.80 199.10

III Measured at fair value through Profit & loss

(i) Investments 4 & 9 11,790.07 9,673.78

Total (C)   11,790.07 9,673.78

Total financial assets (A+B+C)   21,554.37 17,118.81
     

Financial Liabilities     

I Measured at amortized cost  

  (i) Borrowings 18 & 22 316.66 241.86

  (ii) Trade payables 24 143.94 272.81

(iii) Lease liability 23 - 39.62

  (iv) Other financial liabilities 25 340.71 266.94

Total financial liabilities   801.31 821.23



C. Fair value hierarchy
(Amt.  in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

I Financial Assets / Financial Liabilities at amortised cost    

  The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost are a reasonable approximation
of their fair values except Investments for which the fair value
are as follows:    

Fair value of Investments measured at amortised cost 6,751.37 5,629.82
     

II Financial assets at fair value through profit & loss

Investment in Equity Shares, Mutual Funds (Level 1) 10,172.24 7,913.38

Investment in Equity Shares, Alternative Investment Funds
(Equity), (Level 2) 1,617.83 1,760.40

Investment in Alternative Investment Funds (Debt),
Loans  (Level 3) - -

III Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income    

Investment in Preference Shares, Alternative Investment
Funds (Real Estate), (Level 2) 91.80 199.10

The Company determines the fair value of its financial instruments on the basis of the following hierarchy:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments that are quoted in active markets are determined on the
basis of quoted price for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined on the
basis of net asset value as per last available audited financial statements.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the fair value is
determined using discounted cash flow method with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that
reflects the credit risk of the counter-party.

The fair value of trade receivables, trade payables and other current financial assets and liabilities is
considered to be equal to the carrying amounts of these items due to their short-term nature.

D. Financial Risk Management objectives

(i) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to risk that the Company may encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are settled in cash or other financial assets. The Company
regularly monitors the rolling forecasts to ensure that sufficient liquidity is maintained on an ongoing
basis to meet operational needs. The Company manages the liquidity risk by planning the
investments in a manner such that the desired quantum of funds could be made available to meet any
of the business requirements within a reasonable period of time. In addition, the Company also
maintains flexibility in arranging the funds by maintaining committed credit lines with bank(s) to meet
the obligations.



(ii) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or a counter-party fails to meet its
contractual obligations. The Company has following categories of financial assets that are subject to credit
risk evaluation.

Investments

The Company has made investments in tax-free long-term bonds, short term bonds, deposit with
banks, mutual funds etc. Funds are invested in accordance with the Company’s established Investment
policy that includes parameters of safety, liquidity and post tax returns. Company avoids the concentration
of credit risk by spreading them over several counterparties with good credit rating profile and sound
financial position. The Company’s exposure and credit ratings of its counterparties are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Based on historical experience and credit profiles of counterparties, the company does
not expect any significant risk of default except as provided in the financial statements.

Trade receivables

Credit risk arising from trade receivables is managed in accordance with the Company’s established
policy with regard to credit limits, control and approval procedures. The Company provides for expected
credit losses on trade receivables based on a simplified approach as per Ind AS 109. The Company’s
historical experience of collecting receivable indicate that credit risk is low, consequently trade receivables
are considered to be a single class of financial assets. All overdue customer balances are evaluated taking
into account the age of the dues, track record of the counter party etc. Loss allowances and impairment is
recognized where considered appropriate by the management.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets include employee loans, security deposits etc. Based on historical experience and
credit profiles of counterparties, the Company does not expect any significant risk of default.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for each of the above categories of financial assets is
their carrying values as at the reporting dates.

(iii) Market Risk

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is not exposed to any significant interest rate
risk as its investments are primarily in fixed debt instruments. Also, there are no significant borrowings as
at the balance sheet date.

Price risk

Price risk refers to risk that the fair value of a financial instrument may fluctuate because of the change in the
market price. The Company is exposed to the price risk mainly from investment in mutual funds and
investment in equity instruments. Investments in mutual funds are made primarily in units of fixed maturity
and liquid funds and are not exposed to significant price risk.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure may fluctuate due
to change in the foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk arising out of
transactions in foreign currency. Foreign exchange risks are managed in accordance with Company’s
established policy for foreign exchange management. The impact of strengthening/weakening of foreign
currencies on the outstanding exposure at the year-end is not significant.



46. Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments

Details of loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company u/s 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
during the financial year 2023-24 are as under:

(i) Loans, guarantees and investments outstanding as on 31.3.2024

Sl No Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1. Loans given 635.00 50.00

2. Guarantees given Nil Nil

3. Investments made 18,633.24 15,502.70

(i) Loans, guarantees and investments made during FY 2023-24

Sl No. Name of the entity Particulars Whether related Amt. Purpose
party or not (Rs.lakhs)

1. Savvy Constructions Pvt. Ltd. ICD No 50.00 Business

2. Amrit Learning Ltd. ICD Yes 585.00 Business

3. Mutual Funds, PMSs, etc. Investments No 3,875.30 Cash
management

47. Earnings per share

2023-24 2022-23

Profit after taxation as per Statement of profit & loss (Rs. in Lakhs) 2,994.35 18.31

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 27,86,104 30,38,231
for calculating diluted earnings per share (B)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for calculating 33,40,214 30,38,231
diluted earnings per share (C) - Assuming full conversation of OCRPS
into equity shares (Ref. note 38)

Basic and diluted earnings per share in rupee (face value – Rs.10/-
per share) including exceptional income 107.47 0.60

Diluted earnings per share in rupee 89.65 0.60
(face value- Rs. 10/- per share) (A/C)

48. Foreign Exchange Earning & Outgo
(Amt. in Lakhs)

2023-24 2022-23

A) Value of Imports on CIF Basis
Capital Goods 12.75 636.21
Spares 166.14 159.21

B) Earnings in Foreign Exchange Nil Nil

C) Expenditure in Foreign Exchange
Travelling 16.60 19.08
Others 1.44 0.35

(Amt. in Lakhs)



49. Ratios

Particulars Numerator Denominator Current Previous % Variance Reason for Variance
Period Period

Current Ratio Current Current 7.93 5.09 55.80%
assets liabilities

Debt - Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s 0.01 0.01 -
Equity

Debt Service Coverage Earning Debt service 67.93 2.29 2,866.38%
Ratio available for

debt service

Return on Equity Net Profits Average 13.38% 0.09% 14,766.67%
(ROE) after taxes Shareholder’s

Equity

Inventory turnover Cost of Average 7.82 8.67 (9.80)%
ratio Goods sold Inventory

(COGS)

Trade receivables Revenue Average Trade 19.85 20.24 (1.93)%
turnover ratio Receivable

Trade payables turnover Purchases Average Trade 51.09 26.59 92.14%
ratio of service payables

and other
expenses

Net capital turnover Revenue Working 1.34 1.64 (18.29)%
ratio Capital

Net profit ratio Net profit Revenue 23.67% 0.17% 13823.53%

Return on capital Earning Capital 14.89% 0.44% 3284.09%
employed (ROCE) before Employed

interest and
taxes

Return on Investment Income Time 20.43% 3.69% 453.66%
(ROI) Unquoted generated weighted

from average
investments investment

i) Mark to Market Gain on
Current investments
(ii) Increase in Fixed Deposit

-

(i) Increase in profit in Dairy
Unit
(ii) Mark to Market Gain on
investments

(i) Increase in profit in Dairy
Unit
(ii) Mark to Market Gain on
investments

-

 -

Increase in turnover

-

(i) Increase in profit in Dairy
Unit
(ii) Mark to Market Gain on
investments

(i) Increase in profit in Dairy
Unit
(ii) Mark to Market Gain on
investments

Mark to Market Gain on
investments

50. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

As per Section135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to
spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate
social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are Scholarships for education, skill
development/enhancement, language training and presentation skills with a view to make poor and neglected
children employable and Women Empowerment, contribution to Swachh Bharat Kosh, Clean Ganga Fund
and Prime Minister’s National Relief Fund. A CSR Committee has been formed by the company as per the



51. The previous year’s figures have been regrouped/re-arranged, wherever necessary, to make them comparable
with the figures for the current year.

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2024 March 2023

i. Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 24.60 21.27

ii, Amount of expenditure incurred 24.60 22.00

iii. Shortfall at the end of the year - -

iv. Total of previous years shortfall - -

v. Reason for shortfall NA NA

vi. Nature of CSR activities Scholarships for education, ski l l
development/enhancement, language
training and presentation skills with a view
to make poor and neglected children
employable and Women Empowerment,
Contribution in Swach Bharat Kosh ,Clean
Ganga Fund and Prime Minister’s National
Relief Fund

vii. Details of related party transaction, e.g., contribution to a
trust controlled by the company in relation to CSR
expenditure as per relevant Accounting standard NA NA

viii. Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred
by entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in
the provision during the year NA NA

Act. The funds were primarily allocated to a corpus and utilized through the year on these activities which are

specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013:



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
AMRIT CORP. LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated
financial statements of AMRIT CORP. LIMITED
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and
its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary
together referred to as “the Group”) comprising of the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024,
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, for the year then ended and notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements, including a
summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated  financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of reports of the other auditor on
separate financial statements and on the other financial
information of the subsidiary , the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 ( the “Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at
March 31, 2024, its consolidated profit, consolidated
total comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Holding Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence obtained by us along with the
consideration of audit reports of the other auditors
referred to in “Other Matters” paragraph below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note No. 49 to the consolidated
financial statements, in relation to Subsidiary Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. However, the
Management of Subsidiary Company has prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis since
they have a reasonable expectation that the Subsidiary
Company would be able to meet its liabilities on the
basis of financial support provided by Promoters/
Holding Company and by implementation of various
measures to improve operational efficiency and
optimize margins.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements
and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is
responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual report, but does not include the
Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, our responsibility is to read the other



information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the
Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is
responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these Consolidated Financial Statements in terms of
the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance including other comprehensive
income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective
Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of
the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the group are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,

as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board
of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the  financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls
relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Group has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.



 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of
management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the ability of the group to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are
the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements,
which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried
out by them. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
of the Holding Company regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statement of the subsidiary,
whose financial statements reflect, before consolidation
adjustments, total assets of Rs. 99.97 lakhs as at March
31, 2024, total revenue of Rs. 247.10 lakhs, total
comprehensive loss of Rs. 110.01 lakhs and net cash
outflows of Rs. 19.99 lakhs for the year ended on that
date, as considered in the consolidated annual financial
statements. The independent auditors’ report on the
financial statements of the subsidiary has been furnished
to us by the management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of
the subsidiary and our report in terms of sub section (3)
of section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the
aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the audit
reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
above, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the
above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements

1. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs
3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2020 (the “Order”/ “CARO”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11)
of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report,
according to the information and explanations given
to us, and based on the CARO report of the
Holding Company issued by us and on the
consideration of the CARO report of the other
auditor of its subsidiary included in the consolidated
financial statements , we report that there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO
reports.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based
on our audit and on the consideration of the report



of the other auditors on separate financial
statements of subsidiary, referred in the Other
Matters paragraph above we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements;

b. in our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements
have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the report of
the other auditor;

c. the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the relevant books of account maintained
for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements;

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as
amended.

e. on the basis of the written representations
received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2024 taken on
record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and reports of the statutory auditors
of the subsidiary company, none of the
directors of the Group is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. with respect to the adequacy of the internal
f inancial controls with reference to
Consolidated financial statements of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary
company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure A” to this report.

g. with respect to the matter to be included in the
Auditor’s Report under section 197(16) of the
Act:

In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid during the current year by
the Holding Company to its directors is in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197
of the Act and as per the report of the statutory
auditors of the subsidiary Company, no
remuneration has been paid to its directors.

h. with respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Consolidated Financial Statements
disclose the impact of pending litigations
on the consolidated financial position of
the Group: Refer Note 34 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements;

ii. The Holding Company and its subsidiary
did not have any long-term contracts
including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable
losses

iii. There has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company and its
subsidiary company.

iv. (a) The respective Managements of
the Holding Company and its
subsidiary have represented to us
that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief, no funds (which are
material either  individually or in the
aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Holding Company or any of
such subsidiary to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Intermediaries”), with the



understanding, whether  recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Holding Company or any of
such subsidiary (“Ult imate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The respective Managements of
the Holding Company and its
subsidiary have represented to us
that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been received  by
the Holding Company or any of
such subsidiary from any person or
entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the  Holding
Company or any of such subsidiary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ult imate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that
have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances
performed by us on the Holding
Company and on the consideration
of the reports of the other auditors of
its subsidiary included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements,
nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i)
and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided
under (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

v. (a) The final dividend proposed in the
previous year, declared and paid by
the Holding Company during the
current year is in accordance with
section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

(b) The Board of Directors of the
Holding Company have proposed
final dividend for the year which is
subject to the approval of the
member at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. The amount of
dividend proposed is in accordance
with section 123 of the Act, as
applicable.

vi. The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 is applicable from 1 April 2023.

Based on our examination which included
test checks and considering the reports
of the other auditors of its subsidiary
included in the Consolidated Financial
Statements, the Holding Company and
its subsidiary have used accounting
softwares for maintaining its books of
account, which have a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility. The audit trail
facility has been in operation from 4th
August 2023 in Holding Company & from
19th June, 2023 in subsidiary company
and the same has operated throughout
the remaining year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the respective
software. Further, we did not come across
any instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with at the Holding Company
and its subsidiary.

For Mukesh Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 011393N
UDIN: 24521860BKFQRH6775

(Rishi Mittal)
Place : Noida Partner
Date  : June 10, 2024 Membership No.

521860



Annexure ‘A’ to Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (Referred to in Paragraph
(f) under the heading of “report on other legal and
regulatory requirements” of our report of even
date)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Amrit Corp. Limited as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2024, we have audited the
internal financial controls over financial reporting of AMRIT
CORP. LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding
Company”) and its subsidiary as of that date.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of the report of  other auditor referred
to in the Other Matters paragraph below, the Holding
Company and its subsidiary have maintained, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Holding Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal
Financial Controls

The respective Company’s Boards of Directors are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and

errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal
financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both, issued by ICAI. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
of the subsidiary company, in terms of their reports
referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting



and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud

may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting
may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Holding Company in so far
as it relates to one subsidiary, is based solely on the
corresponding reports of the statutory auditors of such
company. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this
matter.

For Mukesh Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 011393N
UDIN: 24521860BKFQRH6775

(Rishi Mittal)
Place : Noida Partner
Date  : June 10, 2024 Membership No.

521860



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET as at 31st March, 2024
(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No. As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

I . ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 3,853.11 2,562.48
(b) Capital work in progress 2 29.30 840.21
(c) Intangible assets 3 567.45 532.44
(d) Intangible assets under Development 3(i) - 27.64
(e) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 4 11,271.77 10,066.86
(ii) Others 5 74.88 72.17

(f) Other non-current assets 6 279.22 329.86

2 Current assets
(a) Inventories 7 1,290.79 1,241.89
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 8 7,182.04 5,257.02
(ii) Trade receivables 9 641.34 537.74
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 188.09 295.29
(iv) Other Bank Balances 11 1,136.90 490.67
(v) Loans 12 50.00 50.00
(vi) Others 13 298.61 245.79

(c) Other Current Assets 14 73.02 147.90

TOTAL ASSETS 26,936.52 22,697.96

I I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity

(a) Equity Share Capital 15 278.61 303.82
(b) Instruments in the nature of equity - 7% Optionally 15 637.23 -

Convertile Redeemable Preference Shares Issued
under the scheme (Pending Allotment)

(c) Other Equity 16 23,506.43 19,797.24
(d) Non- Controlling Interests - (1.62)

2 Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 17 107.83 87.59
(b) Deferred tax Liabilities (Net) 18 912.38 275.21
(c) Other non-current liabilities 19 - 2.29
(d) Provisions 20 88.47 85.71

Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 21 208.83 619.27
(ii) Lease Liability 22 - 39.62
(iii) Trade payables 23

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise 47.11 63.24
and small enterprises

(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises 99.89 210.60

(iv) Other financial liabilities 24 357.12 322.52
(b) Other Current Liabilities 25 488.83 732.38
(c) Provisions 26 203.79 160.09

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 26,936.52 22,697.96
The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
In terms of our report of even date                                              On behalf of the Board

For Mukesh Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 011393N
UDIN: 24521860BKFQRH6775
Rishi Mittal, Partner
Membership No. 521860

Place : Noida
Date  : June 10, 2024

N.K. Bajaj A.K. Bajaj
Chairman & Managing Director Vice Chairman & Managing Director

B.P. Maheshwari P.K. Das
President (F&A) & Sr. Vice President (Corp.)
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS for the year ended 31st March, 2024

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No. For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

I . Revenue From Operations 27 12,896.10 10,841.12

II. Other income 28 3,667.06 787.48

III. Total Income (I + II) 16,563.16 11,628.60

IV. Expenses:

Cost of materials consumed 7,332.25 7,043.61

Changes in inventories of finished goods, 29 21.22 (63.56)
work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade
Employee benefits expense 30 1,721.29 1,336.90
Finance costs 31 22.94 208.22
Depreciation and amortization expense 1 & 3 364.26 283.36
Other expenses 32 3,377.88 2,960.70

Total expenses (IV) 12,839.84 11,769.23

V. Profit before exceptional items and tax (III-IV) 3,723.32 (140.63)

VI. Exceptional Items - -

VII. Profit before tax (V - VI) 3,723.32 (140.63)

VIII . Tax expense: 33
(1) Current tax 200.12 20.40
(2) Deferred tax 637.53 (108.75)

IX Profit (Loss) for the year 2,885.67 (52.28)

X Other Comprehensive income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (17.94) (42.35)

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss - -

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 7.14 (107.66)
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be

reclassified to profit or loss (1.80) 27.10

Other Comprehensive income (A+B) (12.60) (122.91)

XI Total Comprehensive Income for the year (IX+X) 2,873.07 (175.19)

XII Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent 2,885.67 (52.03)
Non-controlling interests - (0.24)

XIII Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent 2,873.07 (174.94)
Non-controlling interests - (0.25)

XIV Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 each):
- Basic 103.57 (1.71)
- Diluted 86.39 (1.71)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

In terms of our report of even date On behalf of the Board

For Mukesh Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 011393N
UDIN: 24521860BKFQRH6775
Rishi Mittal, Partner
Membership No. 521860

Place : Noida
Date  : June 10, 2024

N.K. Bajaj A.K. Bajaj
Chairman & Managing Director Vice Chairman & Managing Director

B.P. Maheshwari P.K. Das
President (F&A) & Sr. Vice President (Corp.)
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary



(Amount in Lakhs)(A) Equity Share Capital

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 303.82 303.82

Chaanges in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -

Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period 303.82 303.82

Less: Shares cancelled on account of amalgamation during the year (25.21) -

Shares bought back during the year - -

Closing Balance 278.61 303.82

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  for the period ended 31st March, 2024

(B) Other Equity

Particulars Preference Capital Capital Revaluation General Retained Debt instruments
Share Capital Redemption Reserve Reserve Reserve Earnings through other

Redemption Reserve comprehensive
Reserve  income

a. Balance at the beginning of the reporting 40.50 17.50 - 64.29 11,323.99 8,727.52 26.50

b. Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - (94.63) (80.56)

c. Dividend on equity shares for FY 2021-22 - - - - - (227.87) -

d. Transfer to retained earnings - - - - 750.00 (750.00) -

f. On Account of Consolidation - - - - - - -

Balance at the year end of the 31.03.2023 40.50 17.50 - 64.29 12,073.99 7,655.02 -54.06

a. Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 40.50 17.50 - 64.29 12,073.99 7,655.02 -54.06

b. Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 2,867.73 5.34

c. Dividend on equity shares for FY 2022-23 - - - - - (121.53) -

d. On account of Amalgamation - - 957.65 - - - -

e. Transfer to retained earnings - - - - 750.00 (750.00) -

Balance at the year end of the 31.03.2024 40.50 17.50 957.65 64.29 12,823.99 9,651.22 (48.72)

Notes:

1 Dividend : The Board of directors have recommend payment of dividend of Rs.6.00 per equity share of Rs.10/- each (i.e. 60%) for the financial year ended March 31, 2024  as
against dividend of Rs.4.00 per equity share of Rs.10/- each (i.e. 40%) paid for the year ended March 31, 2023. This dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders at the
next annual general meeting and is not recognized as liability in these Financial Statements.

2 Reserves & Surplus consist as under:-

i) Capital Redemption Reserve:-

(a) Preference Share Capital Redemption Reserve :- This Reserve has been created against redemption of 15% Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.10/-each aggregating
to Rs.40.50 lakhs on 28th September,2005.

(b) Capital Redemption Reserve:- Upon buy back of 1,75,000 Equity Shares of the face value of Rs.10/- by the Company and extinguishment therof in terms of the provisions
of Sections  68-70 of the Companies Act,2013 and SEBI (Buy Back of Securities) Regulations,2018, on August 7,2020, Capital Redemption Reserve of Rs.17.50 lakhs
has been created.

(c) Capital Reserve:- In terms of the Scheme of Amalgamation (“Scheme”) for amalgamation of Amrit Agro Industries Ltd. (“Amrit Agro”) with the Company sanctioned by
the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench at Prayagraj vide order dated 19.04.2024, all the assets and liabilities of Amrit Agro have been transferred
to the Company retrospectively w.e.f. the Appointed Date, “01.04.2023”. The excess of assets and liabilities of Rs.957.65 lakhs has been treated as Capital Reserve
and transferred to the Capital Reserve Account.  The Reserve
can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,2013;

ii) Revaluation Reserve – This Reserve represents the difference of the revalued land and the consideration paid for the same;

iii) General Reserve – This Reserve has been created by appropriation from retained earnings, not being an item of other comprehensive income in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act,2013;

iv) Retained Earnings – This Reserve represents the cumulative profits of the Company and the effects of measurements of defined benefit obligations. This Reserve can be
utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,2013;

v) Debt Instrument through other Comprehensive Income – This Reserve represents cumulative gains (net of losses) on the debt instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income and the net amounts will be reclassified to retain earnings when these debt instruments are disposed off/ redeemed.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements

In terms of our report of even date On behalf of the Board

For Mukesh Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 011393N
UDIN: 24521860BKFQRH6775
Rishi Mittal, Partner
Membership No. 521860

Place : Noida
Date  : June 10, 2024

(Amount in Lakhs)

N.K. Bajaj A.K. Bajaj
Chairman & Managing Director Vice Chairman & Managing Director

B.P. Maheshwari P.K. Das
President (F&A) & Sr. Vice President (Corp.)
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended 31st March, 2024

(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
(A) Cash flow from Operating Activities

Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax 3,723.32 (140.63)
Add: (Profit)/Loss on sale of Assets - Net 15.62 (32.80)

(Profit) / Loss on sale of investment - Net (462.20) (71.70)
Unrealised (gains)/ Loss  on investments carried at fair value (2,310.41) 222.37
through statement of profit and loss
Depreciation and amortization expense 364.26 283.36

Reversal of Provision against investment - (61.02)
Interest Paid 20.19 208.47
Interest Received (584.11) (673.97)
Dividend Received (97.06) (118.22)

Operating Profits before working Capital changes 669.61 (384.14)
Adjustment for:
Change in Trade Payable & other Current Liabilities (380.91) 793.98
Change in Inventories (48.90) (335.94)
Change in Trade receivable (103.60) (183.85)
Change in Short Term Borrowings 50.70 92.69
Change in Loans & Advances (611.78) 102.20

Cash generation from Operating Activities (424.90) 84.94
Less: Income Tax paid (18.30) (406.60) (169.74) 254.68

Net Cash generation from Operating Activities

(B) Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Interest Income 584.11 650.94
Dividend Income 97.06 118.22
Purchase of Fixed Assets / Capital WIP (873.07) (1,604.10)
Movement in Loans & Advance (187.44) 24.52
(Purchase) / Sale of Investment (Net) 1,157.15 3,543.18
Sale of Fixed Assets 26.44 51.90
Net Cash from Investing Activities 804.25 2,784.66

(C) Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Interest Paid (20.19) (208.47)
Proceeds from long term Borrowing (444.77) (2,554.10)
Movement in Other Non Current Liability & Lease Liability (2.29) (22.30)
Movement in Leave Encashment 19.30 27.44
Payment of Dividend (121.53) (227.87)
Movement in Gratuity 24.48 7.36
Net Cash flow in Financing Activities (545.00) (2,977.94)

Net increase decrease in cash & cash equaivalants (147.35) 61.40
Opening Balances
Cash and Cash equivalents 295.29 203.64
Overdraft facility from bank (130.61) (100.36)

Closing Balances
Cash and Cash equivalents 188.09 295.29
Overdraft facility from bank (170.76) (130.61)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

In terms of our report of even date                                                On behalf of the Board

For Mukesh Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 011393N
UDIN: 24521860BKFQRH6775
Rishi Mittal, Partner
Membership No. 521860

Place : Noida
Date  : June 10, 2024

N.K. Bajaj A.K. Bajaj
Chairman & Managing Director Vice Chairman & Managing Director

B.P. Maheshwari P.K. Das
President (F&A) & Sr. Vice President (Corp.)
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The Consolidated financial statements (CFS) relate to Amrit Corp. Limited (the holding company) and its
subsidiary company.

(a) Basis of Accounting:

(i) The Consolidated financial statements of the subsidiary company used in the consolidation are
drawn up to the same reporting date as the holding company i.e., year ended March 31, 2024.

(ii) The Consolidated financial statements of the holding company and its subsidiary company have
been prepared in accordance with the relevant Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(b) Principles of consolidation:The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following
basis:

(i) The Consolidated financial statements of the holding company and its subsidiary company are
combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 110 - “Consolidated financial statements”.

(ii) The excess/deficit of the cost to the holding company of its investment in its subsidiaries over its
share of net worth of the subsidiaries at the date of investment in the subsidiaries are treated as
goodwill/capital reserve in the CFS. Goodwill is disclosed as an asset and capital reserve as a
reserve in Consolidated Balance Sheet. Subsequent to initial measurement, goodwill is measured
at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.

(iii) Non-controlling interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiary consists of the amount of equity
attributable to the minority shareholders at the dates on which investments are made by the holding
company in the subsidiary companies and further movements in their share in the equity, subsequent
to the dates of investments as stated above.

(c) Information on subsidiary company

The following subsidiary company are considered in the Consolidated financial statements:

Particulars % voting power held % voting power held

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Subsidiary Company

Amrit Learning Limited 100.00% 99.62%



1. Material accounting policies

i) Basis of preparation of financial statements

(a) Compliance with Ind AS: - The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance
with all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the Act) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(b) Historical Cost Convention: - These Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a historical cost basis, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below:

 Certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value; and

 Defined Benefit Plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Division II of Schedule III to the Act. Based on the
nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for
the purpose of current / non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

ii) Summary of Significant accounting policy

(a) Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements inconformity with Ind AS requires the management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting
period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events
and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

(b) Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

A. Tangible Assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment
loss, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. The cost of assets under installation or under construction also includes direct expenses
incurred till the Balance Sheet date and is shown as capital work-in-progress.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:

I. Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method, as per the useful life of the assets
specified in Schedule II of the Act or based on technical estimate made by the Company.

II. Where cost of a part of the asset is significant to total cost of the asset and useful life of that
part is different from the useful life of the remaining asset, useful life of that significant part is
determined separately based on technical estimate made by the Company. The significant
assets identified are depreciated separately.



III. In respect of assets added/ sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed during the year
depreciation on such assets is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of such additions
or as the case may be, up to the date on which such asset has been sold, discarded,
demolished or destroyed.

IV. The Company has estimated the residual value @ 5% of original cost for all assets. Estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed annually, taking into
account commercial and technological obsolescence as well as normal wear and tear and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. The Management estimates the useful lives for the
assets as follows:

Particulars No. of Years

Administrative Building 60 years

Plant and Machinery* 10-20 years

Office equipment 5 years

Computer 3 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Vehicles 8 years

Electric Installation 10 years

Tubewells 5 years

Books 15 years

Server 6 years

Solar Power Plant 15 years

*Based on internal technical evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives as
given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these
assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets are different from the useful lives as prescribed
under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013.

B. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
brands acquired comprises its purchase price, including any duties and other taxes (other than
those subsequently recoverable by the enterprise from the taxing authorities) and any directly
attributable expenditure on their acquisition.

In the case of computer software, the cost of software purchased, comprises its purchase price,
including any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by the
enterprise from the taxing authorities) and any directly attributable expenditure on making the
software ready for its use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.
Intangible assets i.e., computer software is amortized over a period of 36 months subsequent
to its purchase on straight line basis.

The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

Expenditure on research is recognized as an expense when it is incurred. Development costs
of products are also charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss unless all the criteria for
capitalization as set out on Paragraph 21 and 22 of Ind AS 38 have been met by the Company.



(c) Impairment of assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying value of assets for any possible
impairment. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined as higher of the asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Assessment is done at each Balance
Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognized for an asset in
prior accounting period may no longer exist or may have decreased. An impairment loss is reversed
to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined if no impairment loss had previously been recognized.

(d) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset/s and the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset/s, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”)
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases
with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term
and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease
plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment
if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the
contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

(e) Inventories

(i) Finished Good

Stock of manufactured finished goods is valued at cost or at market value, whichever is lower. In
the case of finished goods, cost is determined by taking material, labour and related factory
overheads including depreciation and fixed production overheads, which are apportioned on
the basis of normal capacity.



(ii) Work-in-progress

Work in progress is valued at raw material cost plus cost directly incurred till the date of balance
sheet.

(iii) Raw material, stores, spares and loose tools are valued at cost. Cost is determined by using the
FIFO method.

(iv) Stock in trades are valued at cost or at market value, whichever is lower. The cost in such cases
is valued at the purchase cost using FIFO method.

(f) Foreign exchange transactions and translation

Transactions in foreign currencies i.e., other than the Company’s functional currency of Indian Rupees
are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise except for exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign
currency risks.

(g) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use while pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments that are quoted in active markets are determined on the
basis of quoted price for identical assets or liabilities.



Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined
on the basis of net asset value as per last available audited consolidated financial statements.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the fair value
is determined using discounted cash flow method with the most significant inputs being the discount
rate that reflects the credit risk of the counter-party.

The fair value of trade receivables, trade payables and other current financial assets and liabilities is
considered to be equal to the carrying amounts of these items due to their short-term nature.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, liabilities, such as, Gratuity etc.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the
fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in
the relevant notes.

 Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions- Note 43

(h) Financial Assets:

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

The financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss are recognized initially at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed through the
Statement of Profit and Loss. However, Trade receivable that don’t contain a significant financing
component are measured at transaction price.

(ii) Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, the Company classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

 those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and

 those measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in Statement of Profit and Loss or other comprehensive
income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in
which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on
whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through profit & loss.



Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business
model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

— Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized or impaired.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method.

— Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest,
are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses and interest revenue which are recognized in Statement of Profit and
Loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest
rate method.

— Fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair
value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through Profit or Loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in other income.

(iii) Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognized only when:

 the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or

 the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows to one or more recipient.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the
financial asset is derecognized. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the company
has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the



financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement
in the financial asset.

(i) Financial Liabilities

i. Classification as liability or equity: Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the
Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

ii. Initial recognition and measurement: Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially
measured at the amortised cost unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value
through profit or loss.

iii. Subsequent measurement: Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

iv. Derecognition: A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the
end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are usually unsecured. Trade and other payables
are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within twelve months after the reporting
period. They are recognized initially at their fair value.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which
a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are
determined based on best management estimate required to settle the obligation at each Balance
Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current
best management estimates.

Contingent Liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the consolidated financial statements.

(j) Revenue recognition

i. Sale of goods

Revenue is recognized when an entity transfers the control of goods to customers at an amount
that the entity expects to receive in exchange for those goods. Volume discounts and incentives
to customers are accounted for as reduction of revenue based on the allocation of the discounts/
incentives amount to each of the underlying performance obligation. when the level of discount



varies with increases in levels of revenue transactions, the company recognizes the liability
based on its estimate of the customer’s future purchases If it is probable that the criteria for the
discount will not be met, or if the amount thereof cannot be estimated reliably, then discount is not
recognized until the payment is probable and the amount can be estimated reliably. The company
recognizes changes in the estimated amount of obligations for discounts in the period in which
the change occurs.

ii. Interest income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate method.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. While
calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected
credit losses.

iii. Rental income

Rental income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in income on
a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

iv. Dividend Income

Dividends from investments are recognized in profit or loss when the right to receive payment
is established.

(k) Retirement and Other Employee Benefits

(a) Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering service are classified
as short-term employee benefits. Benefits like salaries, wages, short term compensated
absences etc. and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognized in the period in which
the employee renders the related service.

(b) Post-Employment Benefits

(i) Defined Contribution Plans: The State governed provident fund scheme, employee
state insurance scheme and employee pension scheme under the PF Act are defined
contribution plans. The contribution paid/payable under the schemes is recognized during
the period in which the employee renders the related service.

(ii) Defined Benefit Plans: Defined benefit plans of the company comprise employee’s
gratuity fund schemes managed by a Trust/SBI Life and Employees Provident Fund for
senior employees managed by the Trust. The Provident Fund Trust set up by the company
is treated as defined benefit plan since the minimum interest payable by the Provident
Fund Trust to the beneficiaries is notified every year by the Government and the company
has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the return on respective
investments of the Trust and the notified interest rate. Accordingly, the contribution paid or
payable and the interest shortfall, if any, is recognized as an expense in the period in which
the services are rendered by the employee.



Wherever applicable, the present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plans
is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which
recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The
discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit
plans, is based on the market yields on Government securities as at the Balance Sheet
date, having maturity periods approximating to the terms of related obligations.

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans, comprising of actuarial gains or losses are
recognized immediately in balance sheet with corresponding debit or credit to other
comprehensive income. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
period.

In case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation
under the defined benefit plans to recognize the obligation on net basis.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognized
when the curtailment or settlement occurs.

(c) Long Term Employee Benefits

Entitlements to annual leave, casual leave and sick leave are recognized when they accrue to
employees. Sick leave and casual leave can be availed during the period while earned leave
can be availed or encashed once it exceeds maximum number of accumulation of leave. The
company determines the liability for such accumulated leave using the projected unit credit
method with actuarial valuation being carried out at each Balance Sheet date in the similar manner
as in the case of defined benefit plans as mentioned in (b) (ii) above.

(d) The company does not en-cash leave which has been accumulated up to specified period.
Such leaves have been classified as long-term employee benefits. Such leave accumulated at
each accounting period are carried forward to the next accounting period.  Leave other than
specified leave is encashable. There are no other en-cashable short-term benefits. The other
staff benefit schemes will be provided according to respective laws in respect of employees as
and when these schemes will become applicable to the company.

(l) Income taxes

(i) Current tax

Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the
year. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

       (ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary
differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.



Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences could be utilized. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax
assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax for the year

Deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the deferred tax is also recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

(m) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization. All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

(n) Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts
or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated. The cash flow statement is part of   consolidated financial statements of
the company.

(o) Earnings Per share

i. Basic Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

 the profit attributable to owners of the Company.

 by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year.

ii. Diluted Earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

 the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and

 the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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4 NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakh

Details of non-current investment

— Investments in Equity Shares 2,995.53 2,944.72

— Investment in Debentures or Bonds 5,897.18 4,846.63

— Investment in Mutual Funds 669.44 316.02

— Investment in  Real Estate Fund / Private Equity / AIF 1,709.62 1,959.49

Total 11,271.77 10,066.86
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5 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Other Financial Assets As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs Amount in Lakhs

a. Security Deposits
Unsecured, considered good
- Others 49.23 49.23
- Related parties (Refer 5A) 25.75 22.94

74.88 72.17

5A Details of Security Deposits to Related Party

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs Amount in Lakhs

Kamal Apparels Pvt. Ltd. (Security Deposit) 25.75 22.94

Total 25.75 22.94

6 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Other Non-Current Assets As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs Amount in Lakhs

a. Capital Advances
- Unsecured, Considered Good 210.55 24.53
- Unsecured, Considered Doubtful - 210.55
Less: Provision - (210.55)

b. Advances other than Capital advances
- With Statutory Authority 68.67 303.35

c. Other non current assets
- Deferred Rent - 1.98

Total 279.22 329.86



7 INVENTORIES

Inventories As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs Amount in Lakhs

a. Raw Materials and components 609.18 587.44

b . Finished goods 179.40 200.99

c. Stores and spares 485.19 436.80

d. Course Material 17.02 16.66

Total 1,290.79 1,241.89

Valuation of Inventories

(i) Finished Goods:

Stock of manufactured finished goods is valued at cost or at net realisible value, whichever is lower. In the
case of finished goods, cost is determined by taking material, labour and related factory overheads
including depreciation and fixed production overheads, which are apportioned on the basis of normal
capacity.

(ii) Work in Progress

Work in progress is valued at raw material cost plus cost directly incurred till the date of balance sheet.

(iii) Raw material, stores, spares and loose tools are valued at cost , cost is determined by using the First in
First out method.

(iv) Stock in trades are valued at cost or at market value, whichever is lower. The cost in such cases is valued
at the purchase cost using FIFO method.
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10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs Amount in Lakhs

a. Balance with Banks
- In Current Accounts 183.05 287.54

b . Cash in hand 5.04 7.75

Total                         188.09 295.29

11 OTHER BANK BALANCES

Other bank balances As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs Amount in Lakhs

a. Earmarked balances

- Unclaimed Dividends & others 22.49 27.64

-In Deposit Accounts (Refer Note 11A) 203.46 203.46

b . Balance with bank

In Deposit Accounts 910.95 259.57

(Original maturity period is more than 3 months
but upto 12 months)

Total 1,136.90 490.67

11A Out of the Earmarked Deposit Accounts, deposits of sum of Rs 190 lakh (Previous year Rs. 190 lakh have been
pledged as lien against margin for overdraft facility and sum of Rs 13.46 lakh (Previous year Rs. 13.46 lakh) have
been pledged as lien against margin for issuing Bank guarantee from Punjab national bank.

12 CURRENT LOANS

Current loans As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs Amount in Lakhs

Other Loans
Unsecured, considered good
- Inter Corporate Deposits 50.00 50.00

 Total 50.00 50.00



13 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Other Current Financial Assets As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs Amount in Lakhs

Interest / Dividend Receivable 228.61 160.45

Balances with PMS/ Fund for investment 60.26 74.05

Security Deposit 8.35 9.90

Others 1.39 1.39

Total 298.61 245.79

14 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Other Current Assets As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs Amount in Lakhs

Employee advances 1.61 0.96

Prepaid expenses 30.83 24.48

Other advances 40.45 26.29

GST recoverable 0.13 96.17

Total 73.02 147.90

Equity Share Capital As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Number Amount Number Amount
in Lakhs in Lakhs

Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 3,00,00,000 3,000.00 2,00,00,000 2,000.00
Redeemable Cumulative Preference 50,00,000 500.00 50,00,000 500.00
shares of Rs. 10/- each
7% Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each 15,00,000 150.00 - -

3,65,00,000 3,650.00 2,50,00,000 2,500.00

Issued, Subscribed & Paid - up

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 30,38,231 303.82 30,38,231 303.82
Less: Shares cancelled on account of amalgamation
during the year (2,52,127) (25.21) - -

7% Optionally Convertible Redeemable 63,72,265 637.23 - -
Preference Shares under the scheme pending
allotment

- {(Refer Notes No. E & 37(d)}

Total 91,58,369 915.84 30,38,231 303.82

15  EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL



Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Number Amount Number Amount
in Lakhs in Lakhs

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 30,38,231 303.82 30,38,231 303.82

Shares cancelled on account of amalgation (2,52,127) (25.21) - -

Any other movement - - - -

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 27,86,104 278.61 30,38,231 303.82

A Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding

C Shareholding of Promoters
Shares held by promoters as on 31.03.2024

Promoter Name No. of shares % of % Change
Total Shares during the year

Naresh Kumar Bajaj 61,447 2.21% 0.00%

Ashwini Kumar Bajaj 1,54,086 5.53% 0.00%

Vikram Kumar Bajaj 1,54,238 5.54% 0.00%

Vandana Bajaj 1,21,271 4.35% 0.00%

Jaya Bajaj 1,21,119 4.35% 0.00%

Radhika Jatia 13,659 0.49% 0.00%

Sneha Jatia 12,546 0.45% 0.00%

Arnav Bajaj 3,814 0.14% 0.00%

Varun Bajaj 2,295 0.08% 0.00%

Sunita Mor 1,189 0.04% 0.00%

Anuradha Gupta 1,545 0.06% 0.00%

Amrit Banaspati Company Private Limited* 17,40,527 62.47% 10.60%

AK Bajaj Investment Pvt. Ltd.** 2,07,693 7.45% 0.00%

Amrit Agro Industries Ltd.*                                               - - -

Total 25,95,429 93.16%

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Number Amount Number Amount
in Lakhs in Lakhs

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year - - - -

Shares to be issue on account of merger 63,72,265 637.23 - -

Any other movement - - - -

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 63,72,265 637.23 - -

B Reconciliation of number of preference shares outstanding

*The increase of shareholding of ABCPL in the Company is on account of transfer of shares of Navjyoti
Residency Pvt. Ltd. under the Scheme of Amalgamation and acquisition by ABCPL 5,683 equity shares of the
Company under the delisting process.

** The shareholding of Amrit Agro Imdustries Ltd cancelled under the scheme of Amalgamation (Refer Note E (ii))



 Name of Shareholder As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

No. of % of No. of % of
Shares held Holding Shares held Holding

M/s Amrit Banaspati Company Pvt. Ltd. 17,40,527 62.47% 15,76,027 51.87%

M/s Amrit Agro Industries Ltd. - 0.00% 2,52,127 8.30%

M/s Navjyoti Residency Pvt. Ltd. - 0.00% 1,58,817 5.23%

M/s A K Bajaj Investment Pvt. Ltd. 2,07,693 7.45% 2,07,693 6.84%

Shri Ashwini Kumar Bajaj 1,54,086 5.53% 1,54,086 5.07%

Shri Vikram Kumar Bajaj 1,54,238 5.54% 1,54,238 5.08%

Others (Less Than 5% of holding) 5,29,560 19.01% 5,35,243 17.62%

Total 27,86,104 100.00% 30,38,231 100.00%

D Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of aggregate shares in the company

E In terms of the Scheme of Amalgamation (“Scheme”) for amalgamation of Amrit Agro Industries Ltd. (“Amrit Agro”) with the
Company sanctioned by the Hon’ble NCLT, Allahabad Bench, Prayagraj vide Order dated April 19, 2024 and  given effect to
restrospectively from April 01, 2023. (Appointed Date)

(i) The Authorized Share Capital of Amrit Agro has been clubbed with the Company and the increased Authorized Share Capital
of the Company now stands at Rs.3,650 lakhs divided into 3,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each and 65,00,000
Redeemable Preference Shares  of Rs.10/-;

(ii) the investment of Amrit Agro in the equity shares of the Company i.e. 2,52,127 equity shares of Rs.10/- each has been
cancelled in terms of the Scheme and, consequently, the face value of the said investment amounting to Rs.25.21 lakhs has
been reduced from the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company;

(iii) in consideration of the transfer and vesting of the business and undertaling of Amrit Agro with the Company under the Scheme,
the company has issued and allotted 63,72,265 - 7% Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference shares (“OCRPS”) of the
face value Rs.10/- each to the equity shareholders of Amrit Agro, whose names appeared in the register of members on the
Record Date i.e 10th May, 2024 in the ratio of exchange provided in the Scheme i.e. One (1) – 7% OCRPS for every one (1) equity
share of Amrit Agro.

F The Company has not allotted any equity shares as fully paid-up during the period of 5 years immediately preceding 31st March, 2024
(i) pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash; or (ii) as bonus shares;

G The Company has one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10/- each ranking pari passu in all respects including voting rights
and entitlements to dividend. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

H In accordance with Regulation 26 of the Delisting Regulations, the Promoter Acquirers provided exit opportunity to the remaining
public shareholders of the Company, who did not or were not able to participate in the Reverse Book Building Process or who
unsuccessfully tendered their equity shares in the Reverse Book Building Process and were holding Equity Shares in the Company
(“Residual Shareholders”), to tender their equity shares during a period of one year from the BSE Date of Delisting i.e. from June 03,
2022 to June 2, 2023 (“Exit Window”) at the delisting price of Rs.945/- per equity share on the terms and conditions as contained
in the Exit Letter of Offer. During the financial year 2023-24, 4,042 equity shares have been tendered by the Residual Shareholders
which have been acquired by the Promoter Shareholders. Consequently, the shareholding of the Promoter Shareholders after giving
effect to  cancellation of the holding of Amrit Agro, now stand at 93.16% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company. The
Exit Window closed on June 2, 2023.

I During the year under review, the Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights nor granted stock options nor sweat
equity.
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17 NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS

Non-current borrowings As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs Amount in Lakhs

a. Secured
- Long Term maturities of vehicle loans (Refer Note 17A) 49.65 28.83

b. Unsecured
Security Deposits 58.18 58.76

Total 107.83 87.59

Note:

17A Vehicle loan(s) are secured by hypothecation of the vehicles purchased out of the said loans. The vehicle loan has
been taken for the period of 36 to 40 months at the rate varying from 8.50% to 9.50% on reducing balance.

18 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

(a) Deferred Tax Liabilities As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

Depreciation and amortisation 169.62 153.12
Unrealised gain on securities carried at fair value through
statement of profit and loss / OCI 886.98 301.80
Security Deposit received - (0.72)

Total (a) 1,056.60 454.20

(b) Deferred Tax Assets As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

Unpaid Bonus 6.30 7.45
Unpaid Earned Leave 47.93 41.64
Provision for Doubtful debts 85.14 129.60
Lease Rent Security Deposit Given 4.85 -

Total (b) 144.22 178.99

Net Deferred Tax (Assets) / Liabilities(a-b) 912.38 275.21



21 CURRENT BORROWINGS

Current  Borrowings As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

Secured
(a) Overdraft facility Punjab National Bank (Refer Note 21A) 130.54 130.61
(b) Working Capital Kotak Mahindra Bank (Refer Note 21B) 40.22 23.66
(c) Current maturities of vehicle loans (Refer Note 17A) 38.07 23.66

Unsecured
From related parties - 465.00

Total 208.83 619.27

NOTE:
21A - The Over draft against  fixed deposits (not  more than one year term) from Punjab    National Bank  at the

interest rate of 1% more on FD rate placed with bank either    payable on demand or  on the maturity of fixed
deposit, whichever is earlier .

21B - The working capital loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank at the interest rate of 8.5% p.a against pledge of Bonds
of NABARD with bank payable on demand.

19 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other Non-Current Liabilities As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

Deferred Revenue on Security deposit - 2.29

Total - 2.29

20 NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS

Non-Current Provisions As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

Provision for employee retirement benefits
Leave Encashment 84.68 82.66
Gratuity 3.79 3.05

Total 88.47 85.71

22 CURRENT LEASE LIABILITY

Current Lease Liability As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

Lease Liability - 39.62

Total - 39.62



24 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Other Current Financial Liabilities As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

(a) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.09 0.02

(b) Interest accrued and due on borrowings - 38.82

(c) Unpaid Equity dividends/ redemption amount/ 22.49 27.64
fractional payment*

(d) Expense Payable 334.54 256.04

Total 357.12 322.52

* Not due for deposit to Investor Education & Protection Fund

23 TRADE PAYABLES

Trade  Payable As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

Trade Payables

- Due to MSMED Parties (Refer Note 39) 47.11 63.24

- Due to others 99.89 210.60

Total              147.00 273.84

Sr. Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments

Not due Less than 1-2 2-3 Morethan Total
1 year years years 3 years

(i) MSME as at 31st March 2024 - 47.11 - - - 47.11

as at 31st March 2023 - 63.24 - - - 63.24

(ii) Others as at 31st March 2024 - 99.88 0.01 - - 99.89

as at 31st March 2023 - 210.60 - - - 210.60

(iii) Disputed dues -  MSME as at 31st March 2024 - - - - - -

as at 31st March 2023 - - - - - -

(iv) Disputed dues -  Others as at 31st March 2024 - - - - - -

as at 31st March 2023 - - - - - -

Total as at 31st March 2024 - 146.99 0.01 - - 147.00

as at 31st March 2023 - 273.84 - - - 273.84

23 (a) Trade Payables
Trade Payable ageing schedule as on 31.03.2024 and 31.03.2023:



27A Revenue from sale of products

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

Amount in Lakhs

Manufacturing Goods
- Cream 1,791.45 1,851.63
- Flav.Milk 355.42 195.97
- Dairy based drinks 3,187.58 2,703.60
- Fruit preparations 49.19 37.71
- Tea beverage 40.32 10.76
- Milk 1,326.23 1,401.27
- Dairy Mixes 5,878.61 4,550.47
- Dairy based desserts 8.94 -
- Vegan Beverage 4.38 -
Stock-in-Trade 15.77 13.42

Total               12,657.89              10,764.83

27 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Revenue from operations consist of revenues from

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

Amount in Lakhs

Sale of products (Refer Note 27A) 12,657.89 10,764.83
Sale of Services (Course/Franchise Fees Received) 228.69 61.72
Other operating revenues (Refer Note 27B) 9.52 14.57

Total 12,896.10 10,841.12

25 OTHER CURRENT PAYABLES

Other Current Payables As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

Statutory dues 68.68 44.05

Employees Balances & other exp. 19.40 16.85

Advances from customers & other Parties 400.75 671.46

Others - 0.02

Total 488.83 732.38

26 CURRENT PROVISIONS

Current Provisions As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

Provision for employee retirement benefits
- Leave Encashment 100.09 82.81

- Gratuity 103.70 77.28

Total 203.79 160.09



27B Other operating revenue

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

Amount in Lakhs

Sale of Scrap 9.17 13.56
Share of surplus on books/Incentive 0.35 1.01

Total 9.52 14.57

28 OTHER INCOME

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

Amount in Lakhs

Interest Income (Refer 28 A) 584.11 673.97

Dividend Income 97.06 118.22

Gain on sale of investments -net

- Realised Gain / (Loss) 462.20 71.70

Unrealised Gain / (Loss) on investments carried at fair value
through statement of profit and loss 2,310.41 (222.37)

Gain on sale of fixed assets 0.20 32.80

Rent - 1.46

Gain on exchange fluctuation - 47.77

Sundry Credit Balance written Back - 0.75

Other receipts 2.37 2.16

Provision made previous years no longer required 210.71 61.02

Total 3,667.06 787.48

28A Interest Income comprises interest from

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

Amount in Lakhs

On Fixed Deposit with Banks 61.38 32.86

On Non-Convertible Debentures 150.14 230.51

On Tax Free Bonds & other 261.86 261.72

On Inter Corporate Deposits 6.49 9.96

Other Investments 104.24 138.92

Total 584.11 673.97



29 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,  WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE

Particulars For the year For the year (Increase)/
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023 Decrease

Amount in Lakhs

Finished Goods

- Cream 35.53 49.31 13.78

- Flav.Milk 17.87 10.80 (7.07)

- Dairy based drinks 50.37 39.97 (10.40)

- Fruit preparations 0.31 2.62 2.31

- Tea beverage 2.61 0.91 (1.70)

- Milk 13.68 18.76 5.08

- Dairy Mixes 58.89 78.63 19.74

- Dairy based desserts 0.15 - (0.15)

Stock-in-Trade

- Course Material 17.02 16.66 (0.36)

Total 196.43 217.66 21.23

30 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

Amount in Lakhs

(a) Salaries, Wages & Bonus 1,448.74 1,144.11

(b) Contributions to  Provident Fund and other funds 192.77 122.84

(c) Staff Welfare expenses 79.78 69.95

Total 1,721.29 1,336.90

31 FINANCE COSTS

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

Amount in Lakhs

Interest Expense on

- Financial liabilities 20.19 200.49

- Others 2.75 7.73

Total                        22.94 208.22



32 OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

Amount in Lakhs

Consumption of Stores, Chemicals & Others (Refer 32A) 1,299.46 1,152.84

Power & Fuel consumed 648.85 590.06

Rent 71.60 2.98

Rates & taxes 11.99 15.14

Repairs to Buildings 30.33 28.98

Repairs to Machineries 227.44 198.64

Freight Outward 208.26 153.43

Payment to Auditors

- Audit fee 6.50 5.50

- Tax Audit fee 1.50 1.50

- Other Services 0.17 0.66

- Reim. of expenses 1.01 -

Payment to directors

- as sitting fees 10.00 8.41

- as travelling expenses 1.35 -

Advisory & Consultancy 107.12 69.72

PMS Expenses 52.50 143.94

Profit Sharing paid on books 4.11 4.21

Property, Plant and Equipment written off - 1.40

Travelling Expenses 104.61 108.49

Sundry Balances written off - 0.37

Selling Expenses 76.87 71.82

Provision for Doubtful-Debts - 0.55

Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (Net) 15.82 -

Loss on Sale of Store 9.20 17.99

Amalgamation Expense 24.10 -

CSR Expenses 24.60 22.00

Donation 10.78 2.85

Advertisement & Publicity 30.06 24.37

Other Expenses 399.65 334.85

Total 3,377.88 2,960.70

32A Stores & Chemicals & others consist of the following:

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

Amount in Lakhs

Chemical 45.22 57.94

Packing Material 1,028.02 918.52

Packing Expenses 225.72 175.85

Material Consumed (RITC) 0.50 0.53

Total 1,299.46 1,152.84



33 TAX EXPENSES

A. Amount recognised in profit & loss

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

Amount in Lakhs

Current Tax
- Income Tax for the year 245.99 -
- Prior period tax adj. (45.87) 20.40

Total current tax 200.12 20.40

Deferred Tax

- Deferred Tax for the year 637.53 (108.75)

Total Deferred tax 637.53 (108.75)

Total 837.65 (88.35)

B. Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

Amount in Lakhs

On items that will not be reclassified to profit & loss
- Remeasurement gains /(losses) on defined benefit plans - -

On items that will be reclassified to profit & loss
- Related to financial instruments (1.80) 27.10

Total (1.80) 27.10

C. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profits as follows:

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

Amount in Lakhs

Profit before tax 3,723.32 (140.63)

Income tax expenses 964.44 -

Effect of tax free / Non taxable income (73.49) (65.87)

Effect of different tax rate (125.65) -

Other difference 72.36 (22.48)

Total 837.66 (88.35)



34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(i) Contingent Liabilities
(a) Income Tax Act, 1961
(b) Income Tax Act, 1961

Total

*Refer Note 38(f)

** The contingent liability of Rs.192.63 lakhs has not been crystallized during the last 25 years.
Hence, the said contingent liability no longer subsist. The liability of Rs.1.41 Lakhs has been
adjusted by Income Tax Department while releasing refund during the year.

(c) The contingent liability regarding sale tax demand of Rs. 1.90 Lakh for the Assessment Year
1998-99 has not crystalized as no demand notice has been received by Amrit Agro during the
last 25 years and neither the order of the Assessing Authority nor of the Appellate Tribunal is
available in the records of the Company. Hence the Contingent liability no longer subsist.

(ii) Commitments Total Project WIP/Advances Balance Capital
Cost as on Commitment

31.03.2024 as on 31.03.2024

(a) Capital Commitment

- Food Unit Capex projects, namely, 48.50 26.94 21.56
SS Tank-SKL & Lunch Room

- Ashiana Landcraft Realty Pvt. Ltd. 222.68 210.55 12.13

(b) Non-Cancellable Commitments

35. In accordance with Regulation 26 of the Delisting Regulations, the Promoter Acquirers provided exit opportunity
to the remaining public shareholders of the Company, who did not or were not able to participate in the
Reverse Book Building Process or who unsuccessfully tendered their equity shares in the Reverse Book
Building Process and are currently holding Equity Shares in the Company (“Residual Shareholders”), to
tender their equity shares during a period of one year from the BSE Date of Delisting i.e. from June 03, 2022
to June 2, 2023 (“Exit Window”) at the current price of Rs.945/- per equity share on the terms and conditions
as contained in the Exit Letter of Offer. During the financial year 2023-24, 4,042 equity shares have been
tendered by the Residual Shareholders which have been acquired by the Promoter Shareholders.

2023-24 2022-23

299.52* -
2.14 196.18**

301.66 196.18

(Amt.  in Lakhs)

(Amt.  in Lakhs)

S. No. Particulars  2023-24 2022-23

(a) Emerging India Credit opportunities Fund-I 20.00 27.00

(b) EPIQ Capital II 310.00 277.50

(c) Kotak Pre IPO opportunities Fund-I 60.00 140.00

TOTAL 390.00 444.50

(Amt.  in Lakhs)



Consequently, the shareholding of the Promoter Shareholders after giving effect to cancellation of the holding
of Amrit Agro, now stands at 93.16% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company. The Exit Window
closed on June 2, 2023.

During the year under review, the Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights nor granted
stock options nor sweat equity.

36. The Company has a combined exposure of Rs. 198.83 Lakhs (including Rs. 141.66 Lakhs of Amrit Agro) on
account of commodity trade done on National Spot Exchange Ltd. (NSEL). NSEL has not been able to
adhere to its payment obligations. The Company has filed criminal complaint in Economic Offences Wing
(EOW), Delhi Police through M/s Mount Shikhar Commodities LLP (formerly known as Mount Shikhar
Commodities Pvt. Ltd.), Member – NSEL, which has been transferred to CBI, Mumbai..  NSEL and its
holding company, Financial Technologies (India) Ltd., name now changed to “63 Moons Technologies Ltd.”
(“63 Moons”) have been involved in litigations at various legal and other forums, including Supreme Court of
India, Bombay High Court, NCLT, CBI (EOW), SFIO etc. Orders were passed for amalgamation of NSEL
with its holding company and restraining the holding company from selling/alienating or creating third party
rights against its assets and investments, which have been challenged at higher forums. In the last order dated
30th April, 2019, the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India has set aside the judgment of Bombay High Court of
December 4, 2017 which approved the merger of scam tainted NSEL with its parent, 63 Moons. After this
judgment, there are serious question marks on the recovery of investors’ money. In view of uncertainty of
recovery, the Company made full provision of Rs. 201.03 Lakhs towards the above due in the financial year
2013-2014. In the course of time, some recoveries have been made which have been adjusted from the
provision of Rs. 201.03 lakhs (including Rs. 143.23 lakhs of Amrit Agro) and the amount outstanding as on
31.03.2024 stands at Rs. 198.83 Lakhs.

37. Scheme of Amalgamation:

(a) Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation (‘Scheme’) for amalgamation of Amrit Agro Industries Limited
(“Amrit Agro”) with the Company  sanctioned by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad
Bench at Prayagraj (“Hon’ble  NCLT”) vide order dated 19th April, 2024 in Company petition No. 25/
ALD/2023, the entire business, including all movable/ immovable & tangible/intangible properties,
investments, bank balances/cash-in-hand and provisions/liabilities together with all rights, interests, benefits
and obligations concerning the said business of the Amrit Agro have been transferred to and vested in the
Company as a going concern w.e.f. the Appointed Date i.e. 01.04.2023; The effective date of the
scheme is 26th April, 2024 being the date on which the said order of the Hon’ble NCLT was filed with
ROC by the Company.

(b) The Company has, in consideration of the transfer and vesting of the businesses of Amrit Agro with the
Company under the Scheme, issued and allotted 63,72,265 - 7% Optionally Convertible Redeemable
Preference shares (“OCRPS”) of the face value Rs.10/- each to the equity shareholders of Amrit Agro,
whose names appeared in the register of members on the Record Date i.e. 10th May, 2024 in the ratio
of exchange provided in the Scheme i.e. One (1) – 7% OCRPS for every one (1) equity share of Amrit
Agro. The OCRPS have been issued and allotted inter alia on the following terms & conditions mentioned
in the Scheme:

- Tenure of OCRPS shall not exceed 6 months from the date of allotment;

- The holders of OCRPS shall be entitled to a dividend of 7% p.a;

- The OCRPS will be convertible into two (2) equity share of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up for every
twenty-three (23) OCRPS held by shareholders, in one tranche at the option of the allotee(s) within
a period not exceeding Six (6) months from the date of allotment of OCRPS;



- In the event the allottee(s) of OCRPS choose not to convert the OCRPS, they will be compulsorily
redeemed by the Company at the fair value/price of Rs. 73.60 per OCRPS of Rs. 10/- each
including premium of Rs. 63.60/- per OCRPS determined by the Approved Valuer together with
the cumulative dividend;

- OCRPS will not be listed on any stock exchange;

- OCRPS shall be issued in dematerialized form and the equity shares arising on conversion shall also
be issued in dematerialized form;

- OCRPS shall be unsecured.

(c) The investment of the Amrit Agro in the equity shares of the company i.e., 2,52,127 equity shares of
Rs.10/- each has been cancelled in terms of the Scheme and consequently a sum of Rs. 46.64 lakhs
appearing in the books of the Amrit Agro as investment in the Company stands cancelled and extinguished;

(d) The amalgamation of Amrit Agro with the Company has resulted in transfer of assets and liabilities in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme retrospectively w.e.f. April 1, 2023 at the following summarized
values. The excess of assets and liabilities of Rs.957.65 lakhs has been treated as Capital Reserve and
transferred to the Capital Reserve Account.

                                                                 Particulars  Amount in Lakhs

Non-Current Assets    

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment 18.23
(b) Non-Current Investments 1,470.79
(c) Other non-Current assets 20.03
(e) Deferred tax Assets (Net) 2.14

     1,511.19

Current Assets
(a) Current Investments 92.23
(b) Cash and cash equivalents 5.59
(c) Other Currents Assets 19.70

117.52

Total Assets 1,628.71

Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Provisions 0.30

    0.30
Current Liabilities
(a) Borrowing 3.86
(b) Other Financial Liabilities   7.22
(c) Provisions 0.02

(d) Other Current liabilities 1.00
12.10

Total Liabilities 12.40

Excess of assets over liabilities 1,616.31
Less:
Investment held in the Company by Amrit Agro 46.64
Cancel equity share of the Company (25.21) 21.43
OCRPS to be issued to Equity Share Holders of Amrit Agro 637.23

Capital Reserve 957.65



(e) Authorized Share Capital

The Authorized Share Capital of Amrit Agro has been clubbed with the Authorized Share Capital of the

Company and, consequently, the Authorized Share Capital has increased from Rs.2,500 lakhs to Rs.3,650

lakhs divided into 3,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each and 65,00,000 Redeemable Preference

Shares of Rs.10/-;

(f) Contingent Liability

The Hon’ble NCLT in its order dated 19th April, 2024 as taken cognizance of the outstanding demand of

Rs. 299.52 lakhs for the Assessment Year 2012-13 reported to the Hon’ble NCLT by the Income Tax

Department through Assistant Commissioner of Income Tax, Circle 1 (1), C R Building, New Delhi,

having jurisdiction on Amrit Agro. The Company has filed an affidavit before the Hon’ble NCLT undertaking

that arising out said of the outstanding tax demand of Rs. 299.52 lakhs, the crystalized demand, if any,

would be duly paid by the Company. The outstanding demand has been duly contested in appeal which

is pending adjudication. The Company is confident that the said outstanding tax demand will not be

survive; however, it is being recognized as Contingent liability in the Notes to Account till appropriate

appeal order has been passed by the Income Tax appellate authority.

38. The management has issued letters of confirmation by e-mail to the major parties for trade receivables, trade

payables & others for confirming their balances. Balance confirmations have been received from maximum

parties, except some parties whose outstanding are not material and some of whom are in dispute and/or

under litigation with the company.  The balances of such parties have been incorporated in the financial

statements at the value as per the books of account. The company, to the extent stated, has considered them

as good and necessary provisions have been made in respect of debtors/advances under litigation and

where recovery is considered doubtful.



40. Related Party Disclosures

A. Related Parties

(i) Holding Company : M/s Amrit Banaspati Co. Pvt. Ltd. (ABCPL)

(ii) Fellow Subsidiary : M/s Kamal Apparels Private Limited (KAPL)
: M/s Amrit Agro Industries Ltd.*

(iii) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) : Mr. N.K. Bajaj, Chairman & Managing Director
their relatives and Enterprises : Mr. A.K. Bajaj, Vice Chairman & Managing Director
over which KMPs and their : Mr. V.K. Bajaj, Director
relatives are able to exercise : Mr. Mohit Satyanand, Director
significant influence/control : Mr. B.P. Maheshwari, Chief Financial Officer

: Mr. Pranab K. Das, Company Secretary
: Mrs. Vandna Bajaj
: Mrs. Jaya Bajaj
: A.K. Bajaj Investment Pvt. Ltd.

(iv) Other Related Parties with whom : Amrit Corp. Ltd. Employees Provident Fund Trust
the Company has transactions (ACL-EPF Trust)

: Amrit Corp. Ltd. Gratuity Fund Trust (ACL-Gratuity Trust)
: Amrit Learning Ltd. Employees Group Gratuity Trust (ALLEGGT)

*Amrit Agro Industries Limited has been amalgamated with Amrit Corp. Limited w.e.f. 01.04.2023

39. The company has amounts due to suppliers under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development

Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) as at 31.03.2024. The disclosure pursuant to the said Act is as under:

S No. Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

(a) The Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the
end of each accounting year 47.11 63.24

(b) The Interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end
of each accounting year - -

(c) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 18 - -

(d) Amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year - -

(e) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under this Act - -

(f) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
each accounting year - -

(g) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such dated when the interest dues as above
are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance
as a deductible expenditure under section 23. - -

Note : The information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as
“Micro and Small” enterprises on the basis of information available with the Company.



B. Transactions with Related Parties
(Amt. in Lakhs)

Type of Transaction Holding and Key Managerial Other Related Total
fellowship subsidiary Personnel (KMP), Parties with whom

their relatives and the Company has
Enterprises over transactions

which KMP and their
relatives  are able to
exercise significant

influence/control

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23

(a) Dividend Income 68.74 100.88 - -                -                - 68.74 100.88

(b) Dividend Payment 69.62 135.28 32.79 27.74                -                - 102.41 163.02

(c) Sitting fee paid - - 2.10 1.20 - - 2.10 1.20

(d) Rent paid 46.80 42.00 - -                -                - 46.80 42.00

(e) Expenses reimbursed 8.99 6.87 - -                -                - 8.99 6.87

(f) Remuneration of key
managerial personnel - - 175.07 142.79                -                - 175.07 142.79

(g) Contribution made to
PF/ Gratuity Trusts - - - - 102.10 101.34 102.10 101.34

(h) Loan Received 10.00 60.00 - -                -                - 10.00 60.00

(i) Loan Re-paid 375.00 - 100.00 - - - 475.00 -

(j) Interest Given on Loan 6.67 33.14 1.80 10.00 - - 8.47 43.14

Balances as on 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023

(i) Security Deposits Given 25.00 25.00 - - - - 25.00 25.00

(ii) Investments in shares 894.68 813.35 - -                -                - 894.68 813.35

(iii) Loan Outstanding - 365.00 - 100.00 - - - 465.00

(iv) Payable to EPF Trust - - - - 4.27 3.95 4.27 3.95

C . The transactions with the Related Parties have been entered in the ordinary course of business and are at arm’s
length.

41. Segment reporting

The Company is now primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing and distribution of “Dairy Milk/ Milk
Products” as a single unit only. Therefore, there are no separate reportable business segments, as per Ind-AS
108.

42. Employee Benefit Plan

(i) The Company makes contributions to the provident fund and employees state insurance for eligible
employees. Under these plans, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll
costs.  The Company has recognized Rs. 104.50 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 90.91 Lakhs) as expenses
in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year towards contribution to these funds.

Out of the total contributions made in provident fund, a sum of Rs.24.32 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 21.82
Lakhs) is made to “Amrit Corp. Ltd. Employees Provident Fund Trust”. The members of the Provident
Fund Trust are entitled to the rate of interest declared by the Central Govt. under the Employees Provident
Fund and Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952. The shortfall, if any, is made good by the Company in the
year in which it arises. The Trustees of the PF Trust are responsible for overall governance of the plan and
to act in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant provisions under the laws on



the subject. The funds of the Provident Fund Trust have been invested in various securities in accordance
with the pattern of investment prescribed by the Govt. of India.

(ii) The Company provides for the gratuity and leave encashment to eligible employees under the Defined
Benefit Plans. The Gratuity Plan provides for a lump sum payment to employees upon vesting at
retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment. The gratuity vesting occurs upon
completion of five years of service. The gratuity benefits are funded and leave encashment benefits are
unfunded in nature.

The liability arising in the Defined Benefit Plans are determined in accordance with the advice of independent
professionally qualified Actuary, using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. The Company
makes contribution to the Amrit Corp, Ltd. Gratuity Fund Trust, the Trustees of which are responsible for
the overall governance of the plan and go act in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed and the
related laws on the subject.

The Trustees have appointed SBI Life Insurance Company Ltd. for managing the funds of the Trust and
making the investment in securities in accordance with the investment pattern prescribed by the Govt. of
India.

(iii) The Defined Benefit Plans expose the Company to risk of actuarial deficit, interest rate risk and salary cost
inflation risks. The investment risk may arise from volatility in asset values due to market fluctuations and
impairment of assets due to credit losses. The interest rate risk may arise as the decrease in yield will
increase the fund liability and vice-versa. Increase in salary due to adverse inflationary pressure might also
lead to higher liabilities. The Trustees regularly monitor the funding and investments of these plans and risk
mitigation system are in place to ensure that the health of the portfolio is regularly reviewed and investments
do not pose any significant risk of the impairment.

Statement of Profit & Loss

Net employee benefit expense recognized in employee cost

The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expenses recognized in the statement of Profit &
loss and the funded status and the amount recognized in Balance Sheet for Gratuity Fund
during 2023-24.

(Fig. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Current Service Cost 39.79 33.26

Interest Cost on Benefit Obligation (net) 5.93 1.66

Net Benefit Expense 45.72 34.75

Actual Return on Plan Assets 34.94 27.46

Expected Return on Plan Assets 33.92 30.79

Balance Sheet
Benefit Assets / Liabilities (Amt. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Defined Benefit Obligation 667.33 539.84

Fair Value of Plan Assets 559.84 459.51

Plan Asset / (Liability) (107.49) (80.33)



Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows (Amt. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 539.84 447.20

Interest Cost 39.85 29.94

Current Service Cost 39.79 33.26

Benefits Paid (12.92) (11.93)

Actual Losses / (Gain) on Obligation 60.77 41.38

Acquisitions (Credit) / Cost – –

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 667.33 539.84

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows :
(Amt. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Opening Value of Plan Assets 459.51 426.50

Expected Return on Plan Assets 33.92 30.79

Benefits Paid (12.39) (11.93)

Contribution by Employer 77.77 17.47

Actuarial (Losses) / Gain 1.03 (3.32)

Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 559.84 459.51

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

PARTICULARS 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Investment with Insurer 100.00% 100.00%

Bank Balance with The Trust – –

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown
below:

PARTICULARS 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Discount Rate 7.23%/7.21% 7.38%

Increase in Compensation Cost (%) 7.00%/6.00% 7.00%/6.00%



SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:

(Amt. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS INCREASE EFFECT DECREASE EFFECT

Effect of increase / decrease in discount rate by 0.50%
on defined benefit obligations (19.28) 20.74

Effect of increase / decrease in salary escalation by
0.50% on defined benefit obligations 20.71 (19.42)

The Sensitivity Analysis above has been determined based on reasonably possible change of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. These
sensitivities show the hypothetical impact of a change in each of the listed assumptions in isolation. While each of
these sensitivities holds all other assumptions constant, in practice such assumptions rarely change in isolation and

the asset value changes may offset the impact to some extent.

The following table summarize the components of net benefit expenses recognized in the statement of
Profit & loss and the unfunded status and the amount recognized in Balance Sheet for leave encashment  during
2023-24:

Statement of profit & loss
Net employee benefit expense recognized in employee cost

(Amt  in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Current Service Cost 16.10 14.73

Interest Cost on Benefit Obligation 12.21 9.97

Net Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss recognized in the year (4.10) 28.83

Net Benefit Expense 24.21 53.53

Actual Return on Plan Assets – –

Balance Sheet
Benefit Assets / Liabilities (Amt  in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Present value of the obligation at year end 184.77 165.46

Unfunded liability/ Provision in Balance Sheet 184.77 165.46



Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows (Amt  in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 165.46 138.03

Net Interest Cost/ (Income) 12.21 9.97

Total  Service Cost 16.11 14.73

Benefits Paid (4.91) (26.09)

Re- Measurements (4.10) 28.83

Acquisitions (Credit) / Cost — —

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 184.77 165.46

The principal assumptions used in determining leave encashment  obligations for the Company’s plans
are shown below:

PARTICULARS 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Discount Rate 7.23% 7.38%

Increase in Compensation Cost 7.00% 7.00%

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:

(Amt  in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS INCREASE EFFECT DECREASE EFFECT

Effect of increase / decrease in discount rate by 0.50%
on defined benefit obligations (3.07) 6.11

Effect of increase / decrease in salary escalation
by 0.50% on defined benefit obligations 6.10 (3.10)

The Sensitivity Analysis above has been determined based on reasonably possible change of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. These
sensitivities show the hypothetical impact of a change in each of the listed assumptions in isolation. While each of
these sensitivities holds all other assumptions constant, in practice such assumptions rarely change in isolation and
the asset value changes may offset the impact to some extent.



43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

A. Capital Management

The Company’s capital management objective is to ensure that a sound capital base is maintained to
support long term business growth and optimize shareholders value. Capital includes equity share capital
and other equity reserves. The Company’s operations are funded primarily through internal accruals. Return
to shareholders through dividend is monitored as per the laid down dividend distribution policy.

B. Categories of Financial Instruments
(Amt  in Lakhs)

Particulars Note As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Financial Assets

I. Measured at amortised cost

  (i) Investments 4 & 8 6,571.90 5451.04

(ii) Trade receivables 9 641.34 537.74

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 188.09 295.29

(iv) Other Bank Balances 11 1,136.90 490.67

(v ) Loans 12 50.00 50.00

(vi) Others 5 & 13 373.49 317.96

Total (A)   8,961.72 7,142.70

II Measured at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income

(i) Investments 4 91.80 199.10

Total (B)   91.80 199.10

III Measured at fair value through Profit & loss

(i) Investments 4 & 8 11,790.12 9,673.78

Total (C)   11,790.12 9,673.78

Total financial assets (A+B+C)   20,843.64 17,015.54
     

Financial Liabilities     

I Measured at amortized cost  

  (i) Borrowings 17 & 21 316.66 706.86

  (ii) Trade payables 22 147.00 273.84

(iii) Lease liability 23 - 39.62

  (iv) Other financial liabilities 24 357.12 322.52

Total financial liabilities   820.78 1,342.84



C. Fair value hierarchy
(Amt.  in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

I Financial Assets / Financial Liabilities at amortised cost    

  The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost are a reasonable approximation
of their fair values except Investments for which the fair value
are as follows:    

Fair value of Investments measured at amortised cost 6,751.37 5,451.04
     

II Financial assets at fair value through profit & loss

Investment in Equity Shares, Mutual Funds (Level 1) 10,172.24 7,913.35

Investment in Equity Shares, Alternative Investment Funds
(Equity), (Level 2) 1,617.82 1,760.39

Investment in Alternative Investment Funds (Debt),
Loans  (Level 3) - -

III Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income    

Investment in Preference Shares, Alternative Investment
Funds (Real Estate), (Level 2) 91.80 199.10

The Company determines the fair value of its financial instruments on the basis of the following hierarchy:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments that are quoted in active markets are determined on the
basis of quoted price for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined on the
basis of net asset value as per last available audited financial statements.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the fair value is
determined using discounted cash flow method with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that
reflects the credit risk of the counter-party.

The fair value of trade receivables, trade payables and other current financial assets and liabilities is
considered to be equal to the carrying amounts of these items due to their short-term nature.

D. Financial Risk Management objectives

(i) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to risk that the Company may encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are settled in cash or other financial assets. The Company
regularly monitors the rolling forecasts to ensure that sufficient liquidity is maintained on an ongoing
basis to meet operational needs. The Company manages the liquidity risk by planning the
investments in a manner such that the desired quantum of funds could be made available to meet any
of the business requirements within a reasonable period of time. In addition, the Company also
maintains flexibility in arranging the funds by maintaining committed credit lines with bank(s) to meet
the obligations.



(ii) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or a counter-party fails to meet its
contractual obligations. The Company has following categories of financial assets that are subject to credit
risk evaluation.

Investments

The Company has made investments in tax-free long-term bonds, short term bonds, deposit with
banks, mutual funds etc. Funds are invested in accordance with the Company’s established Investment
policy that includes parameters of safety, liquidity and post tax returns. Company avoids the concentration
of credit risk by spreading them over several counterparties with good credit rating profile and sound
financial position. The Company’s exposure and credit ratings of its counterparties are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Based on historical experience and credit profiles of counterparties, the company does
not expect any significant risk of default except as provided in the financial statements.

Trade receivables

Credit risk arising from trade receivables is managed in accordance with the Company’s established
policy with regard to credit limits, control and approval procedures. The Company provides for expected
credit losses on trade receivables based on a simplified approach as per Ind AS 109. The Company’s
historical experience of collecting receivable indicate that credit risk is low, consequently trade receivables
are considered to be a single class of financial assets. All overdue customer balances are evaluated taking
into account the age of the dues, track record of the counter party etc. Loss allowances and impairment is
recognized where considered appropriate by the management.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets include employee loans, security deposits etc. Based on historical experience and
credit profiles of counterparties, the Company does not expect any significant risk of default.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for each of the above categories of financial assets is
their carrying values as at the reporting dates.

(iii) Market Risk

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is not exposed to any significant interest rate
risk as its investments are primarily in fixed debt instruments. Also, there are no significant borrowings as
at the balance sheet date.

Price risk

Price risk refers to risk that the fair value of a financial instrument may fluctuate because of the change in the
market price. The Company is exposed to the price risk mainly from investment in mutual funds and
investment in equity instruments. Investments in mutual funds are made primarily in units of fixed maturity
and liquid funds and are not exposed to significant price risk.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure may fluctuate due
to change in the foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk arising out of
transactions in foreign currency. Foreign exchange risks are managed in accordance with Company’s
established policy for foreign exchange management. The impact of strengthening/weakening of foreign
currencies on the outstanding exposure at the year-end is not significant.



44. Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments

Details of loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company u/s 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
during the financial year 2023-24 are as under:

(i) Loans, guarantees and investments outstanding as on 31.3.2024

Sl No Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1. Loans given 50.00 50.00

2. Guarantees given Nil Nil

3. Investments made 18,633.24 15,502.70

(i) Loans, guarantees and investments made during FY 2023-24

Sl No. Name of the entity Particulars Whether related Amt. Purpose
party or not (Rs.lakhs)

1. Savvy Constructions Pvt. Ltd. ICD No 50.00 Business

2. Mutual Funds, PMSs, etc. Investments No 3,875.30 Cash

management

45. Earnings per share

2023-24 2022-23

Profit after taxation as per Statement of profit & loss (Rs. in Lakhs) 2,885.67 (52.28)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 27,86,104 30,38,231
for calculating diluted earnings per share (B)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for calculating 33,40,214 30,38,231
diluted earnings per share (C) - Assuming full conversation of OCRPS
into equity shares (Ref. note 38)

Basic and diluted earnings per share in rupee (face value – Rs.10/-
per share) including exceptional income 103.57 (1.71)

Diluted earnings per share in rupee 86.39 (1.71)
(face value- Rs. 10/- per share) (A/C)

(Amt. in Lakhs)



46. Foreign Exchange Earning & Outgo
(Amt. in Lakhs)

2023-24 2022-23

A) Value of Imports on CIF Basis

Capital Goods 12.75 636.21

Spares 166.14 159.21

B) Earnings in Foreign Exchange

Share of surplus on Book received 0.12 0.12

Mic. income 0.25 0.90

C) Expenditure in Foreign Exchange

Travelling 16.60 19.08

Others 1.44 0.35

Course Material & Related items 0.27 0.56

Internet charges 1.02 1.54

Profit sharing paid on Books 3.53 7.13

47. The year-end foreign currency exposure that has not been hedged by a derivative instrument or
otherwise is given below:

Particulars As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

Swiss Franc Rupees Swiss Franc Rupees
(CHF) (Amount in (CHF) (Amount in

Lakh) Lakh)

Trade Payable (Credit) 3047.50 2.82 376 0.34

Others Receivable (Debit) - - - -



48. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

As per Section135 of the CompaniesAct, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to
spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate
social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are Scholarships for education, skill
development/enhancement, language training and presentation skills with a view to make poor and neglected
children employable and Women Empowerment, contribution to Swach Bharat Kosh ,Clean Ganga Fund and
Prime Minister’s National Relief Fund. A CSR committee has been formed by the company as per the Act.
The funds were primarily allocated to a corpus and utilized through the year on these activities which are
specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013:

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2024 March 2023

i. Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 24.60 21.27

ii, Amount of expenditure incurred 24.60 22.00

iii. Shortfall at the end of the year - -

iv. Total of previous years shortfall - -

v. Reason for shortfall NA NA

vi. Nature of CSR activities Scholarships for education, ski l l
development/enhancement, language
training and presentation skills with a view
to make poor and neglected children
employable and Women Empowerment,
Contribution in Swach Bharat Kosh ,Clean
Ganga Fund and Prime Minister’s National
Relief Fund

vii. Details of related party transaction, e.g., contribution to a
trust controlled by the company in relation to CSR
expenditure as per relevant Accounting standard NA NA

viii. Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred
by entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in
the provision during the year NA NA

49. Subsidiary: Going Concern Assumptions

The Company (Amrit Learning Ltd) has been incurring losses for the past few years leading to erosion of its
net worth as on 31.03.2019. The losses in the recent years have been accentuated due to COVID-19
pandemic which adversely impacted the business activities of the Company. For the financial year ended 31st
March, 2024, the Company incurred net loss of Rs. 108.69 Lakhs. The total liabilities exceed its total assets
by Rs. 533.29 Lakhs as on 31st March, 2024. The Promoters of the Company have, in the past, injected the
liquidity in the Company by capital infusion as well as by way of loans to fund the losses and liabilities of the
operations so that there is no default by the Company in meeting its financial obligations. In view of this, the
Company’s ability to continue as going concern is not impaired as the Company has never defaulted in the
past in meeting its financial obligations. The Company’s management has carried out an extensive assessment
of the financial performance of the Company. The company has regular financial support from the Promoters
and the management expects improvement in business operations. Further, the company has become the



wholly owned subsidiary of Amrit Corp. Ltd. w.e.f. 24.05.2023, which in turn will benefit the company in its
future prospects. The Company focusses on various initiatives including cost optimization, rationalization of
operations, closure of unviable Centre’s and addition of corporate customers for improved revenue and
profitability. Accordingly, the above financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis which
contemplates realization of assets and settlement of liabilities in the normal course of business.

50. Statement of Net Assets and Profit or (loss), Other Comprehensive Income and Total Comprehensive
income attributable to owners

Name of the
Company

Net Assets (Total Assets
minus Total Liabilities)

Share in
Profit or (Loss)

Share in other
Comprehensive

Income

Share in Total
Comprehensive

income

As % of
Consolidated

net assets

Amount
in Lakh

As % of
Consolidated
profit or loss

Amount
in Lakh

As % of
Consolidated

other
Comprehensive

Income

As % of
Consolidated

Total
Comprehensive

Income

Amount
in Lakh

Amount
in Lakh

Parent Company
(Indian)

Amrit Corp Limited 100.21 24,473.99 102.65 2,962.10 89.52 (11.28) 102.71 2,950.82

Subsidiary (Indian)

Amrit Learning Limited (0.21) (51.72) (2.65) (76.43) 10.48 (1.32) (2.71) (77.75)

Total 100.00 24,422.27 100.00 2,885.67 100.00 (12.60) 100.00 2,873.07

51. The previous year’s figures are not comparable with figures of current year due to scheme of amalgamation
given effect in the financial statements during the year.



AMRIT CORP LIMITED

FORM AOC-I : STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (PURSUANT TO FIRST PROVISO TO SUB SECTION (3) OF SECTION 129
READ WITH RULE 5 OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014)

PART “A” SUBSIDIARIES
(Amount in Lakh.)

S. No. Particulars (a)

1 Name of Direct Subsidiary/ Indirect Subsidiary Amrit Learning Limited
(Refer Note 2 below)

2 The date since when subsidiary was acquired 30-Nov-22

3 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from N.A
the holding company’s reporting period

4 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the N.A
relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries

5 Share Capital                                897.35

6 Reserves & Surplus                           (1,430.64)

7 Total Assets                                99.97

8 Total Liabilities                                633.26

9 Investments                                        -

10 Turnover                                244.81

11 Profit/(Loss) before taxation                              (108.69)

12 Provision for taxation                                        -

13 Profit/(Loss) after taxation                              (108.69)

14 Proposed Dividend                                        -

15 % of Shareholding                                 100.00

Notes:- (1) There are no subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations.
(2) The financial statements have been audited by other Auditors.

PART “B” ASSOCIATES
There is no associates.

In terms of our report of even date                                                On behalf of the Board

For Mukesh Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 011393N
Rishi Mittal, Partner
Membership No. 521860

Place : Noida
Date  : June 10, 2024

N.K. Bajaj A.K. Bajaj
Chairman & Managing Director Vice Chairman & Managing Director

B.P. Maheshwari P.K. Das
President (F&A) & Sr. Vice President (Corp.)
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary
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